Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Audit Committee

TUESDAY, 2ND NOVEMBER, 2010 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Khan (Chair), Amin (Vice-Chair), Diakides, Meehan, Bloch,
Butcher and Gorrie

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES

To note any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 15 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the matter
becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

11.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 8)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 14 September
2010.

DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 9 - 10)
Report of Grant Thornton.

VALUE FOR MONEY REPORT (PAGES 11 - 32)
Report of Grant Thornton.

HOUSING ALLOCATIONS, LETTINGS AND HOMELESSNESS SERVICES RE-
INSPECTION - FINAL REPORT (PAGES 33 - 42)

Report of the Director of Urban Environment to inform the Audit Committee of the
outcome of the Audit Commission’s re-inspection of the Council’s Housing
Allocations, Lettings and Homelessness services and to summarise the content of the
report.

ANNUAL STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS - OUTCOME OF THE ANNUAL AUDIT
FOR 2009/10 AND REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
(PAGES 43 - 50)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to update the Committee on the final
outcome of the annual audit for 2009/10 and to agree an action plan flowing from the
audit of the accounts and auditor’s final report.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES DOCUMENT (PAGES 51 - 64)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to present the Treasury Management
Practices document for scrutiny as required by the CIPFA Treasury Management
Code of Practice.

HOUSING BENEFITS - 2ND QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT ON COUNTER
FRAUD ACTIVITY (PAGES 65 -70)

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to advise and update Members on the
Counter Fraud performance of the Benefits and Local Taxation Service from the 1°
June 2010 — 30" September 2010.



12. INTERNAL AUDIT - 2ND QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 71 - 110)
Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the work undertaken during the second quarter by the Internal Audit Service in
completing the 2010/11 annual audit plan and reports issued for outstanding 2009/10
audits together with the responsive fraud investigation work. In addition, to provide
details of the work the Council’s personnel division has undertaken in supporting
disciplinary action taken across all departments by respective council managers.

13. RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATE (PAGES 111 - 116)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the current position on compliance with the corporate risk management policy for the
management of risk registers across the Council.

14. NATIONAL FRAUD INITIATIVE 2010/11 - CORPORATE ARRANGEMENTS AND
REQUIREMENTS (PAGES 117 - 124)

Report of the head of Audit and Risk Management to inform the Audit Committee of
the statutory 2010/11 National Fraud Initiative data matching exercise and the
Council’s compliance with the requirements of the exercise.

15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above.

16. DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 3 February 2010, 7.30pm.

Ken Pryor Helen Jones

Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member Principal Committee Coordinator

Services Tel: 020 8489 2615

5" Floor Fax: 020 8489 2660

River Park House Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ Monday, 25 October 2010



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2010

Councillors Khan (Chair), Diakides, Meehan, Bloch and Gorrie

Apologies

Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources

Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTE
NO.

SUBJECT/DECISION

ACTION
BY

PRAC30.

APOLOGIES

Apologies for lateness were received from Clir Diakides, and apologies
for absence were received from Julie Parker, Director of Corporate
Resources.

PRAC31.

URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business.

PRAC32.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

PRAC33.

MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 July 2010 be approved and
signed by the Chair.

PRAC34.

DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no deputations or petitions.

PRAC35.

LEASEHOLD CHARGES - INTERIM PROGRESS REPORT

The Chair agreed to a request to vary the order of the agenda and take
agenda item 12, Leasehold Charges interim progress report, at this point
in the agenda.

Phil Harris, Assistant Director for Strategic and Community Housing
Services, introduced the report, which had arisen from the Committee’s
concerns at its previous meeting that three recommendations of Grant
Thornton had not been agreed by Homes for Haringey. Internal Audit
had examined the areas in question to ensure that these would not lead
to any control issues, and the findings of Internal Audit and the detailed
action plan were appended to the report. Mr Harris reported that no
further action was required for two of the three areas, and that as a
result of the further action required in respect of Leaseholder
Consultation on Qualifying Long Term Agreements, Homes for Haringey
would be revising the procedure notes, to be included in the Homes for




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2010

Haringey and Council procurement procedures.

The Committee expressed concern that, although the report indicated
that procedures were correct, Members had experience of cases where
problems had arisen and would be reluctant to agree that everything was
operating fully satisfactorily in this area. Clir Meehan gave an example of
a case he had been personally involved in where leaseholders had been
sent excessive estimates, and he intended to raise this further with the
Homes for Haringey management. In response to Member concerns,
Jackie Thomas, Homes for Haringey, responded that the report had
focussed on the processes in place, but that the service was also reliant
on the quality of the information it was provided with, and that problems
arose where this information was incorrect. The Committee
acknowledged that, while satisfactory processes might be in place, it
was key to ensure that the correct information was being supplied so
that output was accurate.

The Committee suggested that an analysis of complaints received by
councillors should be undertaken to identify areas where problems were
regularly occurring, and expressed concern that the issues raised by
councillors as a result of estate visits were not being fully analysed by
managers. Ms Thomas reported that managers should be producing
reports analysing the outcomes of estate inspections as a matter of
course, but that this could be looked into further as part of the Internal
Audit work for Homes for Haringey. In response to concerns raised by
the Committee about the impact of incorrect estimates being sent out,
particularly to elderly residents, Ms Thomas stated that measures such
as the Key Leaseholder Scheme and pre- and post-inspection systems
were in place to address this issue. Ms Thomas reported that it had been
identified that in most cases where an estimate was revised, this was as
a result of the work varying from the original specification, and work was
in place to address this.

Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton, addressed the Committee and stated that
although the arrangements in respect of the processes in place had
been discharged as a result of the audit and follow up work, there were
clearly concerns on the part of Members regarding how the systems
were operating in practice, and recommended that a full audit on this
area be undertaken, looking at a large sample size on a risk basis. The
Committee welcomed this suggestion, and Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance
Officer, recommended that this would be an appropriate way forward.
The Committee suggested that an appropriate starting point would be to
speak to Members who undertake estate visits, to identify the problems
that they see recurring.

The Chair summarised that in response to further concerns of the
Committee in regard to the proper discharge of duties in the area of
leasehold charges, External Audit had recommended that a full audit be
undertaken and that this had been agreed by the Lead Finance Officer.
The Chair moved and it was:

RESOLVED




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2010

i) That the Committee note the outcome of the Internal Audit
Team’s completed follow-up of the three recommendations
raised in the Grant Thornton report which were not agreed by
Homes for Haringey;

ii) That the Committee note that the Council is content with the
outcome of the follow-up work undertaken by the Internal Audit
Team and there are no further actions required for two of the
three recommendations;

o Estate and Block costs — no further action required
. Service Quality — no further action required
) Leaseholder Consultation on Qualifying Long Term

Agreements — further action required;

iii) That the Committee note that the outstanding further action
requires Homes for Haringey to revise the procedure notes for
the Leaseholder Consultation on Qualifying Long Term
Agreements and include in Homes for Haringey and Council
procurement procedures once approval has been sought from
the Board at its next meeting on 27" September. The Audit
Committee will be updated on progress in three months time.

iv) That a full audit be undertaken by Internal Audit in respect of
leasehold charges, looking at a large sample size on a risk
based approach.

PRAC36.

GRANT THORNTON PROGRESS REPORT

Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton, presented the progress report. The
Committee was advised that no significant issues had been identified to
date in respect of the annual audit of accounts, and that this would be
reported to the General Purposes Committee on 23™ September. Further
to the abolition of the CAA and, subsequently, the Audit Commission, Mr
Dossett reported that Grant Thornton would bring a revised audit plan for
2010/11 to the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee.

Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance Officer, reported that the Council was
satisfied with progress on the audit of accounts, and advised the
Committee that an action plan would be presented along with the
accounts, to be monitored by the Audit Committee.

On a motion by the Chair it was:

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC37.

GRANT CLAIMS AND RETURNS PLANNING MEMORANDUM

Grant Thornton presented the report on the Grant Claims and Returns




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2010

Planning Memorandum. The results of the grants work would be
reported to the Audit Committee in late 2010 or early 2011. In response
to a question from the Chair regarding the fee scale indicated in the
report, Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance Officer, confirmed that he felt that this
was reasonable.

On a motion by the Chair it was:
RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC38.

CIPFA BENCHMARKING - INTERNAL AUDIT RESULTS 2009/10

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the results of the CIPFA Benchmarking exercise for 2009/10. It was
reported that the Council was looking at developing a corporate
approach to fraud and ways of increasing the effectiveness of the use of
resources in relation to anti-fraud work.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding why the
Council’s overhead costs were so high, Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance
Officer, advised that a number of different costs contributed to the
calculation of overheads; it was acknowledged that some of Haringey’s
costs were high, and that these were being addressed in the current
budget process.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the Council’s
anti-fraud work, the Head of Audit and Risk Management reported that
they were looking at developing a corporate resource by changing the
focus of existing resources to enable a more proactive approach in
future. The Committee asked for further information on why additional
anti-fraud work was necessary, and the basis on which this work was
being undertaken, in response to which it was agreed that the Head of
Audit and Risk Management would provide a report on this issue to the
next meeting, including the areas to be focussed on. The Committee
noted that in other organisations, for example the NHS Trust, a regular
corporate anti-fraud report was submitted to the Board, and was a very
helpful document, in response to which the Head of Risk Management
confirmed that this was precisely the type of report the Council intended
to produce in future, once a corporate anti-fraud resource was
developed. The way in which such a report would be presented to the
Committee, and whether any information would need to be classified as
exempt, would need to be considered in due course.

The Head of Audit and Risk Management confirmed that, until a
corporate anti-fraud resource had been developed, quarterly reports on
anti-fraud work in relation to housing and council tax benefits would
continue, but that a combined, corporate report on proactive anti-fraud
work would replace this in due course.

On a motion by the Chair it was:




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2010

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted, and that it also be noted that, in
due course, regular corporate anti-fraud reports would be presented to
the Audit Committee.

PRAC39.

REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT (RIPA) 2000 -
OPERATION AND USE WITHIN THE COUNCIL

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the operation and use of RIPA by the Council during 2009/10. In
order to comply with the new Order in relation to RIPA, introduced in
2010, it was reported that the Senior Responsible Officer with
responsibility for oversight of RIPA was the Director of Corporate
Resources, who will provide quarterly reports on RIPA applications to
the Cabinet Member for Resources and will provide an annual report to
Cabinet. It was reported that the Council had never extensively used
RIPA and that 3 applications had been made in 2009/10. There were no
outstanding recommendations as a result of the regular inspections into
the use of RIPA at the Council.

The Committee expressed concern that the Council was having to use
RIPA to undertake work which should be the responsibility of the Police,
and that further pressure should be put on the Police to act. The Head of
Audit and Risk Management responded that there were areas where the
onus was on the local authority to investigate, but that she was unable to
comment on individual cases.

The Chair stated for the record that, while he had no objection to the
annual RIPA report to Cabinet, he felt that the Audit Committee should
also continue to see the report, as this Committee had the authority to
oversee the use of RIPA. In response to the Committee’s concerns that
duplication of work should be avoided, and that this was something that
would be looked at as part of the ongoing Governance Review, the Chair
fully agreed that duplication should be avoided, but advised that the
Audit Committee’s Terms or Reference set out that the Committee was
responsible for the performance of the Council — financial and non-
financial.

RESOLVED
That the requirements of RIPA legislation and the operational processes

in place to ensure that the Council complies with these requirements be
noted.

PRACA40.

WHISTLEBLOWING - IMPLEMENTATION AND USE OF THE
COUNCIL POLICY 2009/10

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the operation and use of the Council's whistleblowing policy in
2009/10. This report was presented to the Committee on an annual
basis in accordance with a recommendation made by the external
auditors. It was reported that the whistleblowing policy was circulated to




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2010

all staff in various ways, such as on the intranet, via team briefs and on
payslips. The policy was used infrequently, and had been used on two
occasions in 2009/10, however other referral routes such as Fraudcall
and the internal audit email account were used more regularly; as these
were anonymous services, there was no way of knowing whether these
were being used by staff instead of the formal whistleblowing procedure.

The Committee expressed surprise that the use of the whistleblowing
policy was so low, and felt that it would be useful to know the general
sort of issues raised under the whistleblowing and other referral
processes, so that any changes could be monitored. The Head of Audit
and Risk Management advised that information was provided in the
quarterly internal audit progress report to the Audit Committee, and
indicated that one of the uses of the whistleblowing policy had been in
relation to bullying and harassment.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding how the
Council’s experience of the whistleblowing policy compared with other
local authorities, the Head of Audit and Risk Management reported that
speaking to colleagues regarding this matter, the use of whistleblowing
was generally low across the London Boroughs.

In response to a question from the Chair, Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance
Officer, confirmed on behalf of the Section 151 Officer that Haringey’s
policy in this area was compliant with relevant guidance and that the
annual report to the Committee in respect of this matter was good
practice.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC41.

INTERNAL AUDIT - UPDATED TERMS OF REFERENCE

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the revised Internal Audit Terms of Reference. It was reported that
the Terms of Reference were fully compliant with the CIPFA code of
practice, and that there had been very few changes, which were to
reflect changes to the Council’s Constitution during the year.

The Committee requested that, in future, for this report and other policies
which were revised on a regular basis and presented to Members for
approval, the changes from the previous version be marked up for ease
of reference. In response to a question from the Committee in relation to
paragraph 9.1 of the Terms of Reference, the Head of Audit and Risk
Management clarified that responsibility for managing the risk of Fraud
and Corruption lay with the relevant Heads of Service, but Internal Audit
were responsible for investigating reported cases of alleged fraud and
corruption.

In response to a question from the Chair, Kevin Bartle, Lead Finance
Officer, confirmed that Haringey was compliant with the requirements of




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2010

the CIPFA Code of Practice, as set out in items a) to i) of paragraph 16.2
of the report. Mr Bartle also confirmed satisfaction with the performance
of the Head of Audit and Risk Management.

RESOLVED

That the revised Terms of Reference for the Internal Audit Service be
approved.

PRACA42.

REPORT ON OUTSTANDING AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management, presented the report
on the work undertaken to address the outstanding Priority 2 and 3 audit
recommendations. The Committee welcomed the report that all but three
of the recommendations had now been implemented, and noted that of
those one was in progress, to be completed by 30 September 2010, one
was awaiting sign-off and one was awaiting a software release,
anticipated in November 2010.

In response to concerns from the Committee regarding the ability of
Heads of Service to challenge the recommendations of Internal Audit,
the Chair noted that management was able to address issues in a
different way to the recommendations of Internal Audit, provided that
they could demonstrate supporting regulations, guidance and best
practice, and that this was acceptable. The Chair also advised that the
Committee regularly requested the Section 151 Officer to monitor any
such instances and exercise their professional judgement in these
matters. The Committee agreed that in instances where management
did not agree the recommendations made by Internal Audit, they should
be able to attend the Committee to explain their reasons for this. Kevin
Bartle, Lead Finance Officer, assured Members of the Committee that
Heads of Service at times had robust discussions with Internal Audit
regarding recommendations, and were able to challenge issues.

The Chair advised that this report had been requested as there was
often a focus on Priority 1 recommendations only, but it was also
important for Priority 2 and 3 recommendations to be followed up. The
Chair acknowledged that, where recommendations were no longer
appropriate, these could be updated accordingly and the Section 151
Officer should look into these matters to determine whether the
alternative measures taken were appropriate.

RESOLVED

i) That the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding Priority 2 and 3 audit recommendations be noted.

ii) That the actions taken to address the outstanding
recommendations be confirmed as satisfactory.

PRACA43.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2010

There were no new items of urgent business.

PRAC44.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Tuesday, 2 November 2010, 7.30pm.

The meeting closed at 20:40hrs.

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair




Page 9 Agenda ltem 6

o Grant Thornton

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT - NOVEMBER 2010

Work Progress

Audit Plan Our full audit plan and updated audit fee was agreed with management and
2009/10 presented to the February 2010 Audit Committee.

2009/10 We worked with the Council to help prepate for the 2009/10 accounts

accounts audit | audit, including the Head of Corporate Finance attending a half day
accounts workshop on 10 February at our offices.

Interim - our interim audit work is complete and there were no issues to
report to the Audit Committee. We presented our Accounts Audit
Approach Memorandum to the July meeting of the Audit Committee.

Final - our audit the year end accounts is complete and we reported our
results to the General Purposes Committee as part of the Annual report to
those charged with governance (ISA260) in September 2010. We issued an
unqualified opinion on the accounts on 27 September 2010.

International In 2009, we held a workshop with the Council and issued an IFRS
Financial conversion report planner to management which highlighted the areas of
Reporting greatest likely impact for the Council and proposes a number of actions for
Standards the Council. We are continuing to work with management as preparations
(IFRS) for IFRS continue and have had positive meetings with officers on in March

and August 2010 to review the good progress being made to date. We have
agreed with management that we will perform a review of the restated 31
March 2010 balance sheet, under IFRS, by 31 December 2010.

Value for Our work on the 2009/10 Value for Money conclusion is complete and we

Money issued an unqualified conclusion on 27 September 2010. Our work included

conclusion the 2009 Use of Resources (UoR) assessment that we completed in Summer

2009/10 2009 and the local risk based UoR work that we reported on during
2009/10.

We are presenting the summarised results of this work to the November
2010 Audit Committee in our Value for Money report 2010.




Page 10

Work Progress

Grants claims
and returns
certification

We presented our report of summary findings from our certification of
2008/09 claims and returns to the February 2010 Audit Committee. We
presented our Grant Claims And Returns Planning Memorandum 2009-10
to the September 2010 Audit Committee and our work is underway. We will
present to members the results of this work in January 2011.

Audit Plan
2010/11

We agreed our indicative fee for 2010/11 with the Chief Financial Officer
and presented this to the June meeting of the Audit Committee. This letter
is prepared in advance of the audit year in order to provide the Audit
Commission will details of indicative fees nationally.

The Audit Commission has published information on the new approach to
local Value for Money work following the cessation of CAA. We will
continue to give a conclusion on whether the Council has proper
arrangements for securing Value for Money in accordance with our statutory
responsibility under the Code of Audit Practice.

The work we will undertake to support our conclusion will be risk-based and
informed through discussions with the Council. We will shortly review and
discuss with management the planned ateas of focus in our 2010/11 VFM
work (including arrangements for financial resilience and personal social care
budgets) to ensure that we agree a local programme of VFM audit work that
gives us assurance over arrangements in place and supports the Council to
improve its performance. We will present the full 2010/11 Audit Plan to
members in January 2011.

Disbanding of
the Audit
Commission

The Secretary of State has recently announced the disbanding of the Audit
Commission in 2012. We anticipate that audit arrangements will continue in
the current format for the financial years 2010/11 and 2011/12. We will
update the Audit Committee on future arrangements when more
information becomes available.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
November 2010

Page 2



Page 11 Agenda ltem 7

o Grant Thornton

London Borough of Haringey

Value for Money 2009/10

22 October 2010

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Value for Money 2009/10

Contents

1  Executive Summary

2 Scope of our work

3 Managing finances

4  Governing the business
5 Managing resources

A Action Plan

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Page 12

Page

13

16



Page 13

Value for Money 2009/10

Executive Summary

Background and purpose of the report

1.1

1.2

Under the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice we are required to reach a
conclusion on whether the London Borough of Haringey ('the Council’) has put in
place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources ('VFM conclusion'). On the basis of the work completed we issued an
unqualified Value for Money conclusion on 27 September 2010.

We described in our Audit Plan (December 2009) the areas of audit work that
provide us with the assurance that contributes to our annual VEM conclusion. This
report sets out our findings from these pieces of work:

e  our assessment of the Council's Use of Resources (UoR'), using the three
themes within the Audit Commission's assessment framework themes and
Key Lines of Enquiry (‘'KLoE")

e  specific work on locally identified audit risks, which contribute to our VEM
conclusion by feeding into our UoR assessment scores.

This report sets out our findings from these pieces of work to arrive at the
unqualified conclusion.

Key findings and action required by the Council

1.3

1.4

The wider requirements of the Use of Resources (UoR) assessment have recently
been abolished and will not be formally scored for this year. However, we set out in
this report discussions of each theme and areas for improvement based on the work
we had completed at the time the arrangements ceased.

The headline findings are as follows:

e prior to the abolition of the scored UoR assessment we shared our indicative
assessment scores with the Council and fed back our assessment that the
Council had improved its management arrangements in a number of areas,
including data quality (previously assessed as "inadequate'), commissioning
and procurement and asset management

e the Council demonstrated strong and robust arrangements for the
management of its workforce

e there remains scope for the Council to demonstrate a more widespread
understanding of costs and outcomes across its functions.

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1



Page 14

Value for Money 2009/10

1.5 The key actions for the Council, relevant to the areas covered by our audit, are as
follows:

e since the conclusion of our review there have been significant changes
announced in relation to government grant allocations and future funding and
there is significant pressure on the public sector and local government in
particular, to generate efficiencies and operate within reduced resources. The
Council will need to ensure that the impact of these and the requirement to
find savings beyond those that had been anticipated and planned for as part of
the MTES are taken into account in all future financial planning.

e The Council needs to address some significant in year challenges and robustly
profile the impact of these in future financial plans.

e The Council should ensure a continued focus on the production of its first set
of IFRS compliant accounts in 2010/11 including ensuring that it mitigates
against potential risks of the implementation project going off track.

e The Council should ensure that it continues to emphasise the importance of
data quality to prevent any relaxation in compliance and a potential return to
an "inadequate" assessment.

Way forward

1.6 As the Use of Resources framework has now been abolished the weaknesses
identified will not be followed up specifically through an assessment process. The
Council should look to develop action plans on those weaknesses that link directly
with corporate priorities.

1.7 Given the scale of the pressures facing public bodies in the current economic
climate, the Commission has reviewed its work programme for 2010/11 onwards.
As part of this exercise, the Commission has been discussing possible options for a
new approach to local value for money (VEM) audit work with key national
stakeholders. From 2010/11 we will therefore apply a new, more targeted and better
value approach to our local VFM audit work. This will be based on a reduced
number of reporting criteria specified by the Commission, concentrating on:

e sccuring financial resilience

e prioritising resources within tighter budgets.

1.8 We will determine a local programme of VFM audit work based on our audit risk

assessment, informed by these criteria and our statutory responsibilities. Given the
nature of the financial challenges ahead we expect to drill down in detail into the
Council's MTES and the robustness of high value/high impact savings plans. We
will no longer make annual scored judgments relating to our local VEM audit work.
Instead we will report the results of all the local VFM audit work and the key
messages for the audited body in our annual report to those charged with
governance and in a clear and accessible annual audit letter.

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2



Page 15

Value for Money 2009/10

Acknowledgements

1.9 We would like to record our appreciation for the co-operation and assistance
provided to us by the Council's management and officers during the course of our
audit.

Use of this report

1.10 This report has been prepared solely for use by the Council to discharge our
responsibilities under the Audit Commission Code of Audit Practice and relevant
auditing standards and should not be used for any other purpose. No responsibility
is assumed by us to any other person.

1.11 This report includes only those matters that have come to our attention as a result of
performance of the audit. An audit of Use of Resources is not designed to identify
all matters that may be relevant to those charged with governance. Accordingly the
audit does not ordinarily identify all such matters.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
22 October 2010

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3



Page 16

Value for Money 2009/10

2

Scope of our work

Introduction

2.1

2.2

2.3

In carrying out our audit work we comply with the statutory requirements governing
our duties, set out in the Audit Commission Act 1998, in accordance with the Code
of Audit Practice (the Code). The Code requires us to issue a conclusion on whether
the London Borough of Haringey (‘the Council’) has proper arrangements in place
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its resources ('VFM
conclusion').

Our VEM conclusion is informed by our use of resources work which, in Councils,
is based on the Audit Commission Use of Resources (UoR) assessment. However,
prior to conclusion of our work the new Coalition Government abolished the
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), which included the requirement for a
scored UoR assessment.

Notwithstanding this, although we are not able to report scores for 2009/10 it is
important to provide feedback on the work that we have completed to date. We set
out below improvements identified since the previous year and assessed where there
are opportunities to address areas of weakness.

Approach to the audit

2.4

2.5

The assessment was carried out between December 2009 and May 2010. We
reviewed the Council's arrangements against nine KLLoEs within the three UoR
themes prescribed by the Audit Commission. Our work was based on review of
written evidence and meetings with senior management and officers.

The key findings in each of the themes, and areas for improvement, are set out in
the remaining sections of this report.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 4



Page 17

Value for Money 2009/10

3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Managing finances

The managing finances assessment covers the following areas:
e planning finances to deliver priorities and sound financial health
e sound understanding of costs and performance / achieving efficiencies

e timely and reliable financial reporting and meeting stakeholder needs.

Planning finances to deliver priorities and sound financial health

The Council's short and medium term service and financial planning arrangements
remained robust in 2009/10 and the Council provided a number of examples of
outcomes resulting from this, most notably around educational attainment, many
Local Area Agreement stretch targets and targets delivered in partnership (e.g. infant
mortality).

Recent inspection reports on children's services provide evidence of a positive
outcome from the Council's efforts to improve in a weak area. Engagement with the
public and other stakeholders remains strong and developing this year. The Council
remains strong on managing spending with some good examples of how known
financial pressures have been dealt with in year.

The current economic climate has placed significant pressure on the public sector
and local government in particular, to generate efficiencies and operate within
reduced resources. The Council's medium term financial plan agreed in February
2010 indicated a balanced position over the period but included assumptions
surrounding council tax rises, the formula grant, pay and price inflation as well as
area and specific grants which are now subject to considerable change. Additionally
the plan included £32m of planned efficiency savings of which £20m had still to be
identified.

The Council is currently planning for the significant spending cuts anticipated as
part of the central government's comprehensive spending review in October 2010.
These spending cuts have been incorporated into the Council's revised budget and
medium term financial strategy with a gap of £7.5m being forecast for 2010/11,
rising to approximately £60m by March 2014. In order to address this budget gap
the Council is developing an efficiency and savings programme which will also look
at transformational change within the Council. This programme is currently being
turther developed and will be incorporated into the budget setting process for
2011/12 in February 2011.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 5



Page 18

Value for Money 2009/10

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Sound understanding of costs and performance/achieving efficiencies

The Council's overall arrangements for understanding costs remain satisfactory, as
evidenced by the Council's robust financial planning, financial position and
management of some in year issues requiring cost analysis, such as temporary
accommodation. The Council has delivered the target 3% efficiencies over the last 3
years, including through schemes such as Smart Working.

However, a thorough understanding of transaction, unit and whole life costs is not
yet sufficiently widespread and a bank of demonstrable service and efficiency
outcomes achieved as a consequence this understanding is not yet apparent. An
example of this arose from discussions we had during the year on CCTV, where the
Council could not readily articulate the value in terms of quantifiable outcomes from
its annual investment.

The evidence suggests that much of the Council's activity on efficiency schemes is
work in progress with many identified efficiency savings still to be delivered.
Implementation of the Council's recession strategy should provide more evidence
around understanding costs and acting to address the local challenges.

Timely and reliable financial reporting and meeting stakeholder needs

Based on our updated review of service and financial reports we confirmed that
arrangements for internal financial reporting remain as strong as last year. The
outcome for the Council at the end of 2009/10 was a continued good financial
position in the short to medium term, supported by a healthy reserves position
despite the extreme pressures resulting from mandatory extra spend in children's
services.

The Council managed an effective closedown process and worked with us to ensure
a more rapid completion of the audit than in previous years. The Council produced
its draft 2009/10 accounts in advance of the 30 June 2010 deadline and presented
them to the General Purposes Committee on 28 June 2010. As in previous years, the
working papers were timely and of a good standard and we worked collaboratively
with officers to ensure a smooth audit process. We identified and agreed with
management some areas where there was scope to further improve its arrangements,
particularly around asset valuation and accounting (included in our agreed accounts
audit action plan).

In terms of content, language and presentation, the annual report 2008/09 was as
strong as the 2007/08 version but the report was published later than in the
previous year (January 2010). The annual report for 2009/10 is due to be published
in at the end of October 2010. There is scope for the Council to produce its annual
report eatlier, as it did in 2007/08.

We are continuing to work with management as preparations for IFRS continue and
have had positive meetings with officers during the year to review the good progress
being made to date. We have agreed with management that we will perform a review
of the restated 31 March 2010 balance sheet, under IFRS, by 31 December 2010.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 6



Page 19

Value for Money 2009/10

4

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

Governing the business

Governing the business theme considers four areas:
e commission and procure quality services tailored to local need

e produce relevant and reliable data and information to support decision making
and manage performance

e promotion and demonstrating the principles and values of good governance

e managing risks and maintaining a sound system of internal control.

Commission and procure quality services tailored to local need

The Council has developed a strategic, corporate approach to commissioning and
has a wide range of localised commissioning plans and approaches that are linked to
specific areas and needs assessments and which sets out the vision for the Council
and its partners. There is a good understanding of local needs which together with
the joint strategic needs assessment (JSNA) and borough profile, provide core
datasets that inform a range of activity. A Children and Young People’s Plan Needs
Assessment, containing sections on safeguarding and vulnerable children was
completed during the year, whereby NHS Haringey and the Council's Children and
Young People's Service drafted a joint commissioning framework for the Haringey
Children's Trust.

There are a range of localised approaches to involving service users and other
stakeholders in the commissioning process. These include the Temporary
Accommodation User Forum where residents have an input into how services are
delivered, the carers support group who sit on strategic forums such as the Drug and
Alcohol Board and Young Peoples Task Group and the Local Involvement
Networks, which have further developed their role during the last year and
participate in discussions and decision making through representation on various
Boards.

The Council has been recognised nationally for its customer service and working in
close partnership with the Pension Service has identified £1.1m of new entitlements
to State Pensions, Pension Credits and Attendance Allowance. The Council's action
plan recognised the need to improve joint commissioning for children and young
people, resulting in changes to Framework-I for Children's Services and addressed
key concerns such as a reduction in administrative tasks. In addition, an NHS pilot
project has been linked to Framework-I providing hospital staff access which allows
them to investigate whether children have a protection plan or are known to the
Children's Service.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 7



Page 20

Value for Money 2009/10

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

The Council received a commendation for best local government procurement in
respect of its approach to category management and various procurement projects
have achieved savings in excess of £6m between 2006 and 2009. Significant savings
continue to be derived from the Council's neutral vendor arrangement with Hays for
temporary and agency staff. Working in partnership with the Domiciliary Care
sector, the Council is shifting the emphasis of provision from public sector
frameworks to endorsed catalogues, whereby qualifying residents will be able to
purchase assisted living services from a priced catalogue provided by Domiciliary
Care suppliers.

The Council procures goods and services strategically, using a range of methods and
partners, while at the same time supporting national and local agendas and alignment
with the Council's overall vision. Spending categories ate risk-assessed and low-risk
commodities are generally sourced through shared procurement arrangements. The
Council and its Corporate Procurement Unit manage the London Energy Project,
which was a winner of the Procurement Innovation and Initiative in the
Government Opportunities Awards 2009 and has also been given formal delegated
authority to act on behalf of 31 out of 33 London Authorities.

The Council is an acknowledged leader in the field of sustainability and was
awarded the Carbon Trust Standard in 2009. At the time of our assessment savings
of £570k had been made and carbon emissions reduced by 1,103 tonnes. The
Council has developed tools to mitigate the negative environmental and socio-
economic impacts of select contracts, for example, an Environmental Design
Options tool is used a standardised reporting tool for the BSF, Primary Capital
Programmes and future major and minor frameworks contract to quantify the
carbon impact of building works.

Produce quality data and information to support decision making

The Council was assessed as inadequate on data quality (DQ) in 2008/09 due to two
main weaknesses - data within the Children's Service as highlighted in the Joint Area
Review of safeguarding after Baby Peter, and data quality issues revealed in the
Benefits service as a result of the our audit work.

For 2009/10, DQ management arrangements work at a corporate level was reported
to the Audit Committee quarterly and member scrutiny of DQ at has been robust. A
rolling programme of ongoing performance data audits has occurred across services
- 52 audits were completed in the year to December 2009. Outcomes of the audits
were reported to the monthly finance and performance review meetings attended by
Directors and the Chief Executive. The Council has developed a revised DQ
strategy clearly setting out roles and responsibilities of officers. A series of
workshops for managers and staff, attended by 150 officers, have been held to
emphasis the importance of DQ.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 8



Page 21

Value for Money 2009/10

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

The performance management element of the Covalent information system is fully
operational and has been producing performance reports for over a year. Health
partners have been given access to Covalent and trained so that they can now input
performance information directly into Covalent and provide commentary on
associated actions being taken to improve performance. The Haringey Strategic
Partnership performance framework has been reviewed and changed to allow for a
layered approach to managing and reporting. The newly formed HSP Business
Group will have responsibility for challenging the robustness of partnership data.

Adult Social Services and Children’s Services have put in place Quality Assurance
frameworks and operational practices to ensure data is robust with sample audits
and selected case file checking. An audit of referrals, initial and core assessment
indicators covering data from April - Sept 2009 was completed, with a sample of 300
cases reviewed. This identified improvements in the quality of assessments and
timeliness improvements as the year has progressed.

The Council received positive feedback in the JAR safeguarding follow-up report in
February 2010 and further positive feedback from the unannounced inspection in
September 2010. The reports found that there have been significant improvements
in case recording, quality assurance and performance management processes.
Improvements have been made to Framework-1, the electronic recording and
information system, which are significantly improving the efficiency and
effectiveness of key elements of child protection practice. Independent audits from
an external consultant have been commissioned by a members’ panel since shortly
after the death of Baby Peter to provide an additional check on the integrity of data
that councillors receive from all sources.

In benefits a new quality control and performance software has been developed and
implemented, aimed at ensuring that identified errors are fed back to assessors and
corrected. A Quality Compliance Team has been formed to carry out DQ checks of
assessments. Workshops have been held with staff and team leaders to understand
accuracy issues and identify solutions. There is ongoing testing of identified risk
areas; i.e. new claim start dates, single persons discount and earned income
calculations. There is focussed ongoing training and development activity for
benefits staff. We would however caution that this is a significant project to achieve
cultural change and that arrangements will need to be regularly assessed to ensure
arrangements are measured against the best and improved outcomes are reflected in
the certification of the Benefits Subsidy claim.

The Internal Audit report on Data Quality issued in April 2010 looked at three
national indicators (NIs) and provided substantial assurance. Our follow-up of
2008/09 non-children's NI spot checks found good progress against the
recommendations raised and our further spot-check work on children's indicators in
June 2010 revealed no significant issues.

Overall, we obtained sufficient assurance from our review of the Council's new
management arrangements, follow-up of prior year reported issues and reviews of
inspection reportts to enable us to conclude that for 2009/10, the Council's DQ
arrangements were adequate, which allowed us to issue an unqualified VEM
conclusion.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 9



Page 22

Value for Money 2009/10

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

Promote and demonstrate principles and values of good governance

The Local Code of Corporate Governance (LCCG) has been effective in driving
improvements and ownership of governance issues and arrangements across the
Council. Monitored work programmes for key officers ensure that key statutory
processes and good governance arrangements are completed, awareness is raised and
monitoring of the AGS action plan at senior level ensures completion of actions.

There are effective links between the Annual Governance Statement, LCCG and
UoR submission which has minimised duplication in the collection of information
and improved the Council's use of data. There are good arrangements in place to
meet the training and development needs of senior officers. The Member Learning
and Development Working Group overview the Member development and learning
programme and linked projects such as Working at the Political Interface sessions
for officers, Safeguarding Children and Corporate Parenting Training, whilst
promoting the opportunities offered by the personal development plans to
Members.

A clear vision is set out in the Council's sustainable community strategy and
corporate plan, and there are effective mechanisms for imprinting the key aspects of
this onto financial service planning, commissioning and key strategic programmes.
The Council's service performance information suggests that delivery of key services
continued uninterrupted during the challenging events of 2008/09.

The Council has good arrangements in place to ensure ethical behaviour. In 2008 we
conducted a review of probity and propriety and found that the Council has
effective arrangements in place to set expectations in this area and encourage
compliance. Our best practice recommendations focused on the need to ensure that
members are effectively trained and that challenges around governance for
partnerships were addressed and our follow up work noted good progress made.

During 2009/10 the Council and its partners developed and agreed the Haringey
Strategic Partnership (HSP) which has strengthened governance arrangements and
put in place strategic, efficient structures. This includes establishing the Business
Group and clear roles and responsibilities for performance management, which
ensures accountability at all levels of the partnership. The HSP also uses Covalent
for performance reporting.

The Council has identified all of its significant partnerships outside the HSP. As well
as adopting sound governance principles, partnerships are required to conform to
the appropriate procurement and contractual arrangements required by Council
policy.

The Council's work on Councillor Call for Action is regarded as best practice and
the Council presented to a number of national and regional conferences on their
arrangements. Two senior managers within the Corporate Governance Division
were appointed to national positions as the Chair of the Association of Democratic
Services Officers and the Chair of the Association of Electoral Administrators. The
Council continues to provide specific training for members of Scrutiny Panels and a
runs a specific annual induction process for scrutiny chairs & vice-chairs.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 10



Page 23

Value for Money 2009/10

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

The Council has strong processes in place for ensuring engagement with its residents
and stakeholders as a whole. There is evidence of engagement with hard to reach
groups which has resulted in strong outcomes as a result of effective partnership
working: For instance, Working with voluntary groups such as the Hanlon Centre
the Council has been able to engage directly with young black men to actively seek
their views on what matters most to them in their local area. The Council also held
events for both Somali and Turkish women to discuss issues of importance to them
and this resulted in the Hanlon Centre being designated as a ‘reporting’ centre for
hate crime in the area.

An independent review of the Council’s governance arrangements is nearing
completion. The objectives of the review have been:

e to promote engagement with local people and ensure that decisions are taken
as close to people as possible

e to facilitate the community leadership role of members and enable all members
to influence the council’s policies and services

e to improve the council’s performance and support its ‘One Borough’
aspirations

e to achieve these objectives at less cost.

The review has focussed in particular on:

e arrangements for full council;

role of the Mayoralty

development of overview and scrutiny

e scope for extending the role of area assemblies

role and function of council committees.

Once the results of the review have been reported, the Council will agree an action
plan to take forward any recommendations. As part of our 2010/11 audit we will
consider how the Council is taking forward implementation of the action plan.

Manage risks and maintain a sound system of internal control

The Council has improved operational management of risk through the use of the
Covalent performance management system, which as resulted in directorates taking
ownership of risk and risk management and their responses to changing
circumstances such as the recession. Internal audit also routinely tests risk register
completion.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 11



Page 24

Value for Money 2009/10

4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

The HSP risk management strategy has been fully implemented and all Thematic
Boards now have risk registers which are monitored via officer and Board meetings.
A quarterly review of compliance with the strategy is completed via query reports,
which in January 2010 showed that Covalent had been fully utilised and risk
management across all directorates and partnerships was almost fully complied with.
The Council put in place new emergency contracts of insurance overnight following
a court decision that the London Authotities Mutual Ltd, of which the Council is a
member, was rendered ultra vires thereby invalidating all insurance contracts.

The Council participates effectively in the Audit Commission's National Fraud
Initiative and, its approach to anti-fraud and corruption is adequate and operates
within a clear strategic and policy framework. The anti-fraud strategy has been
updated to reflect the risk of fraud and corruption within key partnerships and
internal audit has provided substantial assurance over existing arrangements. There
are examples of good outcomes within benefits fraud work, and successes have
been publicised.

Elements of the team's work programme atre proactive, informed and targeted
through a series of fraud profiles which risk-assess the scope for and impact of fraud
in each service. There are several examples of internal communication to raise the
profile of the work of the team and ensure that staff are aware of the whistle
blowing policy. The Council is currently in the process of integrating its anti-fraud
teams with the aim of improving the focus on corporate risks and carrying out more
proactive anti-fraud work.

The Council's Organisational Development and Learning service carried out an
independent review of the performance and effectiveness of the internal audit
service. The review identified areas of good practice and satisfaction with outcomes
on disciplinary issues and reported positive feedback on the service as a whole. A
peer review on the effectiveness of internal audit was also completed by London
Borough of Havering and full compliance against the CIPFA Code of Practice was
achieved. Our own work confirmed these findings.

The Council has a robust process for preparing and reporting the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS), to which departments contribute on an annual self-
assessment basis, challenged by the Head of Internal Audit. The AGS is signed off
by the Chief Executive and Leader, after it has been produced by a group of officers
including the Head of Internal Audit, Head of Legal Services and the Director of
Corporate Resources. The Head of Internal Audit presents the AGS to the Audit
Committee and deals with any questions. Whilst we acknowledge that this is
common practice in local government, as the Head of Internal Audit is required to
provide an opinion on the AGS, we suggest that it would be better governance if the
AGS was presented by someone from outside of audit.

A clear approach to business continuity is in place, overseen by the risk and
emergency planning steering group. The Business Continuity Planning (BCP) regime
is subject to internal testing and evaluation at service and corporate level. The Audit
Committee provides adequate challenge and control and has a balanced political
representation, clear terms of reference and work plan.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 12



Page 25

Value for Money 2009/10

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Managing resources

Governing the business theme considers three areas:
e making effective use of natural resources
e managing assets effectively to deliver strategic priorities

e managing the workforce effectively to achieve strategic priorities
Understanding and quantifying the use of natural resources

The KLLoE was not assessed this year at councils but, as referred to elsewhere in this
report, the Council has well established arrangements for managing the use of
natural resources.

Manage assets effectively to deliver strategic priorities

In 2008-09 we recommended that the Council needed to demonstrate outcomes and
value for money from assets, over and above the use of offices and community
buildings.

The Council has responded by providing 12 detailed case studies, covering many
service areas, covering "Introduction™>Need>What we did>Outcomes." These
cover tangible outcomes in areas such as further education, housing, libraries, parks
and community safety, e.g.

e Haringey Sixth Form Centre was built to deal with identified need in the east
of the borough (highlighted by OFSTED). Since opening in 2007, the Council
has experienced improved outcomes including on people not in employment,
education or training (halved from 06-07 to 09-10), numbers staying on to
sixth form (74% of 2008 increase in students being at the centre), A level and
level 2 attainment (4.3% and 12% annual increases respectively to 2009).

e Haringey Community Transport was set up in 2007 as a social enterprise part
funded by the Council to deliver flexible, accessible low cost minibus transport
to the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS). This has achieved outcomes
including widespread use by VCS, 90%+ satisfaction scores against 80%
targets, the Council being among the best in London on NI175 Access to
services by public transport, top quartile in London on NI17 Environment for a
thriving third sector.

e Street lighting investment. Place surveys showed crime and fear of crime to be
key concerns for Haringey residents, particularly after dark. The Council has
been able to show that investment in street lighting of £1m pa from 2006-2008
and £2m in 2009-10 has reduced the fear of crime and actual crime in the
certain areas (including Kings Avenue, Fortis Green, West Green and
Downbhills Park) where the new lighting has been installed.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 13



Page 26

Value for Money 2009/10

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

59

5.10

5.11

5.12

The Council demonstrated themes of partnership working, VFEM, improving access
to services and sustainability through the 12 case studies providing strong evidence
of outcomes from the strategic use of its different classes of assets across a number
of service areas, to address a number of key priorities.

Working with partners to jointly use assets continues to develop from good
individual examples to a more strategic approach being taken forward by the HSP.
Using assets to help VCS and the community to achieve their aims is cleatly evident
in the Council's approach.

Overall, the Council has provided a volume of clear evidence that the it focuses on
using the asset base to help deliver sustainable social, environmental and economic
outcomes for local communities, across a range of services and strategic priorities.
This was the key issue preventing the Council from achieving a better assessment
result last year, and we have concluded that this has been addressed in 2009/10.

Manage workforce effectively to achieve strategic priorities

We assessed workforce management at the Council for this first time this year. This
included carrying our detailed assessment and feedback to management early in the
year to assist in identifying areas where we would require additional information to

support the Council's ambition of receiving a strong assessment result.

The Council was Winner of the Public Sector People Managers Association award
for Human Capital Management in 2009. Average sickness levels reduced from 10
days in 2007 to 8.9 days in March 2009. This is below the average of 9.4 days from
London Councils 2008/09 benchmarking data. Also, average absence levels were 8.7
days in June 2009, below the average of 8.9 days for the London Boroughs
benchmarking club. There is evidence that the reduction is due to management
driving the change. This is an area of focus for the Council which is continuing to
take action to reduce sickness absence.

The Council's Leadership Programme won a National Training Award in 2009 and
achieved reaccreditation against a more challenging Investors in People standard in
November 2007.

The average number of agency staff employed per month decreased from 642 in
2007/08 to 623 in 2008/09. This represents 14% of the total workforce and is less
than the average 15.6% from London Councils. Additional data from the London
Boroughs benchmarking club shows the Council, at June 2009, to be below the
14.7% average and there is further evidence that the reduction is down to
management actions.

At June 2009 the Council's overall turnover rate was 12.2%, which compares to the
London Borough average. Since the Baby Peter case, the Council has considerably
reduced social care staff turnover rates by remodelling team structures and ensuring
a robust system of professional supervision is in place for social workers. Adult
Social Care turnover has reduced from 12.9% in December 2008 to 9.8% in
December 2009. Children & Families Social care turnover has reduced from 19.7%
in March 2009 to 15.4% in March 2010.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 14



Page 27

Value for Money 2009/10

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

This and the above statistics are an achievement in the context of the significant
risks to the morale and loyalty of the Council's workforce atising from the difficult
circumstances of the past 2 years.

Based on the evidence from our 2009/10 assessment, equal pay negotiations were a
good example of well managed change. Unions were involved from start which has
limited the impact on the Council, with Haringey being in the half of London
Boroughs that have reached agreement or unilaterally implemented single status
changes in the last 3 years.

The Council's organisational development team has several 'change managers' and a
project management approach to change. The SMART working programme aims to
maximise the use of Council office space and create a work environment that
enables staff to better serve residents. At the time of our assessment more than 400
staff had relocated. The programme is expected to realise £1.4 million annual
savings for the Council. Change teams obtain regular feedback from staff and 80%
of those surveyed said that support given prior to move was 'excellent' or 'good'.

The Council has a thorough understanding of its employment profile:
e 48.7% of staff are BME (borough profile 34.4% BME)
e 73.8% of employees are female (borough profile 49.9% women)

e 5% of the workforce are disabled increased from 4.6% in 2007,/08

e in 2009, of the top 5% earners 20% are BME staff (increase from 18% in 2007
but still below profile).

The Council won three national WOW! customer service awards in 2009, including

best authority. The Council also won awards at the National Customer Service
Awards in 2007, 2008 and 2009.

Overall, we considered that the Council had strong arrangements for the effective
management of its workforce.

The Council is aware of a number of significant challenges in the area of workforce
management arising from the significant changes impacting on local government
and the rest of the public sector from current and future funding reductions and
changes in the respective responsibilities of public sector and VCS organisations.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 15



Page 28

“f1An0% JuowaINd03d pue
SUTTOTSSTWIWIOD WFOJUT O PIsn e Yorgm
$9SATEUE SPOIU FNO 21Epdn 0] SNUNTOD I N\
ATUnuwod 9 JO SFoquIow *SOUWI02INO
9[qEIOUNA UO SNJ0J B (PIA STIQUIDA puE $1502 JO JurpurlsIopun peardsopim
£q 395 sarrjod pue sonfea JO 1X91U0D I} orow & Uo paseq ‘vonemndod [edo[ oy 031 Louow
1SUTESE 195 ‘Op 2M SUTPAFOAD 01 [eRUID 9] 30J an[eA 189q 913 9praoid sanIANOE Yorgm
[ pue JSHE Y3 03 [e1UD ST LoUOW JO¥ Aynuopr A[Fes[d 01 PIaU 93 IPNOUT [[IA SIYT,
onfeA 'S98UBYD AFESSI09U ) 9SEUBW [[IMN *sarnssoxd SuTpuNy 23MINJ PUE JUIIND JUEIGTUSIS
[IPUNO7) 9 YITYM YSNOIY) SWEINS JFOM M [eop 01 paderd 159 ST IT I8} 2INSTD
JO Joquinu & sopnAUT owwersoxd oy, 01 ([PUNOY) o1} UNPIM IFULYD [PUONEWIOJSULH
SOIMOSIY “UONEIO[[E 9DINO0SIF J1TAFIND MNeodroour 1€ JOO[ OS[E [[IA YIIyA) swurersord
area0dio)) 3o 30321 01 pasteuy 3uraq ST (JSHH) QWWeIsos sguraes pue £oudrdyFo Judwdwr pue asEUY 03
¢10T 93 010¢ sBuraeg pue LoudpLyY ABUIEH Y, RELS PFey YJom 03 padu [[im [PUNO) 343 “11/010T UT G'¢

s[re3op uopeludwdduy asuodsar yuowaSeue LArronrg UONEPUIWTI0IIY

‘(01 01 Y31 JO 91eds & uo) Arorrd YSIH S SUOREPUIWTW0I9F JULIYTUSIS ISOW I} SOPEIS WoIsAs
frronrd IO *£1a09% $31 JO seaFe Ao UT 2durwWI0FFad sir Suraordwr uT [IPUNOT) 9 ISISSE 03 PIPUAUT SUONEPUIWWOIIF Sapnout ue[d uonode siyJ,

ug[J uomdy Y



Page 29

JUSWISBULIA
9JUBWIOJIDJ JO PBOH

‘syuowSueIFe Arenb eiep s ounon)

o) UIISUIMIS JOUIING [[IM STONIUNJ
90UISI[AIUT SSAUTSNE I} PUE JUIWITBULIA
9JUBWIFOJIOJ FOJ 9FNIONTIS MU

pasodoxd oy, "A3o1emg L1pen() ere( oy
jo vonewruawo[dwr oy} pue sipne Lienb

‘(sSurpug Ino

UT WY [BINEI-UOU NG UOWwwWod ¢ ‘sasodind
Sunsodos 703 B1Ep WAIsAs $s9203d 01 pasmbos
UONUIAIINIUT [ENULW JO [AJ] 1) SUNPIF
ordurexs 303) yFom doyd-10ds Lue wWoIy Sursire
JuowaA0IdWI JOJ SBITE PIYNUIPT YIIM SUI[eap
UO SND0J PINURTOD € 2INSUD P[NOYS [IPUNO7) YT,

Juowssasse | aenbopeur, ue 01 uIMax epnualod
© pue oouedwod ur vonexes Aut Juadxd

v1ep Jo owwrersord SuroSuo sir i LArenb 01 Lienb e1ep jo sdourazodur oy astseyduro Sy
Surodu() ©IEP UO SND0J 01 SONUNUOD [IDUNOY) YT, WnIpay 01 SONUNUOD 1T JB) INSUD P[NOYS [PUNOD) YT, [ -¢['p
"yoen 330 3uro3 199(oxd voneiuowardwr
o Jo sysF [enualod 1sureSe soresnIw
11 ey SuPNSUD JUIPNUT 11 /(1(Z UT STUNOIDE
0:10 findeq yuerdwod QYT JO 395 3837 $I1 Jo uonpdnpoid o
1102 YO\ PoIsy WP UO SND0J PINURUOD B 2INSUD P[NOYS [IOUNOT) YT, AR
SHONEIIBREIEOO 3O PoH "80/L00T UT PIP 3 ST 3013w
1107 3snsny pa2idy WnIpaA 130do3 [enuue s11 9onpord pnoys [PUNoT) Ay, 11°¢

s[re3dp uopelwdwdduy

asuodsax Juswageue

Kproug

UOTEPUIWIWIOIY




Page 30

$92IN0SY
a1erodron) Jo 3030931(]

*$9ss9003d [ea03dde
SOV 11/010T ¥od

s[re3dp uopelwdwdduy

‘Teaordde 303 oonrwwon) upny Ay 01 SOV

ot 1U9so3d JUOWISeULA YSTY PUE Ipny
JO P 913 ULl FOYIO JIOIJO Uk 1Bt
oInsud M 94\ Teaordde pue moradx 307
preog 1UOWIFLULIN S,2ANNIIX JOrYD) o3
01 JUDWAILIG IDULUIIAOL) [ENUUY 1JBIP I3
1u9s23d $90IN0sIY 21E30dI07) JO F0III(
PU® $907A39G [ES9T JO PEoH S JIPUN0Y) YT,

asuodsax Juswageue

WP\
Arronrg

SOV 2y vo
vorurdo 3oy Surpraoxd uoym souapuadopur 1oy

21ensuowap A[FEd[d UEd PNy [eUINU] JO PBIH
ot Jep 0s 9onoexd 1saq I U UT Ipne JO
OPISINO WOJJ dUOIWOS AQ STOQUIDJA 03 PaIuasard
ST SOV SI 1B} 2INSUD P[NOYS [IOUNOT) YT,

UOTEPUIWIWIOIY

(4% %




Page 31

o Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd (Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Setvices are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33 Agenda Item 8

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Audit Committee On 2 November 2010

Report Title Housing Allocations, Lettings and Homelessness Services
Re-Inspection — Final Report

Report of  Director of Urban Environment

ot

Signed: Date: 25 October 2010

Contact Officer : Phil Harris, Assistant Director (Strategic & Community Housing Services)

Tel: 020 8489 4338
E-mail: phil.harris@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the outcome of the Audit Commission’s
re-inspection of the Council’'s Housing Allocations, Lettings and Homelessness
services and to summarise the contents of the final inspection report.

1.2 To approve the approach that the Council will take in responding to the Audit
Commission’s recommendations and findings.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 Overall, the final report is very positive and recognises the significant progress that
has been made in Strategic & Community Housing Services since the last
inspection in October 2007 and the recruitment of a new management team.

Page 1 of 10




Page 34

2.2 Although there is still much to be done, | am especially pleased with the second

judgement of ‘excellent prospects for improvement’ (page 39) and the references
to “good progress”, “strong track record” and “strengths significantly outweigh
weaknesses”. By reading this section of the report first, it is possible to gain a
good overview of the Housing Service as a whole and the journey we are on. The

preceding sections of the report look at the service in more detail.

3.1

State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

The actions taken in response to the Audit Commission’s recommendations will
help meet the following priorities in the Council Plan:

Priority 3 - A Thriving Haringey

Improving housing conditions in the private sector and in the Council's stock of
permanent and temporary accommodation, to provide families and vulnerable
households with the stability they need, making it easier for them to maintain their
links with schools, healthcare professionals and support networks.

Priority 4 - A Caring Haringey

Continuing to prevent homelessness by leading the delivery of Haringey’s multi
agency Homelessness Strategy 2008-11 and maintaining focus on effective
prevention and options services. Improving the speed of homelessness decision
making and adopting a more transparent Allocations policy. By moving homeless
households out of Temporary Accommodation and into private sector
accommodation the Council is supporting independent living.

Priority 5 —Driving Change, Improving Quality

Improving value for money through more cost-effective procurement, rent
negotiations with private landlords and more effective use of the Council stock.

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Audit Committee:

(a) Receives and notes the Audit Commission’s final report and judgements in
relation to its re-inspection of the Council’s Housing Allocations, Lettings and
Homelessness services.; and

(b) Agrees to the proposed approach for responding to the Audit Commission’s
recommendations and findings.

Page 2 of 10




Page 35

Reason for recommendation(s)

The Audit Commission’s re-inspection was a significant statutory requirement and
the outcome is therefore being reported to Members for consideration and noting.

The successful outcome of the re-inspection indicates the good progress that has
been made in Strategic & Community Housing Services since the last inspection in
October 2007 and contributes to enhancing the Council’s reputation.

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Summary

The Audit Commission inspected the Council’s Housing Allocations and Lettings
Service in October 2007 and after some delay, published its final report in
December 2008. The judgement was that the Housing and Lettings Service was a
“poor” (no stars) service with “promising prospects for improvement”.

In accordance with usual inspection practice, this meant a re-inspection would be
conducted and, in May 2010, the Audit Commission undertook a re-inspection and
extended the scope of that inspection to include Homelessness services.

The Audit Commission’s draft report was issued on 21 June 2010 and, following
minor changes, the final report was published on 12 August 2010.

It was the judgment of the Audit Commission that the Council is providing a “Fair”
(one star) service that has “excellent prospects for Improvement”.

The Audit Commission identified a number of improvements that the Housing
Service has achieved since the previous inspection, along with a number of areas
where strengths were adjudged to outweigh weaknesses. The Commission’s
summary and scoring is set out in Appendix A of this report.

In its report, the Audit Commission made 4 specific recommendations (see
Appendix B) in relation to improvements that the Council should make in relation
to the following areas:

(a) Access to services and customer focus

(b) Allocation of vacant social housing

(c) Prevention of homelessness

(d) Unit cost benchmarking and value for money

The Council is expected to act on the recommendations and to address the
weaknesses identified in the report.

Page 3 of 10




Page 36

6.8 During the period leading up to the inspection, Strategic & Community Housing
Services revised its approach to service improvement and developed the Housing
Improvement Plan for 2010-12. This sets out the Housing Service’s approach to
continuous improvement and ongoing service change and development in
response to the political, financial and social challenges the service is facing.

6.9 The Housing Improvement Plan was developed shortly after the preparation of the
self-assessment submitted to the Audit Commission for inspection and, as a result,
it anticipates to a great extent the improvements and weaknesses that the
inspectors have since identified in their report. It therefore provides a ready-made
framework within which the required local improvement actions are being managed
and monitored.

6.10 A review is being carried out to ensure that all of the Audit Commission’s
recommendations and findings are reflected appropriately in the Housing
Improvement Plan and its underlying action plans.

6.11 The Audit Commission invited the Council to submit a formal response to the
inspection recommendations, which was duly published alongside the report on the
Commission’s website. There are no material issues with the inspection findings or
the conduct of the inspection, and overall the inspection was balanced,
professional and a positive experience for the service.

7 Chief Financial Officer Comments

7.1 Homelessness is a key financial issue for the Council, as changes in Housing Benefit
levels from April 2010 have already led to a significant overspend within the Housing
budget in 2010-11 and further proposed changes are likely to exacerbate this
position.

7.2 The Issues identified within the Inspection report are covered within the Housing
Improvement Plan and are thus in the process of being actioned. These actions can
be delivered within existing resources and are expected to mitigate the impact of
Housing Benefit changes by continuing to reduce the level of Homelessness

8 Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1 The Head of Legal Service has been consulted in the preparation of this report.

8.2 This re-inspection was carried out by the Housing Inspectorate pursuant to its
powers under the Local Government Act 1999 section 10. Under the Act the
Housing Authority has a duty to ensure that its services comply with the
requirements of the best value legal framework and as such the recommendations
and findings should be implemented as part of the Housing Improvement Plan and
its underlying action plans.

Page 4 of 10




Page 37

9 Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

9.1 The inspection report includes comments relevant to the equalities and diversity
elements of the service's improvement plans and these will be reviewed and
strengthened to ensure the Audit Commission’s findings are addressed.

9.2 This will include, for example, ensuring that Equalities Impact Assessments are
completed more comprehensively, and ensuring that the approach to monitoring
diversity to ensure fair and equal access across all services is more consistent
and produces more demonstrable outcomes.

10 Consultation

10.1 Consultation took place with the Audit Commission on their findings and the draft
report. The final report has been published on the Commission's web site and the
Council has submitted a formal response, to be published alongside it.

10.2 A number of the improvement actions that address the inspection findings are
already underway and where appropriate these include provision for service user
and stakeholder consultation. This is identified in the Housing Improvement Plan
or its underlying plans, including consultation on the Housing Allocations Policy.

11  Service Financial Comments

11.1 The Service is continuing with the approach outlined in the Housing Improvement
Plan for 2010-12. The recommended service improvements will be contained
within the budgets for 2010/11 and 2011/12.

12 Use of appendices
Appendix A — Audit Commission Summary and Scoring
Appendix B — Audit Commission Recommendations

13 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

13.1 Audit Commission Report - Allocations, Lettings and Homelessness Re-

inspection, London Borough of Haringey July 2010.

13.2 Strategic & Community Housing Services, Housing Improvement Plan 2010-12.

Page 5 of 10




Page 38

Appendix A — Audit Commission Summary and Scoring

Summary

1

Haringey Council provides 'fair' allocations, lettings and homelessness services,
which have excellent prospects for improvement. The services were inspected in
2007 and found to be 'poor', with promising prospects for improvement. This re-
inspection found that services have improved in a number of areas.

There is now a comprehensive approach to preventing homelessness and offering
housing options, which has contributed to a steady reduction in the use of
temporary accommodation. Targets to limit the use of bed and breakfast
accommodation have been met, and t he standard of temporary accommodation is
generally satisfactory. However, Haringey still has a very high number of
households in temporary accommodation and the speed of homelessness decision-
making is slow.

Services are generally easy to access and a good range of information is available,
although the speed of telephone access is not meeting targets. Frontline staff
provide a good level of customer care, and appointments are made efficiently and
in appropriate timescales. There is also a sound approach to dealing with
complaints. However, service standards are not comprehensive and the approach
to obtaining customer feedback is patchy.

There is an effective approach to assessing and meeting the needs of vulnerable
adults, and a strong multi-agency approach to providing advice and support to
people experiencing domestic violence. There are arrangements to make services
accessible to all customers, and a range of surgeries and activities take place to
reach out to different groups. However, the approach to monitoring diversity to
ensure fair and equal access across all services is not consistent or comprehensive
and has produced limited outcomes.

5 The present lettings policy is not sufficiently transparent, registrations are not carried

out promptly and the register has not been reviewed for several years, although the
Council has plans to address these issues.

The Council has reduced the cost of providing temporary accommodation, while
maintaining standards, but there is also a lack of comprehensive benchmarking and
comparative data to enable the service to be sure it is delivering value for money.

The prospects for improvement are considered to be 'excellent' because appropriate
plans and strategies are in place, with actions that will improve services for
customers. There is a strong track record of improvement over recent years,
including good progress against the recommendations of the 2007 inspection.
Performance monitoring and reporting is generally robust and there has been
strong leadership of the inspected services. There is the financial and staffing
capacity to deliver further improvement and capacity is strengthened through
external funding and partnership working.

Page 6 of 10



Page 39

Scoring the service

8 We have assessed London Borough of Haringey as providing a ‘fair’, one-star
service that has excellent prospects for improvement. Our judgements are based on
the evidence obtained during the inspection and are outlined below.

Excellent {}

‘a fair service that has excellent prospects for improvement’

Prospects for improvement

Promising
A Good
Service?
Uncertain
Poor

Poor Fair Good Excellent
* * % * % &

Source: Audit Commission

9 We found the service to be fair because it has a range of strengths including:

an effective approach to preventing homelessness and using the private rented
sector has significantly reduced the level of temporary accommodation used;

the housing and support needs of vulnerable adults are being addressed;
targets for limiting the use of bed and breakfast accommodation have been met;

good quality information and an informative website are available for service
users;

there is effective working with housing associations and other partners in the
allocation of homes and prevention of homelessness;

the multi-agency Hearthstone service is providing effective one-stop help to
people facing domestic abuse;

there is effective procurement of temporary accommodation, which has reduced
unit costs while maintaining standards; and

there is a sound approach to dealing with complaints.

Page 7 of 10



Page 40

10 However, there are some areas which require improvement. These include:

the current allocations policy is not sufficiently transparent and needs updating;
housing registrations are not carried out promptly;

there are lengthy average relet times for empty council homes;

the speed of homelessness decision-making is not meeting targets;

diversity monitoring is not comprehensive and has not been systematically used
to improve service delivery;

the service does not have a clear understanding of the value for money of the
inspected services and how this compares with other organisations;

telephone calls are not answered within target times; and

service standards are not yet comprehensive, and there are weaknesses in
monitoring and reporting of performance against the standards.

11 The service has excellent prospects for improvement because:

there is a strong track record of improvement over recent years, including
progress against the recommendations of the 2007 inspection;

appropriate plans and strategies are in place, with actions that will improve
services for customers;

performance monitoring and reporting is generally robust;

there has been strong leadership of the inspected services which has supported
improvement; and

there is the financial and staffing capacity to deliver further improvement and
capacity is strengthened through external funding and partnership working.

12 However, there are barriers to improvement. These include:

progress has been slow in some areas, such as a failure to review the housing
register; and

there has not been a sufficiently strong focus on learning from other
organisations or from customer feedback.

Page 8 of 10



Page 41

Appendix B — Audit Commission recommendations

Recommendation

R1 The Council should improve access and its customer focus by:

e ensuring that service standards are comprehensive and that performance against
them is regularly monitored and reported;

e ensuring that telephone answering is accurately monitored and meets target
timescales;

e ensuring that support is available to people bidding for properties at all Customer
Service Centres;

e ensuring that the diversity of service users is monitored and that this information is
used to shape service delivery and to ensure fair and equal access to services;
completing equality impact assessments of all key service areas; and

e ensuring that customer feedback on the inspected services is regularly collected,
reviewed and acted upon.

Recommendation

R2 The Council should improve its approach to allocating vacant social rented homes by:
e reviewing the present allocation policy, in consultation with stakeholders, to ensure
that it provides customers with a clear understanding of how homes are allocated;
e ensuring that new housing applications are registered promptly;

e regularly reviewing the housing register to ensure that it records current housing
need; and

e ensuring that the allocation element of property relet times is minimised.

Recommendation

R3 The Council should improve its approach to preventing and addressing homelessness
by:
e developing an effective private sector deposit guarantee scheme for ‘non-priority’
homeless people;
e ensuring that landlords of Home Finder Scheme properties are either accredited, or
meet accreditation standards before being accepted onto the scheme;
e ensuring that homelessness decisions are taken as promptly as is reasonably
possible;
e considering the provision of a specialist mediation service, particularly for young
people leaving home; and
e ensuring that all reports of disrepair in temporary accommodation are responded to
in line with the agreed procedures and timescales.

Page 9 of 10



Page 42

Recommendation

R4 The Council should take action to improve its approach to providing value for money by
assessing the unit costs and outcomes of its services and initiatives and comparing these
with other organisations, including high performers.

Page 10 of 10




Page 43 Agenda Item 9

Haringey Council

Agenda ltem

Audit Committee On 2™ November 2010

Report title: Annual Statement of Accounts — outcome of the annual audit for 2009/10
and review of the annual governance statement

Report of: Director of Corporate Resources

Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1To update the Committee on the final outcome of the annual audit for 2009/10 and to
agree an action plan flowing from the audit of the accounts and auditor’s final report.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee agrees the management responses contained in the action plan
and receives an update on agreed actions at a future meeting of this Committee.

Report authorised by: Kevin Bartle — Lead Finance Officer

Contact officer: John Holden — Acting Head of Finance — Accounting and Control
Telephone 020 8489 3720

| of 7



Page 44

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The statutory report of Grant Thornton following their audit of the Council’'s accounts
2009/10 was approved by the General Purposes Committee on 23rd September 2010.
It was agreed that following the close of the audit the proposed action plan arising from
this audit would be approved and monitored by the Audit Committee. The actions
proposed arising from the report are included within the appendix to this report.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to General Purposes Committee on 28 June
2010 — Statement of Accounts 2009/10

Report of the Director of Corporate Resources to General Purposes Committee on 23
September 2010 — Annual Governance Report

6. Background

6.1 At the General Purposes committee meeting of 23rd September 2010, Grant
Thornton presented to members the findings from their audit of the accounts
for 2009/10, prior to signing off the audit by the statutory deadline of 30"
September 2010.

6.2 It was agreed that following the closure of the annual audit any follow up
actions that were required would be brought to the Audit Committee for
approval and on-going monitoring.

6.3  The statutory deadline for the signing off of the accounts by the Authority’s
auditors was 30" September 2010, in the event the auditors issued the opinion
on 27" September 2010.

6.4  The auditors delivered an unqualified audit opinion and concluded that the

Council has proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

20f7




7.1

7.2

8.1

9.1

10

10.1

11

11.1

Page 45

Accounts Opinion

The Council produced an initial set of draft 2009/10 accounts on 7 June 2010
(prior to submission to the auditor of the full draft accounts on 28 June), which
enabled the auditors to carry out a technical review of the accounts. This
review was fed back to Council officers prior to the production and approval of
the formal draft accounts. This enabled audit work to begin early and was
useful for the Council in obtaining timely feedback on its accounts.

The key highlights from the audit are set out below:

* The Council managed an effective closedown process and worked with the
auditors to ensure a more rapid completion of the audit than in previous
years.

* The Council continues to secure improvements in valuing and accounting for
its fixed assets although the audit findings suggest there is scope for further
development, particularly in light of the requirements under international
accounting standards applicable from 2010/11.

* The Council is developing its response to the forthcoming comprehensive
spending review and will need to work hard to deliver the anticipated
significant financial challenge ahead.

Action Plan arising from Annual Governance Report 2008/09

The Annual Governance Report agreed by the General Purposes committee

contained a draft action plan and management response for improvements

arising from the annual audit. This action plan is attached at Appendix A to this
report with the management responses.

Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations in
this report.

Recommendations

That the Committee agrees the management responses contained in the
action plan and receives an update on agreed actions at a future meeting of
this Committee.

Head of Legal Services comments

There are no specific legal implications beyond those stated in the body of this
report.

3of7



Loy

[onuo’)
pue Sununosoy
— DDUEBUL] JO pPEd] |

s1seq APWnN ¥ U0 pue £[01eIndoe papIosal
SLIQEP O [D( 2y 3o yuowdedor yuonbasqns
Lue yep 2ansud [ PUNOY) oY1 vONIPPE U]
s1seq AP ¥ uo ¢X§ 01 Pa[dU0IDI §1 31 2INSUd
pue uomsod 1593300 9y $109301 APrEanooe

‘stseq 3@8.& 230W ¥ uo s1aied ey pue

Y [DC Y1 woxg dnp 3gap snm oy yuasaad Apremooe
W)SAS DOUBUL 94 JE) PUE PAIDUOIII DI SWDISAS

O Y 1By} 2INSTD P[NOYS [IPUNOT) OY |, "UoIyse) Apun
v ur Louow sy jo 1d10001 o) Supr0293 pue woyshs
SIOUd] 11 01 wisAs 2durLY s [1>UNo’) o) Fuuodag
30] WISAS §,[IPUNOT) AU UT SSOUEIA ¥ 139[JOI INS

e PUE /() /9007 SE YOrq FEJ ST 2Pl S1G2p 28017 JeLp)
SVELSUOWOP 0 I[qE st [PUNOT) Y T, “s18aA snotadad jo
129ds1 U1 paarRdax 10U dwodwr [ood YCINN ©) uonepI
ur £y [H(] Woij onp duLEq uwuﬁ v pamoys 3unsoy angy

s1dhed xe)

Page 46

Anpiqisuodsal
pue aep
uonejuawa[dury

asuodsas [ounoy

UOTIEPUALIIIOIaY

ue[J vondy - v xipuaddy

dVS ey 21msud 01 J(INN OF UOREPI U PUE (91D () JUSWUIIA0L [ED07] PUE SIRIUNUWWOY) 11z

00T PGUIICT | 1GOP Y [D(] Y AITAIT [[IAs [DUNOT) oY ], paaidy WNIPON Joy yuounyeda( 2y3 woiy anp 101¢op YANN “ 6T z

“syeod

oaning w1 Sursire woxy wopqoad 18] v yusaoid o) 1pI0

W T/010¢ *03 pandde st ununosoe 1501300 o) dansuo

[PUNOD) O JEY) PUIITBOIIT PNOMA DA [PLIIEL JOU d3e

PIAJOAUL son[EA O ISTIYA\ TS o1 SuLmp suon9jjod

U0 3P J0 snjdims 9y} 199[593 01 JUNODY JUdWSHIpY

un,| VORDIIOD) B PIsn JOU puy [I2UNOT) Ay} jey)

1UNOOOE JuduSHipE PUIL{ GORIIIOT) € ps pra D24y

[0TIU07) B pornuapI fEQQS,::vd JdY[OS AU o1 IopUn X} EAILES

: pun,| wonas[Io) a1 01 2dueeq Merdosdde

pue Jununosoy 305 SUNuNod9E § $,[IPUNOY) Y1 JO 1A N0 Fuungy

UBDLT 10 DE U IOJSUEI) PUE PUN,| UONIOJOT) DU} UO IDLIp it - - : T

) R1JO P 10 snpdms sy 01 Sunepps somus Gununosov WNOddY 1wdwsn{py pun,j
LIOT Y2HBIN | 943 AD1ADT [[IAs [DUNOT) 94 |1 /10T U] "Paoidy WnIpaA] uonoaYjo) 2y3 Sursn xe) [PUNOd 103 SunuNodOYy - 1




Page 47

L3O§

[OTBOTYy
pue Jununodsoy
— 0JUBUL] JO PEd}]

‘suotstaoxd [eroudd 1ou pue soouepeq
103gop dyads Jsurede ore ppy suorsiaod

TJIQNOP PRIFIPISUOD DI ¥}

sooureq orads 1sureSe suorsiaoid oyew pue sioigop
[ JO A01A21 YTNOIOW) B 2INSUD PIIOYS [PUNOG) M)

yous st pue suorsiaoad [rIdUaS yons JO ISN Y MOJ[E 10U
op spavpuels Sununody Isurde popraod Apesgoads
10U DABY SOUT] 201AI9S YDTYA SIQIP Prq JsuiEde oreSnnu
01 19pJ0 W pPRY st uorsiaoid sy Jey) poolszopun

STI] "saduElEq D1100ds 03 MBI 10U PIP PUL 8O/ /00T
WO} PILAIO] PILIIED UG Pey yorym )00 0ct7 10
vorstaoxd [e30u0d v paynuapr sodureq oso Jsurede ppy
uorstaotd 3gEp prq o pue s101qEp L1puns uo Y0 N

L10T UPTEIN | IGOP PEq ¥ JEYI DINSUD [[IA [PDUNOT) 21 [, ‘PIIBy WP UOISIA03  101(d(] AIpung - S
OS2 g Juerdwod o1 10U JossE paxy
[OTUO) 21 Ul poroddI STUAWLAOW I} JEL 2INSUD 0] 10381800
pue Fununoody o 1988% Poxyy o) woxy uni s1odox o uo powrojaad
: “JOISIE0T J9SSE POXT O} WO « e S -
— 9DUBUL] JO P | : - 7 27E SIDIYD [ENUTL T JINSUD PIIOYS [PUNOT) 94 |
SR : po1eIauad $130doT 91 UO SYDIYD UONEIPUOIIT : = b
110T YoTepy [puonippe sjvsodiodur [a [puno?) oy [, poaidy WnPIRy STUDWIIAOTA] 19SSY PIXI] €T +
"po0ide 0q uEd sy SWIODTT O] I 184 oaming
UL IEL) 2J0SUD PIROYS SIY T, "B CYCINN 2} 10] posn
1odoa swes o vodn poseq $1 STUNODDE OLf} UT popupul
2¢ 03 QWOdW (NN F0] UOTL[NO[ED O} 1Y) 2INSUD
. o i PINOYS [PUNO7) Y ], 'UONEDIININ J0] [IPUNO7) 2 Aq
[0Tu07) s o G4 CAANN ponrugns uIor CYANN Y3 1od st owodur YCINN 23
. : o Suipdwon 105 pue Sursop 105 pasn o1e : ] L : '
pue Sununocy 2 J : g PUE PUN,{ UOND[O7) S} U PIPIOIDT WO JYCINN 2
- $110ddT dwEs DY) e 2IMSUD 0 WEDJ UONEXE | ! : : - : S NN T
— DDUBUL] JO PEd]] . : Br UDOMII DDUDINIP TUBDIIUGIS & porjnuapr Sunsol ang)
R [ED07 [ PUE $)J2UdE ) I APPSO YI10m I AN ek S
110 sunf [ WD) [0NU0OT) pue SUnUNoIdY oY1, pooIdy WINIPOA] s1ofedaney woyy swoouy VYANN Z17C ¢




L3099

[ORU07)
pue Sununosoy
— 2dUBUL[ JO PEI]]

010T #quia

"2ouepms Oy yia uedwod
W U0 0 $PIsoy 10§ pasn Adojopoyiow
UOLIENLA I} ADIADT [[IM [IDUNOT) O ] "Padidy

wnpop]

22uEpIng

UOREN]LA SUISNOY £Y [7) 94 YA souerdwod wnyuod
o1 0uoptad srerdoadde £4q payzoddns ST JF 2INISUD

pue ‘spisoy dumpea 103 pasn siseq A7 oy dn yoeg
01 [EUOHET 01 JUDWINDOP AJRUHO] PINOYS [DUNOT) DY ],

suoneneA J9ISOE]

Page 48

[01u07)
pue Sununody
— 2DUBUL] JO PRI

010 32qu22d(]

“Burmona woiy 1011 enuanod s fjnuops

[ SUONEI[IDUODDT 9ITIN0] 181 JINSUD PUE VS
WOJSAS D0UBUY $,[IDUNOT) o1 puk WIsAS SINTIO)
A UdIAID( padnpoId APUSIIND SUONEIIPUII
I ADIADI [[IM [IDUNOT) O], "PIRIdy

WnIpoA]

"$JUNODDE I U PIPNOTI 3¢ SaMBYY 3503I0D

O LY 2INSUD 01 PI[IDUOIIIT DFE SIY) SE ONS SIOEJIDIUL
[ENURW AQOIoym WDIsAs € 2oNPOIIUl PINOYS [IDURO”)

U], oegadIul [enuew o) Surssooord uaym 10110
UBLUTIL| O} DN UDSLIE PEY 1L} POYHUIPI SEA SWIISAS O
O BIOAIY DOUDIDYJIP © I0IYIP SSIUSSIPWOY Y3 JO
01803 N0 uf '$s3503d Butsop o jo red se 2oyd s03E)
SWINISAS D) UDOAIDG DIEJIINUT [PNULW © pue (SWIO)
wsds Jununodoe aeredos € ur pouteyUTEW ST $103Op
pue swoduy [e1us1 Surpaedos uoprwIoyu Jugunosdy

swsAs Sununodoe
[EIOUEUY PUE JUII GIIMI( UONEI[IDU0DIY

[o-Hu0)
pue 3 ununosd \%
— UUC.&ET [ JO peoL{

L10T Y2re |y

"POIRMOMED 2 01 213y vonevrdop

[ETI28 D[qrUd 01 STUIINSUOD Fupmq pur

pur] IOyl 0JUT 19)SI801 JO8SE POXY O UO PPy
$pa0201 sTurpap [puno’) oy Sursifeue spreso)
IO 0 DNURVOD [[IA [IDUNOT) O ], "Podsdy

Wnpapy

QAT 01 2A0Ww o)

s Aprepnonaed Tead vo xeof sremongy ves 1oedwr oy
JO 9718 o) se saead oarungy w sui[omp [PUNd uo 2y
uonepdrdop nise ue oremoes 0y surrd YA SNUNUOD
PINOYS [PUNOT) DU} IDAIMOL | "[ELIIEW PIIIPISUOD 10U
seas spotpow uonea1ddp [RUONURABOD Jopun podIvyd
2] PRoa 1eys Junowe a3 pue paSreyd uonepodop

) 12oMIDG 2ouIIP oy |, 'vonenaidop asnoy
[punor) 10y Axoid v se (yyn) sourmorpe sedas sofew
A IS 0F SINUATOD OUNOT) ) Ted4 snotadad oy ur sy

$ISNOY [1Puno) jo uonepada(y

9




Page 49

L0 f

[onuony
pue Sununoooy
— 2DUBUL] JO pEI[|

T10E Y21e N

11/0102
103 $89001d Sursod oY) ojur parezodiodur

2q [ woperuods pasodod oy T, pardy

WPy

“sanpayps Supzoddns oy 100303 ApPreanooe stunoooe
U UM $2InSY) 1B} 2I0SUS 01 soanpodoid Sursop
711 Jo 1ed se uonuIEOUODYT SE Yons wioyiad poys
[PUNO7) O [, syuouTRdW (I $1OSSE SE Pa1van udaq
AP291300UI PRy YOTYM UOHOESUET) Jo dnoid e pognuapr
SUONEN[EADS JOJ SIUNOIDE 2UI U POpnUl $9Ingy

PUE D[MPIYDS UONEN[EADI UDIAMII TODEI[DUOINT DY |

=

sonfea 19sse Ul so3uLyd JO UONEDYISSE])

o1

oi

6




Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 2 November 2010

Report Title. Treasury Management Practices Document
Report of: Director of Corporate Resources
Signed : .
W o DocR
Contact Officer : Nicola Webb, Head of Finance: Treasury & Pensions

Telephone 020 8489 3726

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. To present the Treasury Management Practices document for scrutiny as required
by the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That members consider and approve the Treasury Management Practices (TMP)
document attached as Appendix 1. The TMP was approved by General Purposes
Committee on 23™ September 2010.

3. Reason for recommendations

3.1 To ensure that the Treasury Management practices adopted and used by officers
have been independently scrutinised by members and also to meet the
requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice.

4. Summary

4.1 The set of Treasury Management Practice documents required by the CIPFA
Code of Practice are shown in the report. These explain how the Council
approaches each aspect of treasury management.




Page 52

Head of Legal Services Comments

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and
comments that its content and recommendation are within the policy agreed by
Council and consistent with the purposes of Financial Regulations.

Use of appendices

Appendix 1: Treasury Management Practices Document approved by General
Purposes Committee on 23" September 2010.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

o CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice

For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Nicola Webb, Head of Finance: Treasury & Pensions, on 0208 489 3726.

8.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

Treasury Management Practices

The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice requires local authorities to
produce and maintain a document of Treasury Management Practices (TMP). The
Code requires the document to be subject to scrutiny following initial member
approval. The draft document was presented to and approved by General
Purposes Committee on 23" September 2010, as part of a wider report on treasury
management issues.

The TMP document attached as Appendix 1 has been prepared using the words
provided by CIPFA and they have only been changed where necessary to make
them relevant to Haringey. A statement of how each area is applied by the Council
is provided underneath.

The document is supplemented by a Systems Document covering the detail of how
to apply the practices for use by officers in their day to day work on treasury
management.

Recommendation
That members consider and approve the Treasury Management Practices (TMP)

document attached as Appendix 1. The TMP was approved by General Purposes
Committee on 23™ September 2010.




Page 53

APPENDIX 1

Haringey Council: Treasury Management Practices (TMPs)

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 1: RISK MANAGEMENT

All treasury management activities involve both risk and the pursuit of reward
or gain for the Council. The council's policies and practices emphasise that
the effective identification, management and containment of risk are the prime
objectives of treasury management activities.

The Director of Corporate Resources will design, implement and monitor all
arrangements for the identification, management and control of treasury
management risk, will report at least annually on the adequacy/suitability
thereof, and will report, as a matter of urgency, the circumstances of any
actual or likely difficulty in achieving the organisation’s objectives in this
respect, all in accordance with the procedures set out in TMP6 Reporting
requirements and management information arrangements. In respect of each
of the following risks, the arrangements which seek to ensure compliance with
these objectives are set out below.

1.1 Credit and Counterparty Risk Management:

Definition

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk of failure by a counterparty to meet its
contractual obligations to the Council under an investment, borrowing, capital,
project or partnership financing, particularly as a result of the counterparty’s
diminished creditworthiness, and the resulting detrimental effect on the
Council’s capital or revenue resources.

CIPFA Principle

The Council regards a key objective of its treasury management activities to be
the security of the principal sums it invests. Accordingly, it will ensure that its
counterparty lists and limits reflect a prudent attitude towards organisations
with whom funds may be deposited, and will limit its investment activities to the
instruments, methods and techniques referred to in TMP4 Approved
instruments, methods and techniques and listed in the annual Treasury
Management Strategy Statement. It also recognises the need to have, and will
therefore maintain, a formal counterparty policy in respect of those
organisations from which it may borrow, or with whom it may enter into other
financing arrangements.

Application in Haringey

The Council's counterparty list is drawn up with the advice of the Council’s
Treasury Management advisers and reflects the Council’'s cautious risk
averse approach. It is approved annually as part of the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement.




Page 54

1.2 Liquidity Risk Management

Definition

Liquidity risk is the risk that cash will not be available when it is needed, that
ineffective management of liquidity creates additional unbudgeted costs, and
that the Council’s business/service objectives will be compromised.

CIPFA Principle

The Council will ensure it has adequate though not excessive cash resources,
borrowing arrangements, overdraft or standby facilities to enable it at all times
to have the level of funds available to it which are necessary for the
achievement of its business/service objectives.

The Council will only borrow in advance of need where there is a clear
business case for doing so and will only do so for the current capital
programme or to finance future debt maturities.

Application in Haringey

The Council states in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement its
borrowing strategy including whether it intends to borrow in advance of need.
Officers maintain a cashflow forecast to ensure that adequate cash balances
are available to meet the Council’s obligations.

1.3 Interest Rate Risk Management

Definition

Interest Rate risk is the risk that fluctuations in the levels of interest rates
create an unexpected or unbudgeted burden on the Council’s finances,
against which the Council has failed to protect itself adequately.

CIPFA Principle

The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates with a
view to containing its interest costs, or securing its interest revenues, in
accordance with the amounts provided in its budgetary arrangements as
amended in accordance with TMP6 Reporting requirements and management
information arrangements.

it will achieve this by the prudent use of its approved financing and investment
instruments, methods and techniques, primarily to create stability and
certainty of costs and revenues, but at the same time retaining a sufficient
degree of flexibility to take advantage of unexpected, potentially
advantageous changes in the level or structure of interest rates. This should
be the subject to the consideration and, if required, approval of any policy or
budgetary implications.

Application in Haringey

The Council has access to information from its Treasury Management
advisers and other financial commentators about the likely future course of
interest rates to enable it to assess future treasury risks. The majority of the
Council’'s loans and investments are fixed rate and the proportion of those




Page 55

which can be variable is set out in the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement annually.

1.4 Exchange Rate Risk Management

Definition

Exchange rate risk is the risk that fluctuations in foreign exchange rates
create an unexpected or unbudgeted burden on the Council's finances
against which the Council has failed to protect itself adequately.

CIPFA Principle

The Council will manage its exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates so as
to minimise any detrimental impact on its budgeted income/expenditure
levels.

Application in Haringey
Currently the Council does not have any significant transactions in foreign
currencies, so exchange rate risk is not an issue for the Council.

1.5 Refinancing Risk Management

Definition

The risk that maturing borrowings, capital, project or partnership financings
cannot be refinanced on terms that reflect the provisions made by the Council
for those refinancings, both capital and current (revenue), and/or that the terms
are inconsistent with prevailing market conditions at the time.

CIPFA Principle

The Council will ensure that its borrowing, private financing and partnership
arrangements are negotiated, structured and documented, and the maturity
profile of the monies so raised are managed, with a view to obtaining offer
terms for renewal or refinancing, if required, which are competitive and as
favourable to the Council as can reasonably be achieved in the light of market
conditions prevailing at the time.

The Council will actively manage its relationships with its counterparties in
these transactions in such a manner as to secure this objective, and will avoid
over reliance on any one source of funding if this might jeopardise
achievement of the above.

Application in Haringey

The Council monitors its maturity profile to ensure it is as even as possible to
avoid substantial refinancing in any one year. Targets for the maturity profile
are set as a prudential indicator in the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement annually. When borrowing decisions are being made, the maturity
profile is one of the factors considered when determining the length of time to
borrow for.




Page 56

1.6 Legal and Regulatory Risk Management

Definition

The risk that the Council itself, or an organisation with which it is dealing in its
treasury management activities, fails to act in accordance with its legal powers
or regulatory requirements, and that the Council suffers losses accordingly.

CIPFA Principle

The Council will ensure that all of its treasury management activities comply
with its statutory powers and regulatory requirements. It will demonstrate such
compliance, if required to do so, to all parties with whom it deals in such
activities. In framing its credit and counterparty policy it will ensure that there
is evidence of counterparties’ powers, authority and compliance in respect of
the transactions they may effect with the Council, particularly with regard to
duty of care and fees charged.

The Council recognises that future legislative or regulatory changes may
impact on its treasury management activities and, so far as it is reasonably
able to do so, will seek to minimise the risk of these impacting adversely on
the Council.

Application in Haringey

The Council’s Financial Regulations, which form part of the Council’s
Constitution, contain evidence of the power to act as required by section 151
of the Local Government Act 1972.

The Council will confirm, if requested to do so by counterparties, the powers
and authorities under which the Council effects transactions with them.
Officers establish the powers of those with whom they enter into transactions
for the first time, including any compliance requirements in respect of a duty of
care and best practice.

1.7 Fraud Error and Corruption and Contingency Management

Definition

This is the risk that the Council fails to identify the circumstances in which it
may be exposed to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other
eventualities in its treasury management dealings, and fails to employ suitable
systems and procedures and maintain effective contingency management
arrangements to these ends. It includes the area of risk commonly referred to
as operational risk.

CIPFA Principle

The Council will ensure that it has identified the circumstances which may
expose it to the risk of loss through fraud, error, corruption or other
eventualities in its treasury management dealings. Accordingly, it will employ
suitable systems and procedures, and will maintain effective contingency
management arrangements, to these ends.




Page 57

Application in Haringey

The Council has in place a Scheme of Delegations to ensure that only
authorised officers can carry out transactions on behalf of the Council. A
systems document is in place which details all the procedures to be followed
by officers.

1.8 Market Risk Management

Definition

This is the risk that, through adverse market fluctuations in the value of the
principal sums the Council borrows and invests, its stated treasury
management policies and objectives are compromised, against which it fails to
protect itself adequately.

CIPFA Principle

The Council will seek to ensure that its stated treasury management policies
and objectives will not be compromised by adverse market fluctuations in the
value of the principal sums it invests, and will accordingly seek to protect itself
from the effects of such fluctuations.

Application in Haringey
The Council does not currently invest in instruments whose market value can
vary, so it is not exposed to this risk.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 2 - PERFORMANCE
MEASUREMENT

CIPFA Principle

The Council is committed to the pursuit of best value in its treasury
management activities, and to the use of performance methodology in support
of that aim, within the framework set out in its treasury management policy
statement.

Accordingly the treasury management function will be the subject of ongoing
analysis of the value it adds in support of the Council’s stated business or
service objectives. It will be the subject of regular examination of alternative
methods of service delivery, of the availability of fiscal or other grant or
subsidy incentives, and of the scope for other potential improvements.

Application in Haringey
The Council measures the performance of its treasury portfolio on a quarterly
basis using the following measures:
e Value weighted credit score
Time weighted credit score
Weighted Average Maturity
Interest rate payable
Interest rate earned




Page 58

Value for money from service providers is tested regularly through tendering
processes.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 3 - DECISION MAKING AND
ANALYSIS

CIPFA Principle

The Council will maintain full records of its treasury management decisions,
and of the processes and practices applied in reaching those decisions, both
for the purposes of learning from the past, and for demonstrating that
reasonable steps were taken to ensure that all issues relevant to those
decisions were taken into account at the time. The issues to be addressed
and processes and practices to be pursued in reaching decisions are detailed
in the officers’ detailed systems document.

Application in Haringey

The Council's treasury management team maintain a complete audit trail of all
decisions taken within the limits set out in the annual Treasury Management
Strategy Statement approved by the Council.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 4: APPROVED INSTRUMENTS,
METHODS AND TECHNIQUES

CIPFA Principle

The Council will undertake its treasury management activities by employing
only those instruments, methods and techniques detailed in the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement, and within the limits and parameters
defined in TMP1 Risk Management.

Application in Haringey

The Treasury Management Strategy agreed by the Council on an annuai
basis sets out the approved instruments, methods and techniques to be used
in treasury management. The Council's treasury management team
undertake activities within the limits of the current strategy.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 5: ORGANISATION, CLARITY
AND SEGREGATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES AND DEALING
ARRANGEMENTS

CIPFA Principle

The Council considers it essential, for the purposes of the effective control and
monitoring of its treasury management activities, for the reduction of the risk of
fraud or error, and for the pursuit of optimum performance, that these activities
are structured and managed in a fully integrated manner, and that there is at
all times a clarity of treasury management responsibilities.




Page 59

The principle on which this will be based is a clear distinction between those
charged with setting treasury management policies and those charged with
implementing and controlling these policies, particularly with regard to the
execution and transmission of funds, the recording and administering of
treasury management decisions, and the audit and review of the treasury
management function.

If and when the Council intends, as a result of lack of resources or other
circumstances, to depart from these principles, the Director of Corporate
Resources will ensure that the reasons are properly reported in accordance
with TMP6 Reporting requirements and management information
arrangements, and the implications properly considered and evaluated.

The Director of Corporate Resources will ensure that there are clear written
statements of the responsibilities for each post engaged in treasury
management, and the arrangements for absence cover. The Director of
Corporate Resources will also ensure that at all times those engaged in
treasury management will follow the policies and procedures set out.

The Director of Corporate Resources will ensure there is proper
documentation for all deals and transactions, and that procedures exist for the
effective transmission of funds.

The Director of Corporate Resources will fulfil all responsibilities delegated to
them in accordance with the Council’'s policy statement and TMPs and, if a
CIPFA member, the Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management.

Application in Haringey

The officers carrying out treasury management activity have clear roles and
limits of responsibilities and embedded in these is the principle of segregation
of duties. These arrangements are subject to an annual internal audit to
ensure the controls in the procedures are sufficient.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 6: REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
AND MANAGEMENT INFORMATION ARRANGEMENTS

CIPFA Principle

The Council will ensure that regular reports are prepared and considered on
the implementation of its treasury management policies; on the effects of
decisions taken and transactions executed in pursuit of those policies; on the
implications of changes, particularly budgetary, resulting from regulatory,
economic, market or other factors affecting its treasury management activities;
and on the performance of the treasury management function.




Page 60

As a minimum:

The Council will receive:

e an annual report on the strategy and plan to be pursued in the coming
year
a mid-year review

¢ an annual report on the performance of the treasury management
function, on the effects of the decisions taken and the transactions
executed in the past year, and on any circumstances of non-compliance
with the organisation’s treasury management policy statement and
Treasury Management Practices.

The General Purposes Committee will receive regular monitoring reports on
treasury management activities and risks.

The Audit Committee will have responsibility for the scrutiny of treasury
management policies and practices.

Application in Haringey

The draft annual Treasury Management Strategy is reported initially to General
Purposes Committee. It is then presented to Audit Committee for scrutiny
before Cabinet and final approval by full Council in February each year in time
for the new financial year.

The mid-year report and out-turn reports are presented to General Purposes
Committee, Cabinet and full Council.

General Purposes Committee are responsible for monitoring treasury
management activity and this is carried out through the production of quarterly
reports.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 7: BUDGETING, ACCOUNTING
AND AUDIT ARRANGEMENTS

CIPFA Principle

The Director of Corporate Resources will prepare, and the Council will approve
and, if necessary, from time to time will amend, an annual budget for treasury
management, which will bring together all of the costs involved in running the
treasury management function, together with associated income. The matters
to be included in the budget will at minimum be those required by statute or
regulation, together with such information as will demonstrate compliance with
TMP1 Risk management, TMP2 Performance measurement, and TMP4
Approved instruments, methods and techniques. The Director of Corporate
Resources will exercise effective controls over this budget, and will report upon
and recommend any changes required in accordance with TMP6 Reporting
Requirements and management information arrangements.

The Council will account for its treasury management activities, for decisions
made and transactions executed, in accordance with appropriate accounting



Page 61

practices and standards, and with statutory and regulatory requirements in
force for the time being.

Application in Haringey

The costs of the staff working on treasury management are shown in the
Corporate Finance budget and the interest earned and payable are shown in
the Non Service Revenue budget. These expenditure and income budgets
will be brought together and reported when setting the Treasury Management
Strategy.

The Council accounts for all its treasury management transactions in
accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 8: CASH AND CASH FLOW
MANAGEMENT

CIPFA Principle

Unless statutory or regulatory requirements demand otherwise, all monies in
the hands of the Council will be under the control of the Director of Corporate
Resources, and will be aggregated for cash flow and investment management
purposes. Cash flow projections will be prepared on a regular and timely
basis, and the Director of Corporate Resources will ensure that these are
adequate for the purposes of monitoring compliance with TMP1.2 Liquidity
risk management.

Application in Haringey

All the Council’s funds are aggregated for cash flow and investment
management arrangements. The only exception to this is pension fund
monies, which are invested separately in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management & Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2009.

A cash flow forecast is prepared at the beginning of the financial year and
maintained on a regular basis to manage the Council’s liquidity risk.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 9: MONEY LAUNDERING

CIPFA Principle

The Council is alert to the possibility that it may become the subject of an
attempt to involve it in a transaction involving the laundering of money.
Accordingly, it will maintain procedures for verifying and recording the identity
of counterparties and reporting suspicions, and will ensure that staff involved
in this are properly trained.

Application in Haringey
In accordance with recommended practice the Council maintains an anti
money laundering policy. The policy is to prevent, wherever possible, the




Page 62

organisation and its staff being exposed to money laundering, to identify the
potential areas where it may occur and to comply with all legal and regulatory
requirements, especially with regard to the reporting of actual or suspected
cases. The Council has nominated the Head of Internal Audit & Risk
Management to be the responsible officer to whom any suspicions relating to
transactions involving the Council will be communicated. The responsible
officer is conversant with the requirements of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002
and ensures relevant staff are appropriately trained and informed so they are
alert for suspicious transactions. The responsible officer has made
arrangements to receive and manage the concerns of staff about money
laundering and their suspicion of it, to make internal enquiries and to make
reports, where necessary, to National Criminal Intelligence Services (NCIS).

The officers carrying out treasury management have clear procedures to
identify the borrowers and lenders they deal with. The procedures specify the
authentication process which must be followed when dealing with a lender or
borrower for the first time.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 10: TRAINING AND
QUALIFICATIONS

CIPFA Principle

The Council recognises the importance of ensuring that all staff involved in
the treasury management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties
and responsibilities allocated to them. It will therefore seek to appoint
individuals who are both capable and experienced and will provide training for
staff to enable them to acquire and maintain an appropriate level of expertise,
knowledge and skills. The Director of Corporate Resources will recommend
and implement the necessary arrangements.

The Director of Corporate Resources will ensure that Council members
tasked with treasury management responsibilities, including those responsible
for scrutiny, have access to training relevant to their needs and those
responsibilities. Those charged with governance recognise their individual
responsibility to ensure that they have the necessary skills to complete their
role effectively.

Application to Haringey

All council members are invited to attend training on treasury management
when they are elected and on a regular basis to keep their knowledge and
skills up to date.

Officers' training needs are reflected in their development plans and they keep
their knowledge and skills up to date through information and events from the
Council’s treasury advisers and CIPFA.

10



Page 63

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 11: USE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE
PROVIDERS

CIPFA Principle

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions
remains with the organisation at all times. It recognises that there may be
potential value of employing external providers of treasury management
services, in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. When it
employs such service providers, it will ensure it does so for reasons which
have been submitted to a full evaluation of the costs and benefits. It will also
ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their
value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to
regular review. And it will ensure, where feasible and necessary, that a spread
of service providers is used, to avoid over reliance on one or a small number
of companies. Where services are subject to formal tender or re-tender
arrangements, legislative requirements will always be observed. The
monitoring of such arrangements rests with the Director of Corporate
Resources. '

Application in Haringey

Contracts are in place with the Council’s bankers and treasury management
advisers. These are subject to regular review and re-tender in accordance
with the Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules, which form part of the Council’'s
Constitution.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICE 12: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CIPFA Principle

The Council is committed to the pursuit of proper corporate governance
throughout its businesses and services, and to establishing the principles and
practices by which this can be achieved. Accordingly, the treasury
management function and its activities will be undertaken with openness and
transparency, honesty, integrity and accountability.

The Council has adopted and has implemented the key recommendations of
the Code. This together with the other arrangements detailed in this
document, are considered vital to the achievement of proper corporate
governance in treasury management, and the Director of Corporate
Resources will monitor and, if and when necessary, report upon the
effectiveness of these arrangements.

Application in Haringey

The Director of Corporate Resources ensures that systems are in place to
deliver proper financial administration and holds monthly meetings with
officers responsible for treasury management to review the operation of the
function. The annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement and
quarterly reports are published on the Council’s website, along with the
annual Statement of Accounts to ensure transparency.

11



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65 Agenda Iltem 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item:
Audit Committee On 2 November 2010

Report Title. Progress Report on Counter Fraud Activity Relating to Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

Report authorised by: Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources

Signed : UW&/ 2| Lq (O

Report of and Contact Officer : lan Biggadike, Deputy Head of Benefits and Local Taxation
Tel: 020 8489 1939

Email: ian.biggadike@harinqev.qov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information only

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To advise and update Members on the Counter Fraud performance of the Benefit
and Local Taxation Service from the 1° June 2010 - 30" September 2010.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1 The Council has a published Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. The activities
stated in this report directly relate to the Council maintaining effective counter —
fraud activities as defined by this strategy

3. Recommendations

3.1 That Members consider and note this report and the work being carried out by
the Benefits and Local Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity.

4. Reason for recommendation
4.1 For Members to remain informed of the activity of the Fraud Investigations Team
and are able scrutinise this accordingly.




Page 66

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable.

6. Summary

6.1  The Benefits and Local Taxation Service continues to maintain and further
develop an effective approach to counter benefit fraud activity. -

6.2  During the period 1/7/10 to 30/9/10, BLT achieved 39 sanctions and a further 6
cases referred for prosecution.

6.3  Key work priorities for the Fraud Investigation Team in Quarter 2 have been
prosecutions, the National Fraud Initiative, Housing Benefit Matching Service,
pro-active operations with the Police and Homelessness and joint working with
the Department for Work and Pensions.

7. Chief Financial Officer Comments

7.1 The Chief Financial Officer notes the contents of this report and confirms that the
counter-benefit fraud activity undertaken is provided within the overall benefits &
local taxation cash limit.

8. Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report,
and advises that there are no specific legal implications which arise out of the
contents.

8.2  Legal Services will continue to support Benefits and Local Taxation, in terms of
advice and prosecution work, in order to maximise the level of Government
subsidy available for recovering overpaid housing benefit.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1 Not applicable.

10. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

10.1  The activities detailed in this report relate to the day to day work of the Fraud
Investigation Team. All counter fraud activity is undertaken with due regard and
adherence to the Council’s Equalities and Community Cohesion policies.




Page 67

11. Consultation
11.1  No consultation was required for the production of this report.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 The role of the Fraud Investigation Team does not attract direct financial subsidy
from Central Government as there is no specific statutory duty to maintain
counter fraud activity in respect of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

12.2 However, there is a clear expectation on Local Authorities to maintain effective
counter fraud activity

12.3 The Benefits and Local Taxation Service currently maintains a dedicated team to
tackle benefit fraud. The role of the Fraud Investigation Team is clearly defined in
the Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy relating the Housing Benefit and Council
Tax Benefit.

12.4 The Council has reviewed options available, in order to make effective use of
existing resources in addressing fraud prevention and detection. The Councils
corporate anti fraud policies and strategies are being reviewed in order to reflect a
new Corporate Anti Fraud Structure, combining the in-house fraud investigation
resources within internal audit, with those in the Housing Benefits Investigation
Team

13. Use of Appendices / Tables and photographs

13.1  Appendix 1 - Detailed breakdown of sanction cases achieved during Quarter 2
2010/2011

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1  The background working papers are located within the BLT Fraud Section,10
Station Rd, Wood Green N22.

15. BACKGROUND

15.1 Counter fraud performance is primarily judged against successful outcomes in
respect of Prosecutions and Sanction based activity. Fraud staff are
empowered to investigate suspected benefit fraud and have a range of
sanctions that can be applied to those who admit to fraud or where there is
sufficient evidence to warrant a prosecution.




Page 68

15.2  The Council has adopted an Anti - Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit. This specifies the type of activities
which underpin effective counter fraud activity.

16 COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

16.1  Performance of the Fraud Investigation Team for the 2nd quarter 2010/11 is
summarised in Table 1. (figures in brackets are for the equivalent period in

2009/10)
Table 1
Sanction Type Number 2" Quarter | Status

Issued Target

Caution 28 (13) 3 Accepted
Admin Penalty 5 (5 Accepted
Prosecution 6 (8 : Guilty
Total 39 (26) 40 (34) |

16.2  Sanctions performance during quarter 1 and quarter 2 finished just three cases
short of the 60 case target for the period.

16.3 Partnership working with Police operations, the DWP Fraud Investigations
Team and other local authorities fraud operations have continued in Quarter 2.

16.4 In addition, we continue to work closely with Safer Communities to provide
intelligence towards the Gang Action Group initiative.

17 Overpaid Housing Benefit

17.1 From 1/6/10 to 30/9/10 - counter fraud activity has identified £631,321 in
overpaid Housing and Council Tax benefits and a further £2,516. in
Administrative Penalties.

17.2  Central government subsidy paid in relation to overpayments is at a rate of 40p
to the £1.00 or 40%.

17.3 Consequently, it can be estimated that £252,528. has been recovered from the
DWP in subsidy. This then leaves a 60% shortfall against benefit expenditure.



Page 69

17.4 The subsidy arrangements are designed to incentivise local authorities to

17.5

17.6

recover overpaid Housing Benefit. If an overpayment is fully recovered, the
Local Authority can keep the recovered income as well as the 40% subsidy,
thus receiving 140% return on the benefit paid out.

We are still unable to report our performance with recovery of overpayments
due to problems with the IT software which is currently being resolved.. It is
anticipated that we should be able to report recovery performance in the
Quarter 3 audit committee report. However, we have undertaken a manual
exercise which has revealed that 71.5% of overpayments created through
detection of fraud have recovery action currently in progress - either recovered
in full or ongoing recovery action taking place

The Department for Work and Pensions have implemented the “one strike” rule
for all sanctions, where an overpayment occurs solely after 1/4/10. This strike
will be that 4 weeks benefit will be lost for a first sanctionable offence and a
further 13 weeks lost for a subsequent offence. This rule is primarily enforced
by the DWP and applies equally to all sanctions including Prosecutions. This
could have financial implications for the Council in terms of Public Sector rent
arrears and Council Tax recovery depending on the case types investigated
and the outcomes involved. As yet, no cases have been affected by the one
strike rule, as all sanctions so far in 2010/2011 also relate to previous years.

18 Anti-fraud and corruption strategy

18.1

18.2

18.3

The Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy - relating to Housing Benefit
and Council Tax Benefit is published on the Council’s website, along with the
Sanctions Policy and advice on how to refer suspected cases of benefit fraud.

The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy outlines the types of activities the
Council will use to both detect and prevent benefit fraud. Since April 2008 the
Benefit and Local Taxation Service has re-focussed activities to remind benefit
claimants of the importance to report changes in their circumstances to ensure
that the right benefit is being paid.

The Council has reviewed the options available for the detection and prevention
of benefit fraud, in order to make the most effective use of existing resources
available across the Council. As a direct result of this review. the responsibility
for the investigation and prevention of Housing Benefit fraud will be moving
from the Benefits and Local Taxation Service to a newly formed Corporate Anti
Fraud Team,



Page 70

19 Successful prosecutions in 2010/11 so far

19.1 Below are details of prosecutions that have taken place in 2010/2011 so far.

A husband and wife team who contrived a tenancy in order to claim £58,000 in
Housing Benefits over 6 years — sentenced to a year supervision order and 80
hours community service respectively - £1,500 costs awarded

A man who had £67,000 in a safety deposit box received £26,000 in Housing and
Council Tax benefits over a 2 year period — sentenced to 3 months custodial
suspended subject to a supervision order and imminent confiscation proceedings

A woman living with a working partner who also had £38,000 in capital — where
£33,000 in Housing and Council Tax benefits was claimed over 6 years —
sentenced to 10 months custodial sentence

A man with a false passport and adopted identities for a further 6 people — claimed
£17,000 in Housing Benefit over 2 years — sentenced to 15 months custodial

A man who failed to notify he left his address 2 ¥ years before - received £25,500
in Housing Benefit — sentenced to 150 hours community service and £1,300 costs

A man who had stolen an identity for Council Tax benefit and other financial frauds -
received £670 in Council Tax benefits over a year and a half — sentenced to 2 years
for the range of offences involved and will be deported upon release

A man who was working full-time received DWP and LA benefits totalling £22,500
over a 4 year period — sentenced to 20 weeks custodial sentence suspended for 2
years — 150 hours community service and £800 costs



jelgai Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 2 November 2010

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report — 2010/11 Quarter 2

Report authorised by: Director of Corporate Resources U/@L Aa—
25l

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the work undertaken during the second quarter by
the Internal Audit Service in completing the 2010/11 annual audit plan and reports
issued for outstanding 2009/10 audits together with the responsive fraud
investigation work. In addition, to provide details of the work the Council’s personnel
division has undertaken in supporting disciplinary action taken across all
departments by respective council managers.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to provide assurance that managers have implemented agreed recommendations
and improvements.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the audit coverage and progress
during the second quarter 2010/11.

3.2 That the Audit Committee notes the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations.

3.3 That the Audit Committee confirms that the actions taken during Quarter 2 to




Page 72

address the outstanding recommendations are appropriate.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the completion of the annual
internal audit plan and the implementation of agreed recommendations as part of its
Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, progress reports are provided on a
quarterly basis for review and consideration by the Audit Committee.

4.2 Where further action is required or recommended, this is highlighted in the covering
report and associated appendices and included in the recommendations for the
Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control throughout the authority. This report looks at the
work undertaken in the quarter ending 30 September 2010 and focuses on:

e Progress by Deloitte and Touche on internal audit coverage relative to the
approved internal audit plan, including the number of audit reports issued and
finalised;

e Progress in implementing outstanding internal audit recommendations with
special attention given to priority 1 recommendations;

« Details of investigative work undertaken relating to fraud and/or irregularities that
fall outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team, including
information in respect of disciplinary action taken; and

e Information on the reasons for the creation of a corporate anti-fraud resource
within Audit & Risk Management.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within the Audit & Risk
Management business unit and from records held by Deloitte and Touche and the
Council’s corporate Human Resources business unit.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no direct legal implications arising from the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments
8.1 The Chief Financial Officer supports the contents and recommendations set out in




Page 73

this report and in particular the progress reported both in relation to the in year
planned activity and also following up outstanding recommendations from prior
years.

8.2 The proposed integration of the audit and housing benefit investigation functions
should enable the council to be best placed to deal with a likely increase in fraudulent
activity as set out in paragraph 19.5. Furthermore, a review and update of the
Council’s corporate anti-fraud policies and strategies is planned and will be provided
to the Audit Committee to review and approve as set out in the terms of reference.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community.
Improvements in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the
Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report. Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant
Directors and Directors during the audit process and in the production of individual
internal audit reports and follow up programmes. Their comments are included in
the final report which is circulated in accordance with the agreed intemal audit
reporting protocol. ‘

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche is part of the five year contract which was
awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in compliance with EU
regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are contained and
managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices

13.1  Appendix A — Deloitte and Touche Progress report
Appendix B - In-house Team - investigations into financial irregularities
Appendix C - Council-wide disciplinary information




Page 74

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Anne Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15.Performance Management Information

15.1 Although there are no national or Best Value Performance Indicators, local performance
targets have been agreed for Audit and Risk Management. These form part of Corporate
Resources’ reporting processes, but are detailed below for information. Table 1 below
shows the targets for each area of audit activity monitored and gives a breakdown between
the quarterly and cumulative performance.

Table 1

Pi Ref. | Performance Indicator 2" Quarter | Year to date | Target

A1l Audit work Completed vs. Planned 71% 75% 95%
programme

A2 User satisfaction (1 = low, 5 = 4 3.71 3.75
high) '

A3 Time taken to complete 6.5 weeks 8 weeks 8 weeks
investigations (2009/10 referrals)

A4 Priority 1 recommendations 100% 100% 95%
implemented at follow up

16. Internal Audit work — Deloitte and Touche contract

16.1 The activity of Deloitte and Touche for the second quarter of 2010/11 to date is detailed at
Appendix A, which also includes reports issued for outstanding work from the 2009/10
audit plan. Members of the Audit Committee receive detailed summaries of all projects for
which a final report has been issued on a monthly basis to allow for any issues to be raised
and discussed in a timely manner. Appendix A provides a list of all final reports which have
been issued during the quarter, together with detailed summaries of all reports which are
issued with a ‘limited’ assurance rating.

16.2 Appendix A also provides detailed summaries of all recommendations which were
previously recorded as outstanding at the time of the follow up audit work. Members have
been monitoring the progress and implementation of these at each Audit Committee to
ensure that managers were taking appropriate action to address outstanding
recommendations. As at 30 September, only 2 recommendations from prior years
remained outstanding: 2005/06 - One Priority 2 recommendation remains outstanding; and
2007/08 - One Priority 3 recommendation remains outstanding. Work is ongoing to address
these and internal audit is satisfied that managers’ actions are appropriate to manage the



Page 75

lower priority risks facing the Council. Internal Audit will continue to monitor implementation
of recommendations to ensure appropriate actions are taken to mitigate identified risks.

16.3 A summary of all follow up audit projects for 2008/09 work which have been undertaken is

also included in Appendix A (pages 16-17). We have followed up on 181 recommendations
to date and found that 174 (96%) have been implemented and seven are no longer
applicable which means that there are no outstanding recommendations from 2008/09. All
Priority 1 recommendations followed up to date, where the deadline for implementation has
passed, have been implemented.

16.4 A summary of all follow up audit projects for 2009/10 work which have been undertaken is

also included in Appendix A (page 19). We have followed up on 29 recommendations to
date and found that 27 (93%) have been implemented and one is no longer applicable. Ten
out of eleven Priority 1 recommendations followed up to date, where the deadline for
implementation has passed, have been implemented. One Priority 1 recommendation is in
progress and the details provided at Appendix A.

16.5 To date, 71% of the planned annual programme of work for quarter 2 has been delivered,

the reduced delivery was as a result of clients’ annual leave commitments. To date, 75% of
the planned work has been completed, although at this stage there are no issues identified
at this date which will prevent the 95% annual target from being achieved. Ongoing

monthly contract monitoring reviews ensure that performance levels are kept under review.

16.6 In conjunction with the Director of Corporate Resources, Directors are kept advised of the

17.

17.1

outstanding recommendations and any actions required to ensure that implementation of
recommendations is achieved. From 2008/09 onwards, the implementation of Priority 1
recommendations has been included in the performance reporting requirements for all
departments. During quarter 2, Internal Audit are satisfied that managers have been taking
appropriate action to address the issues raised in the original recommendations prior to
2008/09.

In-house Team - Fraud investigation/Irregularities

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Internal Audit investigates all cases that fall
outside the remit of the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team and the Information
Security Policy. Appendix B details the individual cases that were completed by the In-
house Team to date in 2010/11 and any which were brought forward from 2009/10. The
listing at Appendix B also includes any referrals made using the Council’s whistle blowing
policy which were investigated by Internal Audit. During the second quarter, one
whistleblowing referral was made.

17.2 Within the second quarter, six new cases were referred to Internal Audit for investigation,

and four cases were completed during the quarter involving Council employees. The four
cases completed took 6.5 weeks on average to complete, within the agreed performance
target of 8 weeks. Internal Audit work closely with officers from personnel and the service
involved to ensure that the investigation is completed as quickly as possible.



Page 76

17.3 The Council has a dedicated email address and telephone number, which is advertised on
the Council website, by which members of the public can report instances of suspected
fraud or irregularity. The In-house Team manage and monitor these referrals. During the
second quarter, 22 referrals in relation to new allegations were made via the Council’s
email reporting facility. Of these, seven related to housing benefits issues and were referred
to the Housing Benefit Fraud Investigation Team for further review, five related to potential
subletting frauds and five referrals related to school admissions. Five referrals were not
related to fraud within Haringey Council.

17.4 The In-house Team also investigates claims of non-receipt of Council cheques. In the
second quarter of 2010/11, there have been no referrals for investigation and no losses to
the Council. Improvements in procedures, including the introduction of ‘positive pay’
whereby the council’s banking team receives information on cheques before they are
cleared, and new cheque security measures have reduced the opportunity for attempted
fraud in this area.

18. Council-wide disciplinary statistics

18.1 Appendix C details the number of disciplinary suspensions and/or action taken in the
second quarter of 2010/11. The data is taken from SAP and the information has been
provided by the Council’s Human Resources business unit in line with Council statistics
reported elsewhere.

18.2 During quarter 2, the number of disciplinary cases investigated was 63, with 45 remaining
‘open’ at the end of the quarter. The average length of time taken to resolve disciplinary
cases in quarter 2 was 91 days, a reduction of 14 days compared with the average length
of time for the previous quarter’'s cases. A number of the complex cases which contributed
to the increased length of suspension time in recent quarterly reports were resolved during
quarter 2, although some remain under investigation.

19. Corporate Anti-fraud Resources

19.1 The National Fraud Authority (NFA) was established as an Executive Agency of the Attorney
General’s Office in October 2008, to take forward the Government's response to fraud,
building on the 2006 Fraud Review. The NFA has estimated that the total scale of fraud
against the public sector amounts to some £25 billion per year, comprising £18 billion of
losses in tax through fraud and £7 billion of fraud against public sector expenditure,
including social security benefits.

19.2 There is a significant challenge to public sector organisations in attempting to balance
resources between fraud prevention and detection. As economic circumstances alter, the
motive and opportunities for fraud may increase and developing issues like identity
verification arise with the increase in online services. This applies equally to fraud threats
from inside and external to the organisation.



Page 77

19.3 Frauds may be opportunistic attempts by individual members of staff, customers, or
contractors to obtain a financial advantage. The sums involved in any one such case may
be small, but these can mount up to significant losses of public money if there are a lot of
cases involved. At the other end of the scale, departments may suffer from more
systematic and premeditated attacks by organised crime groups. These may be fewer in
number but the losses in each case can be substantial. In some cases fraudsters may work
in collusion with the department’s staff. As well as diverting money that should be spent on
public services, fraud can undermine the position of honest citizens and businesses and
support the activities of those involved in other serious crime.

19.4 The Council faces a wide range of different risks from internal and external fraud, some
examples of which include:
» Benefit claimants who fail to declare all earnings, income or capital, or who conceal
family circumstances, to obtain benefits to which they are not entitled;
e People who claim discounts and allowances on Council Tax and/or NNDR to which
they are not entitled;
People obtaining social housing to which they are not entitled:
Contractors who claim payment for work which they have not carried out;
People or businesses who claim grants to which they know they are not entitled;
Employees colluding with contractors or criminals to defraud the Council by e.g.
selling details of departmental records to allow fraudulent claims for payment;
» Organised criminals obtaining large sums, for example through committing organised
fraud against the benefit system through stolen, forged or counterfeit documents, or
through creating fictitious benefit claims.

19.5 The Council is facing considerable challenges to deliver services whilst making substantial
savings over the next three years. Combined with the current economic situation, the risk
of fraud is considered to be increasing. The Council has reviewed the options available in
order to make the most effective use of existing resources in addressing fraud prevention
and detection. Combining the in-house fraud investigation resources within internal audit
and housing benefits would enable the Council to utilise existing skills in developing a
corporate pro-active approach which would focus attention on key and emerging risks, for
example as part of the National Fraud Initiative exercise.

19.6 An integrated and risk based corporate approach would therefore assist the Council to
better understand and manage the risks of fraud because this:

* Fits in with good corporate governance. A major element of good corporate
governance is a sound assessment of the Council’s business risks. Fraud risk should
be managed in the same way as managing any other business risk and should
therefore be approached systematically at both the organisational and operational
level;

» Helps with developing a range of measures which apply proportionate and well
targeted pressure at all levels of the problem;

» Can help achieve a cost effective approach in tackling fraud by focusing on areas of
greatest risk and where efforts may have the greatest impact; and



Page 78

Can be a helpful way of communicating to staff what the Council is trying to do and
what is expected from them. This can also assist in providing a deterrent message to
potential fraudsters that they are unlikely to succeed in attempts to commit fraud
against the Council.

19.7 In combining the audit and housing benefit investigation functions, an integrated and risk
based approach to tackling fraud can be developed. It will enable a clear policy and
strategy to be developed and implemented for the Council which will:

Help to understand the size of the problem;
Understand the types of risk;

Assign responsibilities for tackling fraud;

Prepare plans for managing fraud risks;

Monitor performance and review plans as necessary;
Set targets;

Implement measures to tackle fraud;

Prevent and deter fraud; and

Detect, investigate and impose sanctions.

19.8 There is no single package of measures which can be applied universally by and across
the Council to tackle fraud. Measures need to be tailored to the type and size of risk faced
in order to try and achieve savings, or prevent fraudulent expenditure. Savings could arise
in three ways:

The direct effects from recovering amounts defrauded;

The preventive effect, through improved future compliance from those previously
detected committing fraud; and

The deterrent effects on others as they learn of the greater efforts being taken to crack
down on fraud.

19.9 It is planned to review and update the Council’s corporate anti-fraud policies and strategies
in order to reflect the new corporate anti-fraud structure. These will be provided in due
course to the Audit Committee for review and approval, in accordance with the
committee’s terms of reference.



Page 79

V XIANAddV

0102 1290100
PYT PNV [EUIDIU] J0IIS OFqN SYINO, 29 SNIO[

Adguriey Jo ysnoJog uopuory
I1102/010¢

310day NIpNY [ewIdjuy 7 J9)1eng)
JIpNYy [ewrdjuy



Page 80

11/0107 Hoday 7 Jouend) — 1pny [ewsaiu] Ao3utieH Jo ysnolog uopuoy

S AJIqIsuodsay JO JUSWRIEIS
(g e 01/600 SUOTIEPUAWIIIOOSY € -| AILIOUJ SuIpueIsIng - podoy] sse1801d payrEIed
e 01/6002 — 219%.L, dn-mof[og
Qrreee PSP PPPP PR 60/300Z — 21q®.L, dn-mo1[04
Qe 80/L00Z — SUOTEpUAUIIIOday dn-mof[o,
e 90/S007— SUOTIBPUAIL000Y dN-MO[0]
e SJUSUISSOSSY — S[00YOS Ul PIEPUEIS JUWSTEUJ| [EOUBUL]
T L0108 DU 016002 SO poIEIag] pus ioday ssosfoig upny
[ e e eeeeeeeeeesiiaareeeaateeeesreee e sreeeeanae e aaes e eetee e ——eaaeraeeae e et ee s enrne s AIPWIWING SATIN0OXE
aded

SIU9IU0))

V XIANAddY

11/010Z7 LYOd Y LIANV ATYALIVAO - LIANY TYNJALNI ALLIOTHA



Page 81

1 98eg 11/0107 Hodoy 7 11reng) — 1pny [ewaiu] AefuLiey] jo ySnolog uopuo

"(Bunsa ], 1035139y YSTY) SIOTAIDS IQUISJA] 29 AOBIOOWI(] [BOO]

pue (1035130 sy sye10d10)) K197 %9 YIEOH

‘uoneiadQ pue Juswaeury A)9Jes Arunuwiwio) A 100

JuowaFeuRy Yojed 29 SnIA AJunosg

‘Bunsa 1, 1015139y STy — s901A10S Apradoiyg sjeiodio))

‘suonem3ay [eroueul] qim souerduwo) — (SJAD) SIIAISS Lodsuel],
‘suonen3ay [eoueuly yim douerdwo) — (SJAD) s901AIG SuLe)

:panssi s)r0day [eury — [1/0102  1911en) jo Arewrung/s)qSnqSiyg Aoy

SUOLEPUSWIWIO21 9o1oe1d 1599 10/pUe SIOPRW JOUTW - ¢ AILIOL
UONO. JUSWATRURW [€00] 10 SUONBPUSUIIIOIAL IS0 - 7 A1140rig
JUSWISFRURW I0TUSS JO UOUSYE 9} J0J senssT Iofewr - 7 djnionig

:8911039)e0 JUIMO[[0f Y} 0} SUIPIOOE PISTILIOLId ST SUOTIEPUSUIILONAI INO ISPUIIAI B S

"9OPIUIO)) JIPNY A1) 0} paprodar pue pansst st poda1 [euy o Swn 9Y) Aq SIMOJO [OUN0Y) Aq pajuswaidu
U00q dAeY ApesIje AW SUOIEPUSWILIOISI PUB JIPNE oY) JO W) oY) I8 SWIIsAs oY) Jo sme)s oy} J09[JoI SI[qe} PayoeNne oyl

-sprodas
JIpne [euly [eNpPIAIPUT 9Y3 Ul Pa[Ie1dp AN S1e ‘uon[dwiod 10§ SUI[PLSp 3y} pue 19010 9[qisuodsal oy} SUIPN[OUI ‘SUOHEPUSUIIOI]
9y} SSAIPPE 0} SUOLOE SIOYJQ "PISISe Usdq dAey HodaI STY} UM PAIYSIYSIY SISSIUNEIM [0NUOD AUB SSOIPPE 0) SUOTIBPUSUITION]
[V "pensst Suloq podor [euy oy} 0} Joud PIssnOSIp d1e saINdSIp Aue pue ‘SISOLJO [IOUNO) YIM PadISe dIe SUOHBPUSUILLONDI [V

1sanbax
uodn spodax 31pne o jo sordoo [y yim popraoid 9q osfe [[IM 9NIWIWO)) Y} JO SIQUIDJA "PIUNUO)) JIPNY Y} JO SIOQUIDJA
0} sIseq AJyjuowW & U0 papIA0Id ST YOIym UONEULIOIUT ATEUNNS oY) JOYI050) smeip 110dal Y[, “UOIBULIONUT O] papnjour st surpuy
JIpNE 3OUBINSSE PO S} JO ATEUIUNS PI[IBIOP AIOW V 'SHPME [BUISIUL INO JO 9SIN00 oY) SULMP PAYUSPT USS] SARY YOIYM [IOUN0.)
oy pue sjuountedop enprarpur Jumwey sysu Aoy 9y} WSIYS1Y 03 pauSisop osye st wodal SIY) JO JBULIO) SYJ "SWN I9A0 peSeurtn
3ureq a1e SYSLI MO UO UOHBULIOJUI YHIM SIOQUIS]Al OPIACId [[IM UOIYM YIOM SWId)SAS KoY I0] [9ALI) JO UONISIIP SY) JO UOHEOIPUI
UB SOAIS pUB SOUBINSSE [ELURISYNS IO [N PIASIYOE SABY YOTYMm SeIIe 3s0y) uo uoneuwioyur sapraold podar oy -sSeis [euy je mou
oIe Yorym sprodal [[e Jo s[relop Jurpniout 1eak [ewuruy [[/010T dY} 10§ S9NIWWO)) PNy 9y} 0} 1odar 1o1renb puosss mo st STy,

uondInpo.uy

Arewiwing dARNIXY

V XIANAddV IT/0107 LHIOdHY LIANV A TIALAVAO - LIANV TVNIAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 82

7 ofeqd 11/0107 Hoday 7 101end) — Jipny [euiaiu] L93uLiey jo ygnoiog uopuo]

“‘uoneiuow[duI [[0J SI1 10J JUSWSeURW Aq UIAIS US9q SBY
ouI[pEap PISIASI & pue pajuswa]dut A[[f Usaq JOU SeY UOTIEPUIUIOdAI | Aoug suQ -a[qeorjdde 1a8uo] ou st ouo pue pajuswduwr
Anpred uooq sey ouo ‘pojuouoldunr useq Ay (%E6) LT JBYl PUNOj pue SUOHEBPUSUILIONI 6T dn poamoro} aaey om 93ep 0],

01/600¢

-poruouo[dw usaq dAeY ‘possed sey UonRIUSWS[UI 10J SUIPBSP AU 1YM “31EP 0} dn pomoJ[0J suoEpUSUIIOdal | AJLIOL] [V
-a1qeordde 105u0] ou oIe USASS pue pajuSWSIdul Usdq dARY (%96) L1 18y} PUNOY PUE SUONEPUSUILIODAT [§] dn pamor[o] aAey 9

60/800¢

STy SS2Ippe 0} Sur0FUo SI SIoM ‘SUIPURISING SURWAI UOHEPUSUIIO0I ¢ IOl SUQ

80/L00T

STIp) SSOIPPE 03 SUI0FUO SI J10M ‘SUTPURISINO SUIRWSI UOHBPUSIUIO31 T AJLIOLI] SUQ

90/500T

:SMO[[0] St aIe J10m dn-mO[[0] IO JO SINSAL Y,

SUONEPUIWI0INY SIBIX JIorid Jo d) moqiog

*7 101IeNQ) UL S[OOYDS 0} PONSST IABY OM [OTYM $110da1 9pn[out J0U S30P IS dA0qe Y],

-3ur1s9 I, 103SI130Y JSTY SOOIAIOS IOqUIDIA 29 AOBIOOW(] [0
pue ‘sa1npadold uoneoyuw A SutoduQ juswikojdwy e
‘ssounyme JO S91eOUID) e

‘(soueInssy juowaSeue]y 109[01) 9010 el e

‘(JUSWUOIIAUF UBQI()) JUSUWIATRURIA Q0UISQY e

:S)IpnE SUIMO[[0} oY} 10§ ¢ JopenQ) ul 110do1 JeIp e pansst os[e om ‘U 1PNV [BUID] [1/010T dU3 JO ed sy

V XIANAddV 11/0107 LHOdAd LIANV A TIALIVNO - LIANY TVYNIILINI ALLIOTAd



Page 83

¢ oSeq 11/010T Woday 7 1ourend) — yipny [ewatu] Aefuurer] jo ySnorog uopuoy
0 0 0 V/IN 1 01/60/80 | 010T 3nv (8UDSS, 1915130y JSTY) SMIAISS IDqUISIA] %9 AORISOW(] [890]
I [ I < | enueIsqng | 01/60/€0 | 010Z unf (1918139 sy arei0di0)) Kiojes 29 Wesk]
0 I 0 V/N [enuelsqns | 01/80/1€ | 010T IOf uone1adQ pue JUSWOSEUEIN A19JES KIIUNTIWO)) A 1))
I I 0 V/N fenueisqng | 01/8/€1 | 010T In[ JUSWATEUBIA YITeq 2 STUIA AILIN00S
I I 0 V/N [enueisqng | 01/L/2C | 010T AeN 3unso | 10)SI3oY JSTY - $901AIeg Anadolg ajerodio)
0 S I V/N [EnueIsqns | 01/L/2C | 010T1dv | suone[n3ey [eroUeul] s S0ULTAWO) — (SIAD) SSOIAISS HOdSTeI]
C L 0 VN fenuesqng | 01/L/61 | 0107 3dy SUOHE[NBaY [RIOUBUL] Yiim dueNdWI0)) — Sao1Aleg Sulale )
11/010T
0 6 0 V/N panwr | 01/60/91 | 010T 9od ToJsuel] ee(
0 3 I VN payuwry | 01/8/4¢ | 010z idy UI[eSH [EIUa
0 1 0 = [enuelsqns | 0I/8/L1 | 010T 92 SjouSg SUISNOY
0 I 0 V/N V/N OT/L/ST | 010T Ae 1591, A19A009Y 12ISESI(] | IOMaUILT,]
0 € S V/N PWIT | OI/LAT | 600T AON URIP[I) 3U}99§ wnIAsy paruedmoooeur)
0 4 0 = fenuesqns | OI/L/Z1 | 600T AON s10)Tpa1))
0 € 0 = [enueisqns | 01/L/9 010C uef Xe] [rounoy
01/6007
JREE S s o e
A [ L M N L i A SRS R L ) i _
- (Buoug ‘PABILJ0 | AR | pemn ng
- SHONEPUIWTHOIIY U | BUEMSSY | Jo Aeq | ua
Josquunpg | R e

"UOTJRULIOJUL

(SIOQUIdIN 10§ pap1aoid os[e are sFuler doURINSSE  [ENUBISQNS, IO [[N], SAIS0AI JOU Op YoTym s)Ipne [[e JO SOLIBWIUINS PA[IRIo(]

POPIWWON yIpny oy 03 papodar pue pansst s110dax [euy oy duin oY) £q SI001J0 [10UN0)) £q pajuswadun usaq
dAeY ApeaI[e Aew SUOHEPUSUILIONSI oY) JeY} PojoU 9q ISNUI I] “JIPNE oY) JO ouIm dy3 Je SWISAS oY) JO SNIEIS ) PuUE ‘SIBAA [erOURUT)
L1/010C Pu® 01/600T 94 01 d1e[a1 18T 950y} FUIMOYS ‘[ [/010T JO OM} Joprenb Ul PasiEUY S)IPNE Oy} JN0 S198 91qe1 3uImoroy oy,

V XIANHAddV

:Arewrming ssda801g ypny

IT/0107 LHOdTH LIANV A TIALIVNO - LIAAV TYNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 84

¥ 98

11/010Z Moday 7 Jowreng) — 1pny [ewdiu] As3uliey] jo ySnoiog uopuo]

oyp  paidope 9Aey [UNO) YL

qouno)
oY) UTYIIM JJBIS [[B 01 PAIDAISP UAq JOU SBY ST 210J3191}
pue sisn x§OD 01 oyrads ATuo SI ‘IOAOMOY ‘9SINOD
STY], "BIEp JO IoJsuen pue SUI[pPUBY Sy} pue UOHEULIOU
jo Sunpew 29A1dSj01d Oyl SIPNOUL  ISINOD Jurures|
-0 (XSDD) JPUENXH 9INOSS JOOUUO) JUSWIUISAOD SYL

‘AaIdISSVIONN

‘uor1o1dwoo 9SINOO PUE S}[NSI 198N U0 Hodar pue
I07IUOW 0} AJI[eUoouny 9y} sey OS[e 9IeMYOs A ], ‘Sururen
paseq Jondwoo 9jo[dwod 0} Jeis SmoO[fe jey) rewod
SuruIes[-9 Ue SUTRIUOD “JOULIEH ‘9IS JOURHUL S [IOUNOT YL

‘S301AQP 953U} OJUO BIEP JO SISSEBIO dP10ads
Suipeo] WOIj JjeIS JOLNSAI 0} PAYSI[eISs Uq SARY
S[ONUOd pue 9A0qe 10 LDHLOYd Jo Subjew aAno9j01d
e (M BIED IOJSURI 0] SIOIAOp 95eIOIS IR orqeyod
Suisn woy jeis spquoid Aorjog o8es) orqeidodoy
201A9(] 951015 9[qEHI0J/SUIOM SO 900/dNV UL

‘rouuew 9jeudoidde pue
2INO3S © UI 0§ SUOP SI SUOIBSIUESIO [BUIIXS 0} PILdjsues)
ejep 1oy dinsud dpoy o3 doeld Ul SIUIWNOOP sureping
pue ampadoid ‘Aorjod jo Ioquinu e SEY [OUNOYH SYL

:M0]0q PAIST] SIB YOTYM JO SUIOS ‘A[LI0JORJSHHES
Sunerodo 9q 0] PIAISSGO AIoM  S[ON[UOD JO Iaquinu Y

JSU 18 $9A100[qO WIISAS

eiep yomym AJnuopt djoy o) paurejuIew oIe
sp102a1 91ep 03} dn pue Sjemooe ‘vR[dwo)

1938139y Surreys eje(q

“gJep SII SaIeyS [[OUNO0)) Y} YoIym M
suonesIuegIo [BUINXD 9} YIIM PIYsI[qeIsd
uoaq oaey sjooojoid  Juueys wleq

s[od03j0.14 sulreys eie(q

*KJAT)ISUSS/K)ITeIUOPY UOD §)1 UO Paseq
A[Surpioooe podIeur SI Bjep Jjey} oInsud
01 ooeld ur ore sourPpINg pue paUYIP
uooq 9ary sSuppewl UOUROYISSE[ Ble(

uonedYIsse[) eleq

*SUOTJBSTUBZIO [BULINIXD
0] ®IEp JO IOJSURI} QmMO3S dY} punoIe
ssouoreme pue Sumen ojenbope  yIm
1ye1s apiaoxd 03 ooeld Ul oIR SJUSWOTURITY

SSAURIEMY pue Suruiel], AJLIndIS ejeq

"SUOT}BSIURSIO [BUIIX
01 ©1ep JO IQJSueI) O} I0] PAYSI[qe)Se U]
oaey saurepms pue soinpaooid ‘SAI[04

SOUIPPINS PUE SAINPIV0IJ ‘SN0

:seo1e FuIMO[[0f

01/600T

poywry | oy Ind YOTYM SOSSOUNEdM SUIOS OIE QIS WAISAS OU) UIIIA | 9U} 1900 O} UOYELOpUN SBAM IOM 3Ipny 1Jsuei] v1eq
vonﬁzmwﬂ adoag BoIR JIpNY
SSHIRVINIAAS dATIV.LAd
V XIANAddY I1/0107 LHOdTY LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TVNIALINI ALLIOTad




Page 85

G a8ed

11/0107 Hoday] 7 1airen() — npny [eutetu] Asouurey] jo ySnolog uopuo]

$I901JJO S[BIUNOJE UE 0} Poudisse pue

paunap A[feuuioj ueaq 194 jou aAry (OYIS) 19O STy
UOLRULIOJU] IOTUSS Ay} JO sonIfiqisuodsal pue sa[ol Y],

:OPN[OUI PUNOJ 9IOM SISSOUNBIM QIOYM SBAIR O |,

"9Jep MIARI [000301d 9Y) pue [0o0301d
9} JO IoUMO [1OUN0)) 9y} ‘smyeys [000301d ay} ‘[0d0301d A1
Jo uonduosap Jouq e ‘[ooojoid ayy 0} s1oupred/sjuedronred
oyl ‘[000j01d SuueyS UOPBULIOJU] O} JO SuIBU dY)
P10991 0} paugIsop SI 19181391 oY ] 'SUOTESIUETIO [BUIOIXD
M PIUSI[QRIS? 9ABY [IOUNO) 9y S[0d0j0id Juueyg
uoneuLIOjU] Joyluow pue Ajnuopr dpy 01 paysijqeIss
U99q sey I19)sI301 (000301 SuleUYS UONBULIONU] UY

pue
‘pareys SI BjEp [IOUNO)D) WOYM M SUOTESIURZIO [BUIOIXD
puB [OUNO) dY) UIMIAQ S[0J0101d SulreyS UONBULIOU]
Surysiiqeise 103 padooasp ueaq aAey saje[dwo) [050301g
Sureyg uoneuuoju] A9FuurRl, pue ApIND ISUONIORIJ
VvV — [000j01d Suueyg uoneuuoju] Ad3uueH, Y[
‘somnpaooid [esodsiq
pue 3uloqe] ‘Sulpuel UOHBULON] L00/dSI ©
pue ‘uoneuLIOJU]
Ayissely 01 moH - v xipuaddy  e€00/dSI ©
“Ad1104 UONBOYISSE[D) UONBWLIOJU] £00/dSI ©
Ralitiali oy
Suppewr oAno9jord Y} UM Q0UBPIOIOE UL padIew
SI UONJBWLIOJUL S, [1OUN0)) 3y} 1y} a1nsud djoy 03 padojorap
uoaq oaey sampadoird pue sapiod 3umo0} oyl

‘owoyog SUIBIA 9A1109101d [BUONBN NloMmawrel] Ao1[0d
AILINo9g S JUSWIUIdA0D) oY} PIm Juerdwiod SI dWdyds
SIyl, -owayods Supew 2Anodjoxd [AYDAS JOL pue
Hmmomw A<HHZmQEZOU ‘@d.LONILSTY HUmFOME

[PUIDIXS  UOIYM TJIM Paleys oIe  s)os

‘uonesiuesio

JouBINSSY

sSmpuyy Kaysmmg

adoog

BaIR JIpNYy

V XIANHddV

I1/0107 LHOdTY LIANV A TIALAVNO - LIANV TYNIAINI ALLIOTAA




Page 86

9 28ed

11/010Z Hoday] 7 Jouend) — 1Ipny [ewaiu] A98uLiel Jo ySnoiog uopuo|

ou op sajedwa) [000101d SuLRYS UONBULIOJU[ SY]

¢]0003014 3uLIeyS UOHBULIOJU]
paoiSe ue Aq pouoddns jou are jey [OUNO) S} SSOIOE
soe(d ur syuowoFueLe FULIRYS BIEP JO JOqUINU B I8 SI9Y],

‘Korjod
oY} M 90UEpI0dodE Ul paxrew Apanisod Juweq jou st
syuounredap [OUNO)) UIYIM P[OY UOHBULIOJUT ‘UOT)BULIOJUT
ouno) jo Suppew oanodjoxd Syl 10§ PAYSI[qeISsd
uoaq oAey sourPpms pue sampaooid ‘saorod yInoyy

{ouno)
oy} unpim sompaooid pue soprjod Furodar jusprout
pue Sunyrew 2Anodj01d ‘AIN0as BIRp O} JO JJeIS SWOS
1sSuoure SMIIAISUL JIPNE INO SULIND SSIUSIEME JO S[OAJ]
moy Aqeouss oy Aq popoddns sem swyy -Sururen oy
pate1dwos sey [UNo) 9} UMM Jjels Jo d3ejusoad rews
KI9A © A[UO “JoULIBH UO J[qR[IBAR ST AJLUNOS UOYBULIONU],
pue uonoajold eIE(, I0] SOSIN0O JuILIEd[-d YFnoyy

“Surppuey
ejep uo Sururen [EULIO] AUB PIAIIAI JOA 10U d10Jo10U)
oABY [10UNO)) dY} SSOIOL JJel§ ‘[erod Jurures|-o jouLieH oy}
U0 9[qB[IRAR SpRW puE Poja[dwiod Uusdq 19K Jou Sey S[Npow
Surwres(-o  Surjpuey eiR( pUB JUSWRFEURIA SPI00Y, YL

JJe1s [[e 03 paynquIsIp
pue pasieuy ‘pasoidde Ajeuuioj usaq oA jou SBY Ing
600C 19q0100 Ul payeIp sem AJI[04 U0nd9301d BlE( YL

‘paroxdde pue pajuoMoOp A[[euLioy
u0oq 194 j0u sey Ao1jod YSTY UOHBULIOIU] S [IOUN0) YL

‘SIUMQ 19SSV
uonEWLIOJU] 0} PoUSIsse pue pauYSp ARSI UdAQ 194 jou

JIURINSSY

QAR [IOUNO)) JY) UNJIIM S}asse uoleuLojul Jo drysieumQ

adoog

BAIR JIpNY

V XIANHddV

I1/0T07 LIOdAY LIANY ATIALIVNO - LIANV TYNJALINI HLLIOTAd




Page 87

L 98eq

11/0107 Hoday 7 1apend) — 1pny [ewoiu] LeSutiey Jo ySnorog uopuo|

‘suonesiuedIo [BUIOIXS JIm
Seq [1ouno)) 2y} eyl sjuswaguelre SuLRyS UOT)BULIOJUL o)
I0J POYSI[qeISd 9q P[noys S[000}014 SULILYS UOLBULIOIU]

¢ Ko1104 uoneoyIsse[) uonewioju], pasoidde
§ [IOUN0)) Y} YHM SOUBPIOOOR Ul PIIBW PUB PIIJIIUSPI
9q pInoys [uno) Sy} UM P[AY SIOSSE UONBULIOJU]

J1ouno)) 9y} SSoIde JJels [[B
0] PaIdATdp pue pasoidde ‘pejojdwod 9q pnoys snpowr
Suruwres]-o  Surjpuey eje pue JUSWITRURIA SPI00SY, S,

‘Kotjog sy uoneuuioju] ue do[oAdp pnoys [PUNo)) sy,

‘wes I, JuswaFeuR A JOTUSS IO pIeog O JO IOqUIOWI € 0}

pauSisse 9101 9y} pue pouyep A[[eurio} aq pinoys (OYIS)
I901JO STy UoleULIOJU] JOTUAS B JO SanIIqIsuodsal oy,

‘JJeis [[e 01 panqLusIp pue pasieuy ‘pasoxdde
AJ[eutioy 9q pnoys A91j0d UOI09301d BIR( S [IOUN0)) 9y,

‘paunyap AJ1es[o 9q pInoys saniqisuodsal

pue s9jo1 119y} pue pajurodde aq pnoys [10UN0)) Y} UIYIM
PIoY 218 1BY] S)9SSB UONBULIOJUT 9} 0] SISUMO UOTJBULIOJU]

‘SMO[[0] SB oI SUOT}EpPUAWI0daI 7 Ajutoud oy,

"BAIE 9} Ul S]o1U00 dA0idwr d[ay [[1m UOTyMm SUONBPUSUILIODS]
7 Aol oumu pasiel 9ABY oM JIOM }IpnE INO JO 3[NSI B SY

‘[ouno) ay)
ssooe 2oe[d ul sjuoweuee JuLieys eiep oY) 10J aoe[d ur
§[020301d a1} [[B 9pPN]OUI J0U S0P 9I0JAIAY} PUB dJBP JO INO
pue a1o1dwoour st 19351821 oy} ‘193SIF9Y (000301 FuLeyg
UONBULIOJU] UB PAYSI[eISd Sey [Ouno) 9y} y3noy[y

pue ‘ejep pareys oy} SuLNO3S
pue Suludjsuen spoyewr pasoidde oyy ‘pareys Suieq

JdueInssy

ejep jo sadAy ayy Suipnpour 10] suorsiaoid Aue apnpour

s3urpuyy Aavsmers

adoog

vaIR JIpny

V XIANAddV

IT/010C LIOdAH LIANY ATHALIVAO - LIANV TVNIAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 88

g a%ed

11/0107 Hodoy 7 1ourend) — 1Ipny [eursiu] AsSuLeH jo ySnorogq uopuo]

U0 pap10oa1 sem doe[d Ut u1dq YD Y} JO p10dal ou ‘9sed
suO0 Ul JBY) punoj sem I (vdD) yoeorddy swreI301d
a1e)) o1 JO 1ed I8 OYM SIOSN 9OIAIOS 9AY JO o[dwes € 10 e

:pN[OUI PUNOJ 9I9M SISSIUNBIM JIOYM SBOIR Y,

-opdures 2y} ur syjuow oY) 10§ d0e[d J00}
sSuneow pue paonpoid arom spoder Suuojuowr jo3png e

pue ‘wes ], A19A000y pue uoddng 2y} 0} [eL1o§a1
1107} SUIMO[[0] IOS[) SOTAIOS © JO JUSWISSIsSe ue a3a[duod
0} USYE) oW} oY} I0J paiojuowr St pue B[ UL SI [NV o

‘we9 |, A19A009Y pue
poddng oyy Aq 0 paLed USq SUIARY JUSWISSISSE 119U}
10 pue (LYV.ILS) Wed], AIDA009Y pue JUOWISSISSY ULOJ
Hoys oY) Aq PausaIos Sureq [eld)al 1oy Jo doed ur sem
PI0991 ® ‘S[BLI9JO1 19sN 201A10SJusned oAl Jo djdwes e 10 e

‘aoeqd ur st Aorjod JUOWISSISSE S Y o

:MO[0q PAISI] SIE YOTYM JO SWIOS ‘A[LI0JOBISTIES
Sunerodo 9q 0} PIAIOSGO dIdM  S[ONUOD JO IdquUINU Y

‘Tonuo) Arejo3png e

PUE {PIAISIDY SIJIAIDS 10] SJUSWAR e
“10ddng po1oani-J19S JO AIOAIP e
‘UOTJUOAIU] A[TeH PUB UOHUIAJL] e

SI9pIAOIL]
0IAIDS  JO MIIADY PpuB  SULIONUOIN e

‘a8eyoe a1e) sjeudoiddy Jo sjuowSSIssy o

‘(Bunyew UOISIOP PUBR DOUSISJUOD ISED
guipnpour) SpIaN SIUSID) JO JUSWISSISSY o

‘S[e119J9Y JO SUTUSIOG puE SUIPIOOY e

STy 1B
ATenu9lod 9Ie OyMm S}Npy JO UONBOYHUID] e

“JSLI J& $9AT}00[qO wId)sAs :seaIe FUIMO[[0] 01/6002
pajrury oY) QwWos ﬁa soi\s m@mmoaxmog aIe QIoY) WIR)SAS dY) 5559 oy} I9A0D O} zoxwtmnns sem SHOM 1PNy | I[RdH [BIUSIA
I A DIANAS ALINGWINOD ¥ TMNLTND ‘rinav
"S1SRQq EEmE B UO oﬂb«mmuooc a1oym) pajepdn pue
POMOIADI ST J9)SISOY [000101J SulleyS UONBULIONU] 9Y] e
pue ‘ejep pareys ay}
01 porjdde aq 0} sjuowESURLIE AJLINoss/Ujpuey poaoidde
oy} pue POLIJSURN 9q UEO EIEP poleys Y yowm £q
spoyowr paroidde o ‘pareys Sureq UONBULIOJUL JO adKy
o 01 Surureysad s[1elop 9pNOUL 0} Pajepdn puB POMIIAI
9q pInoys 32&58 ﬁooouoi macmam uoneuULIOJU] Y] e
QouUBINSSY 3t i..w )| smels adoog BAIE JIPNY
V XIANAddV I1/0107 LHOdAY LIANV ATIALAVAO - LIANV TYNIHINI ALLIOTAd




Page 89

6 28egd

11/0107 Woday] 7 Iouen() — JIpny [ewIsiu] Ka3uwrey jo ySnorog uopuo]

oy} JO $9AN02[qo pue uonoaIp J139jens oYl YIM oul|
Ul oI SJUOJUOD S)I JeY) 2INSUS 0} ‘pajepdn pue pomaisdx
9q PINOYS [ENUBJA JUSWOSBURIA 9IB)) PUR JUOWISSISSY YL o

:SMO[[O] S 9Ie SUOTIBPUSUIUIOIAI T AJLIOLLJ Y,

o
U0 9pRW U93(q SBY Y SI9SN 9JIAISS B JO PI0IAI B IIoyMm
AJII2A 01 S)09yo jods o A1ed os[e pinoys juswoSeura
oS (Vd4D) yororddy swwreidord are) v 0} 109[qns
SI JOSn JDIAIDS B 9IOUM SISBO [[B ‘Qry Ul PIOJaI 0) pasu
9} JO PAPUIUIAI 9q PINOYS JSTLL], Y} UIYIIM JJBIS JUBAJ[OY e

:SMOJ[0] SB SI UOTJBPUAUILIODAI | AJLIOLIJ oY,

“BOIR O}
ur sjonuod aaoxdunt djay o3 suonepuswrrodar 7 Ayuoud 9oy
pue | Ajuoud QUO pIsIel 9ABY 9M JIOM JIPNE INO JO }[NSSI B Sy

"S3UTUL0I0S [e119)a1 Jo uone[dwoo 10§ o[qisuodsal jjels
Aq paA1Ra1 Sururen oy} JO 9OUIPIAI pue [ YV.LS Aq sSurusaios
[erdya1 Jo uwonddwod oy) Joj 2de[d ur ore sdjou oInpadoid
e} 20UapIAd 9oe[d ur Sudq Weyo amyonns jeis (LYVIS)
wed], AIDA0O9Y pUB JUSWISSISSY WLDJ, MOUS JO O0USPIAD
‘Jels ueASdI 0} papiaoid uedq pey Juluen UOHUSAIUI
Aled pue 3Bululel) JUSWISSISSE MSLI JBY) QOUSPIAS }Ipne
3y} JO dwI} dY) JB J[qR[IBAR A[IpEAI JOU SBM UOHBULIOJUI 91}
se seale Jo oquinu e ut 3unsa) 93o[dwoo 03 91qe JoU Sem JIpNy

“ULI0J YelIp Ul [[1s
ST 11-600C A891enS uonuoAdld synpy SuiprenSojeg oy] e

pue {Aq pajuowoydur 9q 0} SeM UOIIOR o)
uayM IOJ SUI[peap € AJ109ds 10U PIp Inq USNE) 9q O} POPAdU
uonoe IOUYUNJ  JeYl Panuopl sajnuiw Suesw IaAQ)
[[eD 20URULIOJIOd UI[BOH [BIUDJA OY) ‘SOOUB]SUI [BIOADS U] e

‘orgd
JouUBINSSY &Evﬂhﬁ«xﬁ.ﬂﬁ adoog voIE JIpNY
V XIANAddV IT/0107 LIOdTA LIANV A TIALIAVAO - LIANAV TYNYAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 90

01 98eq 11/0107 Moday g Joueng) — Ipny [eurau] A93uurey jo y3noiog uopuo]
‘W0)SAS T-}10MIWERI] 3} UO PIJUSIWNIOP
I8 00TAIOS O AQ PISSISSE PUE POAISdaI suonedidde oy, e “UOISIAO1{ 9OTAIDS
pue SWOID) JO MOIADY pue SULIOJIUOIN e
‘uone[si3o]
U1 S93UBYD JO UOKEIUIPT Y} YIHM ISISSE 0} SUOTJesIuesIo -89883001g
reruns 1OyI0 pue suonesieSio Aloymels pue  jels [elRJoy pUE JUOWSSISSY  ‘wonedrddy e
IOTUSS S DIAIOS 9U) USIMID]G SHUI[ JO JUSPIAS SBM I, ® {$9INPad0IJ pue AO1[0J ‘UONEBIUSWNOO( e
:MO[9q PIISI] AIB YOTYM JO SWIOS ‘A[LI0JOEJSIIES ‘syuowaiinbay] 01/6002
Suneiodo oq 0] POAISSqO dI9M  S[ONUOY JO IdqUINU Y Lioieis pue [e00] M oouelduio) e wIpIY)
A SU 18 $9A1302[q0 :seoIe SUIMO[[0] Sunyeag winjAsy
parwny woysAs oy Ind YOIYM SOSSOUNEOM OIE JIOY) WSISAS OU} UIYHA | U} I0A0O0 0] USYeopun sem NIOm 3Ipny parueduwoddeun)
's198pnq [euosiad 119y}
ofeuew P[NOYS A9Y} MO UO SIOSN IDIAIDS 0} JOUEPIND e
pue ‘ueyd s1e0 1101} Jo ed se 108pnq
1oy) oSeusw 0} ANJIGE S [ENPIAIPUl UB JO JUOWISSISSY o
ek TeruEUy [1/010C
oy jo Ioyrenb [euy oy ur pojo[dwiod aq 03 ounueiSord dI1e)
[B100S UONBULIOJSUBL], JO JIpne oY) Jo yed Se paIdA0d oq [[m
seore Surmo[[o} 9y} jey) juswoSeurwW M PIdIde udlq sey I
‘[ouno)
oyl umpiim asn 10} poroidde A[euuo} pue PIMOIADL
aq pinoys A30jeng uonuLAdld SINpY Suiprendajes oYL e
pue ‘suonoe 9sat]} Jo ssaidoid
pue uoneyusws[dwr oy Jo Suwojruow je}i[1oe} 0} paddorp
sey ooupwuojrod omym seore ssoxdwir 03 pado[aAdp
suejd uonoe [[8 UO POPIOOAI 9q PINOYS SIUL[PEdp JOIdxT e
‘J01IU0D UOISIAA JO dsn oy} ySnoyy 39
pouIeIdl 9q PINOYS SIY) JO SJUSPIAY 'S[0UYM B S [I0Uno)
QIuBINSSY SN e adoag vaIE IpNY
V XIONAddV I1/0107 LIOdTY LIANY ATHALIVNO - LIANV TYNIAINI ILLIOTAd




Page 91

11 28ed

11/010Z Hoday 7 Iouen) — 1pny [ewsdiu] AoSurieq jo ySnolog uopuo]

01 JUSWSIIMbAI oY} JO POPUIWIAI 3G P[NOUS JJBIS JUBAJAI [[V e

‘uone[si39] pue uone[ngal juornd pue Aorjod Jusuwadeurun
poa18e ‘soonpoeid juoumd [[B 10901 01 ‘Oreudoidde
oroym ‘pajepdn pue  pPOMIIAI 9 PINOYS IDIAIDS
oy} 01 9[qe[ieAr saurPpmng pue sainpadoid ‘sarjod oYy, e

:SMO[[O] SB 918 suolepuawuodal | Ajuond oyJ,

“JUSUIUOIIAUS [01U0D Y} da0xdur 0} d[oy pInoys yorygm
suonepuouwrodal ‘g Ayuoud sory) pue | Ayuoud oAl posrex
OABY 9 BOIB SIU} UI JIOAM JIPNE [BUIOJUI INO JO J[NSAI B SY

‘pap1A0i1d 901AISS A1) JO MIIADI OIF)BI)S
2 Po1o[dwod A[Jusool Jou 9ARY SIOFRUBW S, 30IAIDS OU] e

pue ‘uaipqyo peruedwosorun (] JO N0 AL 10J paimnbai se
us}jo se pajo[duiod uoaq JOU PeY S)ISIA PUB SMIIASI DV e

(OOIAIDG A} UIIIM
SIOOTIJO AQ 9B SUOISIOIP JUSWISSISSE 91} JO JusuaFeurw
Io1ds Aq MoIAdl juopuadopul ou ApuoLmd SI JIOY] e

‘UQIp[IYd (1 JO 0 YSIO J0J POpI0oAT
useq pey (N] °U} JO SUONEOGIIOU PUB SJUOUISSOSSE
9100 9y} JO SINSSI dY} JBY} MOYS O} OUIPIAD OU OS[ Sem
2101} pue pajdures USIP[IYD (] JO INO OM] JO] POJUSWINOOP
U99q JOU PBY SJUSWISASSE [ENIUL O} JO OWOdNO Y] e

‘syyuow 9A[oM] Ised ot UM
patepdn pue PomaIAdI USIQ JOU 9ABY PUe dAISUSYaIdUIOd
10U oIe  9OIAIDS  9U} UIYIM  J[GR[IBAB  SSUI[OPIND e

:MO]9q PIISI] I8 PUNOJ AIOM SISSIUNEIM JIdYM SBAIR O],
‘pordures suonoesues [[e 10§ pastel sem 1opro aseqomnd v e

pue {SI9SN DTAISS dY)
10} PaSIUESIO SUOISSIS JOBQPI) SUWIOS JO OOUOPIAD SI JIO(J, e

‘sjuowoduenry Jurzoday pue SULIONUOIN e
pue {JoIu0) pue JuUdWOFeUBIA 193PNyg e

{SIOPIAOIJ 90IAIDG O] SJUOWIAR] e

sduRINSSY

BaIE JIpNY

V XIANAddV

11/0107 LIOd A LIANV ATIALAVNO - LIANV TVNIALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 92

71 98eg

11/010Z Hoday] g Jouen() — 1Ipny [euIdu] A9SuLIef] Jo ySnoiog uopuo]

‘sguneow
juowdeuew Iotuos Arpuowr oyy e ‘9eudoidde aroym
‘UonoB ISYMNJ puB UOISSNOSIp 10] pajussaid oq pnoys
‘S107BO1PUI [BUOLBU JUBAJ[QI jsureSe ooueuLiofod Surpnjout
‘9o1a105 9y} Aq poonpoid suodor soueuuopad YT

‘s10p[0Y 108pnq JUBAS[aI pUR WL ],
oourUL 9y} USIMIAq sSureow SuLIO)UOW JE[nFaX opnyoul
0] posiewLIO} dq p[noys ssaooid Juuonuowr 393pnqg dYL

‘9ouruLIo)Iod JO SMITAI JUBAJ[DI [[B WO SUISIOWS
spuan Aue Jo sisA[eue ue 9)9]dwoo pnoys JuoWOTeUR

:SMO[[O] SE 9Ie SUOTIEpPUaW0dal 7 Auoud oy,

'$0A1193[q0 pasiSe jsurede sjuowarmbax
90IN0S31 PUEB SpIEpuL)s pedide jsureSe sourwWLIO}ISd JUALIND
ISA0D 0} 99TAIDS Y} JO MIIALI 2130jens © 919[dwod PInoys
9)21010911(] 9Y} PUE 9OTAISS AU} UM JUSWSTeURW JOTUSS

puE JIOMOWERI] JUSWATEUBJA] S0UBULIOJIdJ

s.wea ], o Jo ued se uo papodar pue I1AIOS I} UTM
juowogeurwW JOTUIS Y} AQ PIIOYIUOW 3q P[NOYS SIOIoM
[P100S pUB JJEIS JUBAQRI AQ S)ISIA PuUB SMIIAdI (DV'T)
UIP[IY) 9PV pavooT Alomiels ayp jo uonajduiod ayj,
‘901AI0G AU} UIYIIM SI9OUJO Aq apeul

SUOISIOOP JUSWISSAsse Jo o[dures & Jo JuswoSeurwW IOTUDS
Aq ma1ad1 juspuadapur pue Iejngo1 oyl 10§ pajuswo[du
pue pado[aasp aq pinoys ssedoid soueinsse Ayenb v

‘paureIoI PUB PAIUSUINDOP dI

JIUBINSSY

SIUOWISSISSE 9100 PuUB [BHIUL [[B JO S}NSAI dY} Jey} 2Insud

- s3urp!

adoog

IR JIPNY

V XIANAddV

11/0107 LIOdAY LIANYV ATIALIVNO - LIANV TVYNJALINI ALLIOTAA




€1 o%eg 11/010T Hoday 7 1oueng) — npny eweiu] Lo8uuey Jo ySnorog uopuo

Page 93

"9INIUIOD) JIPNY Y} 03 10ddI 1XoU INO U JIOM INO JO S} NSAX
) uo podar [[1m 9 “11/0T0T 03 SUBE[RI SHom Ino JO 1ed Se ‘¢ JUENd) U SO0YOS JUBAS[RI 01 SIISIA PA[NPAYDS INO aNUQUOD [[IM M

JUSWISSIsSE o) 919]dwod 0} sn 103 papraoid Suteq Jou uonELLIOFUL patmbai oy
0} oNp JUIISSISSE A} P[] SABY 0} PAWSIP ST [00YIS 3y} SE ‘[00Y0S ATepuodsg y3nooqysno uyor 10§ pansst sem wodar ou parrodal
A1sn01401d SV "pIepuelg oY) SUPSOWL SB PISSISSE SIOM YOTYM JO [ ‘SJ00YOS /] 10§ SHOdI [PUI] PONSST OABY I "S[OOYDS ATBpU0Dag
901U} PUR SANUID S USIP[IYD 0M) ‘S[ooyds Areuriid ¢ Surpnjout ‘sjooyos g1 pansiA o (SISIA) S[OOYDS UI PIepue)S JuswaSeURIA
[eIoUBUL] 3y} JO sjuswaImbar oy s douerdwod panunuoo Surjoayd o} pIesaI Yim (1/600¢ 03 Sune[RI yIom Ino pajodwos 9ABY 9\

u%hwsﬁ-:m pue SJUDWSSISSY SISINA

V XIANAddV I1/0107 LHOdT LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANYV TYNYALNI ALLIOTAA



Page 94

1 98ed

11/010¢ Hoday] g Iouren) — pny [eutaiu] As8uLey Jo ysnoiog uopuo]

..o 10T 19quIdAON ut 2oe[d oxe) [[IM 6°6
UOISIOA 0] WId)SAS JudLNO oy} Jo opeiSdn oy jeyy pajoadxa st 1]

20102 12quaydas 7 a1wpd))

010 £/C 421vnQ :2ulfppa (] pasiady "Tedk sI
I91R] G'¢ O1 91eISTW 0} NP SI [IOUNO)) Y} PUB PIA[OSAL USS] dALY
sonsst oY) jey) st Jorddns oY) WO SMaU }saje] SY ], "UMBIPYIM
Sureq opeiddn oyy ur Sunnsar swajqold JuedyIuUIs paouduadxs
nq Apes sup poyuowsidun s[ounod swos pue dpeiddn
ue ponsst lorddns oy -opeiddn oremyos oyi yum suwjqord
01 onp pajuowo[dwl A[[nJ U9Sq 10U SBY UONEPUSWIUIOddL SIY ],

:010Z 4nr § v awpd))

"9[qe[IBAE SOUI00aq 1 UdYm Isanbar o3ueyo e se paj[elsul
sup) 198 01 UOMUQIUI SSAUISNG Ay} Sem I1 1By} pue O[0T YOTEN
U1 pasea[el 9q P[nom SIY} Jey) poolsIdpun s 31 jeyy) paje)s JouMed
ssoursng SLI SYL [[eISUl 0} SJUSLO IOy} [[e I0f ISES[dI [eIoudd
U0 J[qR[IBAR 9q USY} P[NOM UOIYM ‘JUSI[D IOYIOUR IOJ SI1BMIOS
oy 0] Juowpuowe UE Sunum omm oym widdns oremyos
o) ‘U M Pasiel Sem SIY} JBY) POULGUOD JUOWSTEUB]N

payuwamddumy Apaed

800T AeIN
/ Sut08uQ

"Apjuarmnd sIno3oj
pue suofo[ [rysseoons ore se ‘Burd30]
[rex], ypny Supsixs oyl ul popnjoul 3q
ued sydwoje uo3o| pafiej, MOy pPue IdYIaYM
SuneSnsoaur 01 mo1A ' ypm siorddns
QIEMIJOS U} JOBIUOD PINOYS JUSUIDTRURIA

1

wdysAQ JudwdSeury 3InsRT XAJOL

SADIAYAS ALINAWNOD ¥ TIALT1AD ‘S11INaAV

1e)S/ d

rewSuQ

UONEPUSTIUIOIIY

RED |

90/S00T SUOTIEPUIWUI0dIY Jo uoneyuaw[duw] - J10day ssardold pafrerd(

V XIANAddV 11/0107 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALIVNO - LIANV TYNIAINI ALLIOTId




Page 95

G1 o8eg

11/010T Hoday g 1o1reng) — 1pny [ewraiuy AeSutiey jo ySnolog uopuory

0107 42qQUuiadca(] ouljpva(J pasiaay

‘JJe1S JURAS[SI 01 pajedIunuIod Sureq 010Jaq Jjo-ugrs
Io} LINQ 03 uoissiwigns 10J paredoid Suioq ore syuownoop oy,

00°01'vI 2awpd))
010T 4290320 :2upva(J pasinay

"LINQ e pa218e 99 0] Juswno0p 21mpaooid pasiasl oy} 10§
10[S B )0Oq [[IM 9JIAISG Sy ], (Wea] 2dueur synpy) IoSeue
90URUL] Y} UM S[BISUN] JO JUSIRoI) oY) 99138 pue SSnosIp [[im
901AI0S QY ‘ASSuLey 10} pardde oq ueo yoeoxdde juolsisuod
pue 9[qeuoseal ® JBYl OS Ss[eouny yum Juieop Io] yoroidde
II9Y) SUIULIDIOP 0} SSNLIOYINE [BIO] IOYIO PIIOBIUOD IABY SIJIAISS
[e397 ‘s[erouny o) Sureper ‘peaide aq 0} SPadU [[Us sampasoid
oY} JO JUSUID[® SUO ‘IOAOMOH 'pud SI01AIDS [eSo] woxy
pUE PUS S 90IAIS 9} WOL PISIEUl] U MOU 9ARY S9INpadold
OUL 'SOOIAIOS [BS9T UM SUOISSNOSIP P[OY JABY 9OIAIOS YL

0107 412quaydas 7 aippd))
payudwdrdumy Appaeg

800C YoTeN

‘JJeIS JUBAS[AI [[B 0} POIEOTUNWILIOD PUB

PaTep 99 PINOYS SIUSWNJOP [[B “DIOULISYLIN,]
‘AIessadou J1 ‘pejepdn pue

‘Allenuue 1seo] 1B pue ‘AlIRInSoI PoMIIALI
9q pmoys sampadord pue sowrod |y

I

diys19A1999y 29 drysooyuioddy

SADIAYES ALINAWINOD » ANLTND ‘SLINAV

| foug

WO BPUSWIH03 Y

Pa

80/L00T suonepudwoddy jo uonejwdwdjdwy - 110doy] ssaaSoug paprerag

V XIANIddV IT/010T LIOd T LIANY ATHALAVNO - LIANV TYNIYAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 96

91 9%eg 11/010 Hoday ¢ Joren() —1ipny [euteiu] L9FuLIRY JO 4Snoiog uopuo]
0 0 0 0 1 {1 jo|of t | 1] 0] 0 |menumsang 1010 Arelaspng
29 JuswoSeur [eroueul] O1830181g
0 0 0 0 9 € 3 0 9 £ 3 0 | renueisqng UANN]
0 0 0 0 ! 1 {0]0 I I | 0 | 0 |enuesqng sundreoay yse)
0 0 0 0 S 14 1 0 S 14 ! 0 | Ienueisqng sjgoueg Xe [ [1ouno) % 3uisnoy
0 0 0 0 € ! [4 0 £ 1 [4 0 | Ienueisqng SIONPaID
0 0 0 0 14 [4 1 1 14 [4 ! [ | fenueisqny XE [ [Iounoy
0 0 0 0 L I S 1 L 1 S [ | [enuejsqng sapsadoid Jo [esodsiy
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1A JUSUNSIAU] pun, uoIsuaq
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g 108pa] [eIouan) pue SuURUNOdOY
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g SIUOWASULLIY S0UBINSU]
$32.1n0s3Yy djeaodio)
0 0 0 0 8 1 9 1 8 1 9 [ | [enueisqng [[01keq
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 | [enueisqns 109[014 Aed [enbg jo uonejuswalduy
0 0 0 0 S 0 14 1 S 0 14 1 | enuelsqng 0210 Juswkojdurs-o1d
JO®d — SPANNIXY JoIY)
0 0 0 0 9 I S 0 9 1 S 0 | renueisqng sarnpaoold uruued Aousadiowy
0 0 0 0 14 ! £ 0 14 ! ¢ 0 | lenueisqng ampaooid syuterdwo)
I¥ddd — SRANNIIXY JP1YD
0 0 0 0 £ 0 £ 0 £ 0 € 0 | lenueisqng A11noag 7 JUSWABRURTA UOTIEULIOJU]
IPIM-1dUN0)
Surpueising | onp |[ssaxSoxg| “duy B BT R I T R I N
sy N | ur JjoN | vwN |m®oL| € | ¢ | 1 Jm®oL] €| T |1
I &yurong poyuouddmy AwSayey |
o AT
SUONBPUIWWO0IIY dueInssy vVIIV LIdNV
IO MIPNY 60/8007 - 21qe.L d)) mof[oq
V XIANAddV 11/0107 LIOdM LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNYALINI ALLIOTAd




Page 97

L1 98eq 11/010T Hoday] 7 191ren() — 1Ipny [ewtoiu] AaSuLreH jo ySnoiog uopuo]
0 0 0 L PLY | 9T | ¥TL | ¥T | IS8T | LT | 8TY| 9T ®10],
0 0 0 0 9 0| ¢ | ¢ 9 0 | € | ¢ |renuesqng (VIA) 210, oY) 10§ s[00ydS Suping
0 0 0 0 11 0 6 ré 11 0 6 z [eniueisqng S3OIAIRS tOQmﬁm.H,H huwgvmwmm
0 0 0 0 < 0 rd 0 ré 0 ré 0 [enjuelisqng ISNOH \A.Snaom —Sanua)) s JRIPIYD
0 0 0 0 01 I 9 £ 01 I 9 3 payry [BI3U3f) — AIUI]) S UIP[IY])
0 0 0 0 [4 0 I ! 4 0 ! 1 | [enuelsqng Wie] Ialempeold — Salua)) s UaIp[iy)
SIS §,91dodg Sunox 23 waIpy)
0 0 0 I S 0 s 7 9 0 € ¢ | renueisqng | (9oueinssy WS 103(01d) N1ed sinuisay)
0 0 0 0 9 0 ¥ 7 9 0 ¥ Z | renueisqng JUSWIAINO0IJ A1US)) SINSI]
0 0 0 0 0 0] 0] O 0 0]01] O g A3oreng 29 SUTUOISSIIIWIO))
0 0 0 0 8 1 9 I 8 I 9 [ | [enueisqus WNLOIEWIIT) 79 SOLISISWAT)
0 0 0 ! 8 1 L 0 6 1 8 0 | [enueisqng SUWOH [eUSPISIY 9SNOH pay
0 0 0 0 8 1 L 0 8 1 L 0 | [enueisqng SUWOH aIe]) [BTJUSPISIY poOoMURIL)
SIIAIRS AJIUNWUWo)) 29 3IMN)) ‘s}npy
0 0 0 0 1T 011 0 11 0OJIrt}j o pojruary $901AI0G Funyieq
0 0 0 € 0 0 0 0 € 0 Z [ | renueisqng (sassa001d J010BNU0))) SAemySIH
JIWUOIIAUY uRqI)
0 0 0 0 9 [4 v 0 9 [4 4 0 | lenueisqng WRLD dVS
0 0 0 0 8 1 L 0 8 1 L 0 | renueisqng SOVHTV
0 0 0 0 9 1 S 0 9 1 S 0 | Ienueisqng oseqered PlIOM T
0 0 0 I 6 1 [ 8] o] or | 2| 8 | 0 |renuesqng uonedrddy [-jIomower]
0 0 0 0 11 ! S S 11 [ S S payumry JUSWIAINO01 S[BLIAJEIA] SUTUES[)
0 0 0 I 14 0 € 1 S 0 14 1 | [enuelsqng sI01qo( A1pung
Sulpueysyng | onp |ssaroig ‘day | T R A e e S
o9y | JON | W | ION [ WN JIeoL] € | T | T J®oL] € | T
I Aoty pomowordmy | AwSae) I
4 , — ‘ - AR go‘woq;,
SUOIIBPUIUWIUIOINY dUBINSSY VIV LIANV
V XIANHAddV 11/0107 LIOdTA LIANYV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TVNIYAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 98

81 a8ed

V XIANAddV

11/0107 Hoday 7 101eng) — 1pny [euwio] AofuLrey] Jo ySnoiog uopuo]

SUOTIEPUSTITIONa] JO UOTRIudwa[dWI palels dARY SI901J0 — pajudwddur Apreq

“USYe) USSq 10U SBY UOTIOR JATIEWIONE ‘PASSAIPPE US3Q JOU SBY UOHEPUIUIUIOIDI oY) — PRudwdiduy JoN

“JSLI O} SSOIPPE 0} UAYE} USQ SBY UOHO. JATBWIANE JO ‘WaIsAS oy Ul so3ueyo o} anp s[qeorydde 133u0[ OU ST UONEPUSTITUOIAI A} — V/N
-sasuodsal Jo o[dwes B PIYLISA JABY O} 'SUONEPUSUIWIOdA] JO §$21501d oyl UOHBOYNISO-FISS YSnoxy} pareotpul sey s1901J0 — pajuawa[dury

I1/010¢ LIOdTY LIANYV ATIALIVNO - LIANV TVNIALLNI HLLIOTAd



Page 99

61 oSeq 11/010T Hoday] 7 1oueng) — jipny [ewtaiu] AouLrey jo ySnotog uopuo|
SUONEPUIWWIOII JO uonejuawa|durr pajress aary s190130 — pajudwaydu Apreg
"USN[E] U35Q JOU SBY UONOR SANEWIS)[E ‘PASSIIPPE U] JOU SBY UOHEPUSTITIOIDI oY) — pajuamadur joN
SISL ) SSIIPPE 0) UAYE) US3q SEY UONDE SANBUISIE IO “WI)SAS oY) Ut sagueys o) anp d[qearjdde 19300] oU ST UONEPUSWWOAI I — V/N
'sasuodsar o s[dures e palJLIdA 9ABY 9A\ "SUONEPUIWIIOD31 JO ssa1501d oY) uoneogIIa0-J]9s ySnony Pa1eDIPUT SBY SI90LJO0 — pIjudwdjduy
0 1 0 T LT ¢ | ST | o1 67 T |91 | 11 [Bj0],
uonv2[[0)
0 0 0 0 € i z I ¥ I 4 [ | [enueisqng | pue UONEIAUAL) SWOIU] — SANUA]) DINSIA |
‘ Junsa] 1915150y Y1y
0 0 0 [ l 0 4 0 £ 0 £ 0 | [enueisqng ~SUILLIEST pUE SoURIQIT I[N -§OOV
o ) 3unsa I101s15ay sy
0 0 0 0 4 0 0 [4 l 0 0 (4 pajut] -(aans1aT Burpnjour) sadiAlag UONEaIOTY
$IAIIS Ayrunuwuio)) 3 aamyny) ‘s)npy
0 I 0 0 01 0 8 < Il 0 8 £ paiiy uonepowmondy Arelodwa ],
JUIWUOIIAUY Uvqan)
0 0 0 0 8 I (4 S 8 [ 4 S payury (JuauRIN2014) SPIEpUE]S SUIOH JUS2(]
$32.1n0s3y Nelodio)
0 0 0 0 I 0 [ 0 I 0 [ 0 | [enueisqng uonoy 10§ [[eD Io[ouno))
JO%¥d — SADNRXY JPIYD
Smpueysing | onp [ssaxfoag| -dug
EAE) | JON | JON | VIN |I®J0L | € | T I JIBOoL]| € | T | I
T Aoy parusmajdury A108018)
[PAT
SUONEPUIMWIOIY DUBINSSY VAV LIV

V XIANAddV

HI0A\ NPV 01/600T - d1qe ], d() mof[oq

I1/0107 LYOd 3N LIANV ATHALAVAO - LIANV TYNYAINI ALLIOTAd



Page 100

0z 93ed

11/010¢ Hoday] g Jouend) — 1pny [eusaiu] As8uLey jo ydnoiog uopuo]

«110T YoIeIN Aq pastjeuy
I8 S2INJONINS UWIBd) PISIASI IS[IYm UOIBPOWIOIIR Krezoduroy

0} UOTIB[AI Ul §,0U0 0UBUL SY) UO YOBq P[OY 0} PIsu € oq Aew
oroy pore[duwiod oq [[m s3Inpadoxd oy} IS[IYM S0USY SINJONNS
-0 Joyuny ® 10j [esodoxd 0} po sey uonuenyis }93pnq JUIIAI Y],
‘Toquoydog Aq pasI[eUl 2q [[I4 9SOY) eI} UOHUUL oY) SAem[e
sem 31 pue dn umeIp usaq sey sampadoid paxmbar oy Jo 181 V,,

:010¢ 1snSny ur jusweSeurw woy a5epdn

‘sSuneaw wea) JJeIs 18 passnosip

uooq pey sainpaooid pasieuly Syl JeY) PIULIOJUL dI9M IM
"901AI0S Y} J0J P210[dWOO JUSWISSISSE SPAAU 3] JO

S)[NSOI Y YIIM SUI| UL JJBIS J0J POUTeIUIBW SPI0OAI Fururen oy}
SSI[ENUL0 01 A1} 0} uaYel Sureq A[JULLIND ST UOHOE Jey) JOFeUe|N
poddng ssouisng oy} Aq POULIOJUL 2I9M S\ "PauUleIUTRW SI9M
s3o1 Sumuren ‘pojdwies swed) 921y} [[e 10 joUBnUL S [IOUNOD
oY} UO O[qE[TEAB OpBW pUE JelS 0] PIIedIunuutiod Suroq
a10J0q posifeuly Suraq Jo ssaooxd o ut st sey yoed uonoNpul UY

*MOTASI QOUBINSSE

Ajipenb Sunieme 9Ie 10 JRULIOY JeIP UL [[IS T8 YOIyMm sampasoxd
OWOS 918 219U} JBY} PUNOJ SBM I ‘PISI[EUL UG SABY OSWOS
pue podo[oASp US3Q 9ABY 9SOY) JO Jsow YInoyyy ‘sonpaosoxd
pue soorod 1oy Supepdn A[ny jo sseooid oY) ul oM
901A10S 9Y} UNYIIM SWEd) 9} ‘ypne dn-mo[[of Ino Jo sWn 3y} 3y
paywowd[duy Appred

0T0CT UdIeIN (1€ [

"SUOISSas 3uyaLiq
pue Sururel} BIA JjBIS [[B 01 Saimpadsoid
oyl JO uoneUIWASSIP 9y} 10J sooeld ur
nd aq pinoys ssaooid © ‘JJeis 0} dqe[IeAR
opew Suroq sampadoid oY) 03 ‘uonIppe uj

‘popraoid
Sururen; pue s[ps ul sde8 (e Suipiodal
‘gels yoeo 10y 1doy 2q pnoys Foy Sururen
© 18y} pue pajepdn pue pomaIAdl 9q PINOYS
J3eIs mau 03 udAId yoed uoponpur ayl 1yl
POPUSUIWIOII JOYMUNJ ST J] ‘JUSUIOFTRURWL
Iorues Aq JJo pouSis pue  POMIIAAI
Afrewzoj oq uoy) pinoys ‘suejd 1om
ot 3ing 2q 03 Aypiqisuodsar Fuimaradl
AJTIUOPI puE S[ONUOD UOISIOA JARY P[NOYS
yoym  ‘sampodord oy], -pedojosdp are
2891} “ISTXd j0U Op soinpaocoid a1oym ey
pue s$301AI0§ SuIsSnoy Ajunuwiwo)) pue
o1301e1S JO QINONIISAI O0IAIDS J[OUM,
oy woy Suninsar soonoeid [euonerddo
Mmau oy} 1oapar Apredoid pue 9jep-03-dn
oIe 959U} 1B} 2INSUD 0} 9IIAIS ) UIYIIM
weal A19A9 SUuLI9A09 S2INpao01d Juaumd [[e
JO MIIAJI B OXeMOpUN PINOYS JUSWOFRURIA

I

NOILLVAOININODDV AYVIOdINIL

snyeyg/ssororg

INTANOIIANT NVHAN

| U0 EPUATUTIOIY

£y H

P

01/6007 SUOEPUIWIW0IIY Sulpuelsin( - 310day ssd13014 pafrednq

V XIANHAddV

I1/0107 LIOdAY LIANV ATIALIVAO - LIANV TYNJYIINI ALLIOTAd




Page 101

17 98eq [1/010T Moday ¢ 1oueng) — yipny [ewetuy Ao8utey jo ySnotog uopuo|

Ua3vuvpy 2oup1yduwo))
P JUIWIANDIO04] / UOIDPOUUIOIDY AdDL10dWA] | 4dSDUDIN
SSUII2T pup SIUUSSISS SUISNOL] *4201fJ0 2]q1suodsayy

[10T Y24DN -2uljppap pasiaay

smyuyg/ssoaS01g ) | Koy | uopEpusHITOsey

Py

V XIANAddV I1/0T07 LIOdHA LIANY ATHALAVNO - LIANV TYNYAINI ALLIOTAd




Page 102

7T 9%eq 11/0107 Moday 7 1ouen() — 1Ipny [ewaiu] Ae3uLel] Jo ySnorog uopuo]

PN NSIPUWIYO ], 9YINO0 ], INIOR( JO JIGIIITA]

‘SULIT JOqUIOW S| pue L L] JO 21mgonys [eSa] ay3 Jo uondiosap pafrelap e 10J INOge i 00" 91I0[9p Mmm
295 asealg sennuo juspusdepur pue ojeredos AjeSo] ore swuy Ioquidw asoym ‘ddjuerens Aq paywr Auedwod djeaud N e ‘(TLLA.) PATWI]
NSIBWYO [ SYONO] SPIO[R(] JO UL Idquiaul wopSury paiup) 9y ‘dT1 SMOPR( JO ATRIpisqns B ST pajiwl NIPpNY [BWU] 10109G JI[qnd SYoNo], 29 aNIo[a(]

"Z9158SH ON SS[eM U pue[Sug ur paroisi3ay ‘wopSury panuf) YL VT UOPUOT 091§ MAN I | ‘9SNOH [[TH 9010 paaisi3ay
"I JIPNY [BUIAIU] J0J03S JT[qN SYONO I, 29 NIO[S(] 01 SIOURIJAI dFe NIO[( 0 SIOUIJAI JUSWNOOP ST} U]

0107 19q010
uopuory

AW HPNY [RWISIU] 10199 T[N YN0, %9 a0pPq

‘pIeog SpIepuel§ 9oUBINSSY PUB JIpNYy [euonewau] a3 Aq pansst (000¢ AV SI) siuowaFedug oourInssy Uo pIepuels
[euonewau] oy Yim d[qeredurod jou st wodal JIpne [BUWINNUL MO UT PIPIEME [SAJ] S0UBINSSE Y[ WIISAS [ONUOD [BUISIUT J[QRI[SI B JO OUBUSIUIRW )
107 Jueprodul ST IUSWOSEURW £q SUONEPUSUITIOIAI INO JO UONLIusWa[dr QW) pue JANOSJJH "SIUSWNO0P 983y} JO AJONUSYINE Y} 2INSUS 0] PUB JIOMm JIpne
1mo Jo sasodind oy} IO} SUOTIOBSUET PUE SPI022I SUNUNOIOR JAY) 01 $SI008 ([N sn 9piaoid 0} JudswaFeuew U0 A[21 3M [INS S8 PUB 30UROPIUFIS pue YSLI 1sa1ea1d
Jo Sutaq se juowoSeuew AQ PANUSPI SE SBAIE UO SNOOJ 03 paudIsap are sampaooid jipne [ewr)u] pney sArsnjjod jsurede jooxd aq jou Aew pue souBmSSE
3M[osqe 10U pue J[qeuosear apiaoid AJUO UBRD [ONUOI [BUINUI JO SWIAISAS PUNOS USAY “senLrem3aLn 1o pneyy jo Aniqrssod oy 01 spredar aaey o) parmbar
are “ylom qoy) Sunonpuod ul ‘sioypny  AjrenIoln 10 puely JO SOOUBISWNID [[B AJUUSPI 0} uodn PSI[aI 10U ‘S[ONU0D [BUISUL UT SISSAUBOM pue SyISuons
1 Ajnuapt o3 wodn patjar 9q J0U P[NOYS JYPNe [eUINUI AQ PAWLIONISd YI10M PUR JUSTWSTRURW I SIS SANLIB[NSILI ISYI0 PUR prey Jo UondA19p pue uonuasaid
SY) PUB S[OOUOD [BUISIUT JO WAISAS punos e 10 Ajpiqisuodsar o jeys ssiseydms opy  "sdondeid juswadeurw punos Jo uonrordde oy 107 saniiqisuodsar
s, JuswoSeURUI 10 SININSQNS B SB USYE) 9 10U P[ROYS PUE 10U ST JI0M JIpNe [euIdlul Jo soueuuojiad sy ‘pajuswsidu are Aoy 21032q joedul [[ny J107) 103 NOK
Aq passasse aq pinoys sjuswaAoIduil 10J SUONBPUSTITIOISY "IpRW 99 WS 18y} SIUSWDA0IAWY [[B 10 ISTXS JBY} SISSIWNRaMm S} [[ JO JUSWIIR]S dAISusyaIdurod
B ALIESS200U 10U SI PUB MIOM JIpnE [BWIUI INO JO 9SIM0D 3y Suump UONUSNE INO 01 SWed YoIym 9soy) Auo arm wodal smy) ur posrel smonew oyJ

"0 INO J2s SUONBITI] 91 JO siseq oy} uo paredad st yorym 1rodas styl 107 ANfrqisuodsal ayel 9

Aqrsuodsdy Jo Judud) Bl

V XIANAddV I1/0107 LIOdAI LIANV ATIALIAVAO - LIANY TYNIALNI ALLIOTAQ



Page 103

Z jo | ebed

Buipuad
uonoy Aseundiosiq

3OIS JO

1S|lum a1aymasia
Bunjiom
aaAo|dwa

ley) uonebayy

V/N

wawAojdwe
Jayjo pasejospun
pey aaAojdws
Jey} uonebajy

ERTTNETS
s.a|doay
Bunoy

pue ualpjiyp

Buipusy |eaddy

passiwsiq eaAoidw3]

01/600¢ 4/d
sinoy

pajoenjuoo Buunp
wawAodwe
Jayjo Bupyeuspun
aakojdwe

Jey) uonebayly

ELIPNETS
aAlNdaxyg

BIYo

passiwsiqg

sejuow Jualo Jo
}ayy jo uoneba|y

passiwsi

JONPUODSIA SS0ID)
jo uonebajy

paiajdwios jeaddy

passiwsiq

I

01/6002Z 4/9
anig jusinpne.ly
e pasn asAojdws
leyy uonebsj|y

S92IAIOG
Alunwwo) g
ainjn) ‘syinpy

(umoun 1)
(3) enjep

awo2’3n0
Areuydiosiq

uonebiysaau|
Areupdiosiqg
0} Joalqns
S192140 JO 'ON

0Loc/60/0¢€
je uanoud

sased Jo "ON

pajebiysanul
S9sed Jo 'ON

adA] Auenbau)

2jel10309.41(

9 XIAN3dddV

01/600¢ NOH4 d4/49 ® 01/60/0€ - 01/¥0/1L0 A3LVOILSIANI SALLIHVINDIHYI - 1LIANY ISNOH NI




Page 104

Z Jo Z ebed

6 6 0] jejol
umelpyipn [eaddy 01/600¢ 4/
uoneoo|e
pasoduwil Buisnoy Jenbaui JUSWIUOIIAUT
uonoues Aseudiosiq L 1 L Jo uonebay|y ueqan
sep Jisy)
woJj ssauisnq
e Buluuni
Buipuad s| 9akojdwa
uonoy Aseuyidiosiq | } } 1ey} uonebajly
oIS Jo
1S|IYM 818YyMas|d
Bupjiom
paubisey 9akojdw3g 1 3 L Jo uonebo|y
paje|dwod |eaddy
01/600¢ d/d
ajes pue| Jejnbaul S921N0SaYy
pessiwsiq aafoidw] L L 1 jo uonebayy ajeiodion
uonebiysaau|
Keuydissia 0102/60/0€
(umouy ) awio2inQ 0} Joelqns je uaaoad pajebiysaAul
(3) anjeA Areurndiosig S199140 JO "ON sosed JO "'ON sased Jo "oN | adA] Arenba. ajelo0loaliqg

g XIaN3ddVv

01/6002 WOY4 /9 ® 01/60/0€ - 0L/¥0/10 AILVDOILSIANI SAILIHYINDIHYHI — 1iIdNV ISNOH NI




Page 105

Appendix C

Disciplinary Case Analysis July to September 2010

Introduction

The information in this report is taken from SAP, covering the period 01 July 2010 — 30 September

2010.

The data is based on Haringey Council employees who

e hold Permanent, Temporary or Fixed Term Contracts
* are considered as Supernumerary (employees that have been on a Temporary Contract for more
than 52 weeks)

Note that this data excludes:

e (Casual or Sessional Workers
e Schools
e Agency Workers

Legend

Adu]ts,Culture & Community Serv’i’ces | B
The Children & Young People’s Service |
Corporate Reéburces - CRM4
People & Organisational Development |~ PO
Policy, Performance, Partnership & Comms PP |
Qrb; Enwronment L UE
Hanngéy(;ounc,l S éwHGY

The Council’s Disciplinary Procedure is considered as a tool to assist in good management and not
solely as a means of imposing sanctions or setting out procedures leading to dismissal.

The procedure aims to:

Allow managers to address issues of unsatisfactory conduct and seek improvements in
behaviour
Ensure that employees covered by the procedure are treated fairly and consistently

Ensure that proper and adequate procedures are observed before any disciplinary decisions are
taken

Help and encourage all employees to achieve and maintain standards of conduct, attendance
and job performance

Maintain discipline essential to the delivery of high quality services

Protect the health, safety and well being of staff, service users and members of the public
Safeguard the integrity and good reputation of the Council

(Disciplinary Procedure July 2005)

| of 6



Page 106

Appendix C
Disciplinary Cases

This section looks at the number of formal actions taken against employees under the disciplinary
procedure based on data retrieved from SAP.

Disciplinary Cases by Directorate
Diectorate  CasesOpen  CasesClosed  Noofcases  Noofemployees
-G S B LA 21 21

- R B m e e
e e e i R
e B s e e |
T o W - —

Please, note that the total number of cases is 63, but this only represents 58 employees. The reason
being, that one employee can have more than one case running concurrently. For example, an
employee’s dismissal could count as one case and their appeal as another.

e Policy, Performance, Partnerships and Comms has the highest percentage of disciplinary
cases against its workforce at 2.26% in this quarter

e 45 cases remain ‘open’ at the end of this period.

The following table looks at the stages of Disciplinary cases.

Stages of Disciplinary Cases

T T T G G| G e | e T TR
e T T
B B e e e
R N A IR

Total W " o 45 | 18 ; o3 | e

20f6



Page 107

%
H

The following table identifies the outcomes of the 18 cases that were concluded.

Disciplinary Case Outcomes

e e e
Invest. - | Invest. - |

not ; | ;
 suspended = Suspended | appeal

Outcome

: kComprom:se agreefnﬁent
Dis. smiss
Dis. A
Dis.
' Dis.

4

Appeal Dlsmxssed
Appeal Part Upheld

i
i

i

Appeal Upheld

1
z
|
i

Appeal Withdrawn | “

¢

i
i
1

Invest. - i
ET

- Dis. Dlsmsssal

{

: Disj ET W'thdrawn

Dis. Fmal ertten Warmng

ooo;—n%o%—s;‘.a%oﬁ
] ! {
| ! H ! ‘ i

i

{

Appendix C

©O0o0o oo ooooo =0 =20

oo ooj-0oo0oNMONOO OO

0
' Dis. No Action “ 0 0
Dis. Other | ! 0 0
f'ﬂéi‘é‘.ﬁwRe]egatlon/Demotlon - 0 1 @
Dis. Reskxy)gned l 0 0 1
«"I'jig.”VerbaI Warning ) o 2 T
| DIS Wntten Warnmg 0 1
' Escalated to next stage‘ o 0 o 0 0
;Suspensnon Lifted ’ T 0 - 0 W:O 1 -
3 0

Total ? 4

[
[

i
i
!
|
|
|

Y
o

e 44% of cases resulted in Dismissal

This table displays reasons for Disciplinary action against employees.

Reasons for Dlsmphnary Cases

- ) Cases Open Cases'
~Assau|’t - | 9

Reason

Attendance - 1 :
Behav10ur R e
| Fraud/Theﬁ B

Misuse of resources o ; 4

Negllgence | , : 13 H

Other | A ’ 3

Total | 45

W w o m\-\xfmgj—xl
-
o

Y
o]
(0]

- W

* The highest cause for disciplinary action was for Behaviour at 35%

3ofé6

, %, S

) ,,35 .

16

25
10

100

,,,,,



Page 108

Appendix C
This table looks at the ethnic breakdown and gender spilit for Disciplinary cases

Disciplinary Case employee representation
by Ethnicity and Gender

Female Male
Ethmc Class Total % Total % 4 ;
Whrte 10 48 11 52 21 36
Not Declared 1 ; 50 23 g g
Tota . 20 50 | 29 50 58 100

e 33% of the workforce is male, but the male representation with disciplinary cases is significantly
higher at 50%

The following table looks at the ethnic breakdown per Directorate and across grade bands. ,;

Disciplinary Case employee representation by
Ethnicity and Grade Band
(T= Total no. in grade band WF = % of total d|SC|pI|ned employees in Durectorate)

Ethnic | SC1-SC5 | SC6-802 | PO1-PO3 | PO4-PO7 | PO8+ | TOTAL
Goup T WF T WF| T WF ‘T§WF§T WF | T WF
.~ B&ME 6 @ 60 10 0 0 o 0 7 | 70 |
'AS  White 20 10 3 | 30
| Total | 8 80 | 2 20 | 10 100 |
~ B&ME 4 20 1 5 10 | 50
'C White 2 10 | 15 | 10 50
: Total | 6 30 | 4 20 120 100
é’éfME — T
- 6| 80

LN
1001

; Dir

|

6
[ I A T N e X
H
|

'CR

w
o)
FSON S CR NS

{

PO

A0
Axle 2l
s
50 |
ot
2

PP

o ©w o o o
AN A O D 2O =
o

UE

-
—h
—
Q.
O

.
11 13
11 7
Total 24 43 12 21 11 20 8 14 1

NB: 2 employees are excluded from the above table due to not having an ethnicify declared
1 employee is from the Children’s Directorate and in salary band PO8+
1 employee is from Adults, Culture & Comms Directorate and in salary band SC1-SC5

4 of 6

N W N 2N ONOOONS A wO OO
o

o
A A OO ONMONOOO =200 wNOo o o
o
W
&
o .
o

o
-~ 0O 0O 00O 000 oo oo oo 4 =0

HGY

(o)]
S

N VMO OO OOOOOOoOOOOoOOoO U no oo o
N
—
)
®

100 |

[8)]
(o)}



Page 109

Suspensions

This table shows a summary of suspension cases.

No. Qf cases not concluded -/Ieavérﬂ ” ’
- Total

Summary of Suspension Cases

Case status

No. of cases not concluded

‘gNo,éfcasésﬂg;&;hwwﬁW"MWMMWW

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

11

20 |

Appendix C

The table below looks at the 31 suspension cases and identifies the no. of working days each case has
taken. If the case has not concluded by the end of the period, the number of working days is calculated
from the start date of the current disciplinary stage to the end of the quarter.

The table also identifies, by directorate, the average number of days suspension for all cases, the
maximum days for a single case and average days suspension for cases heard within that period.

Directorate

1801 420

61- | 121-

§

181-

180 | 240

Timescales (no of days) of Suspension Cases

240+} cases |

i
i

Total | Total

days

297

Avg

days of %
total

37

- Avg
days of |
cases

. heard

50

“UE

"HGY

Total cases

- closed

1151 |
215

63

95 §

On average, 91 days were spent on each suspension case within the quarter.

50of6




Page 110

Appendix C
Average and Maximum Days Taken for Suspension Cases by Directorate
450
. 348 348
350 - m—
¥ 22
300 \}4 -
250 A
200 -
150 4
100 1 |
50 1
0
B Avg. days B Max. days ;

The chart below looks at the number of suspension cases per quarter and highlights Haringey Council’s
average number of days per case.

No. of Cases and Average days taken per Case

by Quarter
200
160 +
1204 100 - o |105] , _,k,,,w105

Oct09 - Dec09 Jan10 - Mar10 Apr10 -Jun10 Jul10 - Sep10

@ Total Number of Cases B Average Days per Case

Due to a number of difficult and complicated cases being concluded there has been a 14 day reduction
in the in the average days taken per case for this quarter compared with the last quarter.

6 of 6



Page 111 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 2 November 2010

Report Title: Risk Management update Quarter 2 2010/11

Report authorised by: Director of Corporate Resources

D2y, =5l (o

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the current position on compliance with the
corporate risk management policy for the management of risk registers across the
Council.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council’s risk
management framework is in place and operating effectively. Internal audit reviews
key risk registers, the controls in place to manage the identified risks.
Recommendations for improvement are made, where appropriate.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the compliance with the risk
management strategy for the completion of risk registers across the Council.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s Risk Management
Policy and Strategy as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and
provide information on its implementation across the Council, the corporate Policy
progress reports are provided on a regular basis for review and approval by the
Audit Committee.




Page 112

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the
implementation of the Council’s risk management framework throughout the
authority. This report focuses on the compliance with the corporate risk management
framework for risk registers during the second quarter of 2010/11.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no direct legal implications arising from the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer confirms that there are no direct financial implications
associated with this report however, regular review and challenge to existing and
emerging risks should significantly mitigate against financial exposure. Should any
highlighted risk materialise, the impact, mitigation and reporting of these would
normally be addressed in a separate report. Any significant implications would be
reported to the Audit Committee as part of the agreed Terms of Reference.

8.2 The Chief Financial Officer is satisfied that the Council is complying with the
corporate risk management strategy in relation to the completion of risk registers. In
one case where the latest update to the risk register is more than three months old,
the Head of Service has been requested by the Chief Financial Officer to review and
update this within one month.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risk registers are managed across all areas of the
Council. Improvements in managing risks and controls will improve services the
Council provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report. Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant
Directors and Directors in the production of risk registers and internal audit reports.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 113

Their comments are included in the final report which is circulated in accordance
with the agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within
internal audit to implement the Council’s risk management framework is part of the
contract with Deloitte and Touche which was awarded following a competitive
tendering exercise in compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs
of this contract and managing the corporate risk management policy are contained
and managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget. Service
departments manage risks as part of the routine work to achieve their business
plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices
13.1  Appendix 1 — Update on risk registers Quarter 2 2010/11

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Anne Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1The Council’'s Risk Management strategy is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that
it reflects current operational requirements and best practice. The latest version was
approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 25 March 2010.

15.2 The Chair of the Audit Committee requested that a report on risk management and
compliance with the Council’s strategy in respect of risk registers be presented to the
Committee on a quarterly basis. The review and testing of risk registers forms part of
the 2010/11 annual audit plan which was approved at the Audit Committee meeting on
25 March 2010. This is an ongoing process to ensure the key controls to manage
identified risks are effective and operate as intended.

16. Risk Registers

16.1 All risk registers are managed electronically at business unit, department and
corporate level. Appendix 1 shows the latest position for all Business Units and
Directorates as at the end of quarter 2.

16.2 The corporate risk register is reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Chief Executive’s
Management Board and reported annually to the Audit Committee. The last review by

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 114

the Audit Committee was completed at its meeting on 24 June 2010. The corporate
risk register is subject to its quarterly review at the CEMB meeting on 2 November
2010.

16.3 During the second quarter, a number of organisational changes have taken place
across the Council. The functions of the previous PPP&C directorate are currently
managed by other directorates and their risk registers are incorporated into the new
reporting structures as follows: Safer Communities Business Unit now reports to the
Director of Urban Environment; Policy and Performance and Communication and
Consultation Business Units now report to the Assistant Chief Executive — People &
Organisation Development. Appendix A reflects the changes made during quarter 2.

16.4 Covalent provides an audit trail to allow for monitoring and follow up by Internal
Audit. One risk register (Benefits & Local Taxation) is currently being reviewed and will
be updated on Covalent during October 2010. All other risk registers for business units
and directorates have been reviewed and updated in accordance with the corporate

policy.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 115

7Jo 1 98eg

0L0Z Jequisydeg Bujuoissiwwo) 9 s80IAIBS JINPY ng SOV °T4
0102 Jequsydeg saojAIeg oibejels g buipienbejes ng SO0V | ¥¢
0L0z Jeqwaydeg S92IA18S AJlunwiwo) % ainyn) synpy 1daq (SD00V) seoinieg ez
Aunwwo) g ainyno synpy
0102 4390120 SHIOMISN S uaIpiiyd ng SdAD 44
010z Jequwaldasg wawdojaaag ¥ ywoddng ssauisng ng SdAD 1z
010¢ 4890100 uoIsn|ouj ® spJepuelg |00yos ng SdAD 0C
010z 1890100 saljiwed @ uaip|iyo ng SdAD 6l
010z Jequiaydes Hvr/buipienbajes 1deQ SdAD 8l
0102 1840120 B0IAISS §,8]d0ad BUNOA @ uaIpjiyD 1de@ (SdAD) Ll
80IAI8g s,8|doad Buno, 9 ualipjiyn
010z Jaqualdeg sa0IM8S Apadold ajeliodio) ng ISTe) 9l
0L0zZ Jeqwaldeg JusawaInoold ajes0dion ng I Te) Sl
010z Joqualdes Juswabeue XSty R Jipny ng d0 142
010¢ 48q0100 aoueul4 ajesodio) nd 40 €l
010z AlInp uonexe] [eo07 R sjijsuag ngd H0 Zl
010z Jlequsldeg S9OIAIBS JBWolsn) ng ¥Te) Ll
010¢ 48903100 S3JAIBG 1] ng d0 0l
0102 4290100 S80jAIag [EHaT ng ¥T0) 6
0102 4990190 $921n0say 9jelodio) 1daqg (YD) seoinosey sjelodio) 9
010¢ 1840100 Bujuies g Juswdojpasq jeuoljesjuebiQ ng ao®d — 30 L
010¢ 48Q0100 poddng Jaquis|y %® Aoeioows( |ed07 ng ao®wd — 30 9
010¢ 1890100 $80In0Say UelNY nd ao®d — 30 S
0102 1200190 aouewlopad g Aoljod ng aowrd — 30 14
010¢ 48490100 uole}Nsuo) @ uoliediunwwo) ng aox®d — 30 (3
0L0Z 4890100 swdojans(g euonesiuebli( @ sjdoad 1daq (a0%d) weawdojarsq
|euonesiuebiQ g oidoad — 39 Z
0L0zZ aunp J9)s1bay ajeiodio) | ajesodion gin3D - sjelodion L
MB3IABI
Juasal ysow Jo ajeq o] 1938163y ysS1y [9AaT] juswpedaq

1 xipuaddy

Arewwng ajepdn 19)s169y sy - L1/010Z Z 1oKenp Hoday ssaiboid




Page 116

010z Jequsides S8liuNWwo) I9jeS ng N A

010z Jequeydes juswdojanaq Adyjod g buluueld ng an e
010¢ 4890100 S80JAJI8S SUljjuOl ng an 0¢
0102 41890190 s90IAlag BuisnoH Anunwwo) B oibajens ng an 62
010z 4290100 JUSWUOIIAUT uegin 1daQg (3N) WwswuosAUT ueqn 9z

010z loquasydes BuiuiesT g saueIqlT] ‘8INYND ngd SO0V X4

010z Jequeides S80IAISS UONEaI0DY ng SO0V 92

M3IABI
jua2al Jsow Jo ajeq ap] 19)s169Yy Ysiy |aAa7] jusawnedaqg

[ xipuaddy

Kiewwng ajepdn J93sibay XSy - 11/010Z Z 1oHenp uoday ssaiboud




Sl Agenda ltem 14

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 2 November 2010

Report Title: National Fraud Initiative 2010/11

Report authorised by: Director of Corporate Resources  J_ (2o~ 2 < «Jio)

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the statutory 2010/11 National Fraud Initiative data
matching exercise and the Council’s compliance with the requirements of the
exercise.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council responds
appropriately to statutory requirements and investigates potential instances of fraud
and corruption to minimise the risk of current and future losses.

3. Recommendations
3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the contents of the report.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring Council policies in relation to
fraud and corruption as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and
provide information on implementation and compliance with these across the
Council, progress reports are provided on a regular basis for review and information
by the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered




Page 118

5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The Council needs to ensure that there are appropriate arrangements and processes
in place to comply with and respond to the statutory National Fraud Initiative
exercise. The Council’s corporate Anti-fraud and Corruption policy; internal audit and
housing benefit investigation teams; and service departmental resources form part of
the assurances to satisfy the relevant requirements are in place and operating
effectively.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no direct legal implications arising from the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 As set out in paragraph 12.1 there are no direct financial implications associated
with the participation with this initiative however, it should help to identify fraudulent
or incorrect payments some of which should be recoverable by the authority.

8.2 Furthermore, where individuals are identified and prosecuted, it provides a strong
message that fraudulent behaviour will not be tolerated.

8.3 The Chief Financial Officer is satisfied that the Council complies with the
requirements of the National Fraud Initiative.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report explains how the Council participates in the statutory national data
matching exercise managed by the Audit Commission with the aim of identifying
and preventing instances of fraud. Effective and efficient service delivery will have
an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements in preventing and
detecting fraud will therefore improve services the Council provides to all sections
of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this
report.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 119

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. At this stage it is
planned that investigations into potential data matches and fraud will be
undertaken on a risk basis, as recommended by the Audit Commission, and using
existing available resources. Internal Audit will provide resources as part of the
planned Corporate Anti-fraud Team to investigate relevant data matches and any
follow up work required. An assessment of any additional resources which may be
required from service departments will be made when the NFl data is available in
February 2011.

13. Use of appendices
13.1  Not applicable

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact
Anne Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1 Since 1996, the Audit Commission has run the statutory National Fraud Initiative (NFl),
once every two years. The NFl is a data matching exercise that compares sets of data
to identify inconsistencies or other circumstances that might indicate fraud or error.
This may include examples such as a tenant with more than one council house, a
housing benefit claimant not declaring income or an employee on long-term sick leave
while working elsewhere. The data matching exercises also help auditors to assess the
arrangements that audited bodies have put in place to deal with fraud. The last NFI
exercise in 2008/09 helped trace a total of £215 million in fraud, error and
overpayments. Since the initiative's start in 1996, the NFI programme has helped
identify £664 million in fraud, error and overpayment.

15.2 To ensure data is provided to the Audit Commission securely, it is automatically
encrypted during submission to a secure website. The data matches highlighted as a
result of NFI are then provided to participating bodies through the same secure
website, which is then used by the Commission’s auditors to monitor progress in
following up these examples of potential fraud and error.

15.3 The NFI has regularly expanded the range of risks addressed in response to requests
from audited bodies. The Serious Crime Act 2007 amended the Audit Commission Act
1998 to include new powers enabling the NF| exercise to be extended. NFI now offers
data matching services to a wider audience including:

» Banks and financial institutions
» Central government departments and agencies

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 120

Housing associations
Private sector pensions
Recruitment agencies
Retail sector companies
Voluntary sector

15.4 The new legislation also required the publication of a new Code of Data Matching
Practice which sets out the strict protocols governing NFI to ensure full data protection
compliance. The 2008 Code of Data Matching Practice was reviewed by the
Information Commissioner and was laid before both Houses of Parliament in July 2008.
This ensures that data protection is given top priority alongside protecting the public
purse.

15.5 The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government proposed the abolition
of the Audit Commission in his announcement on 13 August 2010. The government
has indicated that its aim is for the new arrangements for the audit of local authorities
and NHS bodies to be in place from the 2012/13 financial year. The details of the new
arrangements and the transition to them have not been worked out and are subject to
primary legislation. Therefore, there is no immediate change to the NF| and the
2010/11 exercise will continue as planned.

16. Core elements and data requirements of NFI 2010/11

16.1 Previous NFI exercises have yielded significant successes within Haringey, notably
within the area of Housing Benefits where overpayments in excess of £200k have been
identified. However, the Council has also been successful in identifying fraud and
overpayments in relation to other areas including non-declaration of secondary
employment; employees working whilst off sick; misuse of blue badges; fraudulent
claims for single person discount; and persons who had no eligibility to work in the UK.
Disciplinary action has been taken against four employees identified as committing
fraud resulting in three dismissals and one resignation. Recovery of identified salary
overpayments has been instructed by service departments.

16.2 The Code of Data Matching Practice continues to be in place for NFI 2010/11 and
online training guidance provides support for participants when using the secure NFI
website. The aim is to ensure that, while upholding and protecting citizens’ rights in
relation to their personal data at all times, the NFI continues to serve the public interest
by safeguarding public money against losses from fraud or corruption and making an
effective contribution to the wider fight against fraud.

16.3 The Audit Commission Act 1998 Part 2(A) allows the NFl to increase the number and
range of participants by enabling bodies in the wider public and private sectors such
as the Department of Health, the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency and financial
institutions to submit data sets for matching by the Audit Commission. Table 1 below
sets out the core data sets which Haringey Council has provided for the 2010/11 NF|
exercise.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 121

Table 1 — Core data sets 2010/11

Data set submitted

Housing benefit claimants

Payroll

Pensions payroll

Trade creditors payment history

Trade creditors standing data

Housing rents

Private supported care home residents

Electoral register

Students eligible for a student loan

Insurance claimants

Transport passes and permits including:
e Residents parking permits
¢ Blue badges
e Concessionary travel

Licences including:
o Market trader/market operator
e Taxi driver
e Personal licences to supply alcohol

16.4 The amendments to the Audit Commission Act 1998 now enables the Commission to
make these match types available to participants that are new to NFl, in particular to
local public bodies audited by the Northern Ireland Audit Office, central government
departments and their agencies. Audit Scotland and the Wales Audit Office have
already taken up the full range of matches under their own statutory powers within the
NFI framework. This expansion increases the opportunities for fraud detection by
audited bodies as they match against the data provided by the new participants.

16.5 As with previous exercises, Haringey Council is required to inform people that their
data is being used in the NFI process. This is in accordance with the Data Protection
Act 1998 and is known as ‘fair processing notices’. There are certain exemptions
where Haringey is not required to provide fair processing notices, for example, where
personal information must be made available to the public because of a statutory
requirement e.g. the electoral register.

16.6 The Audit Commission recommends adopting a ‘layered’ approach to fair processing
notices, where there are three levels of notification — summary notice, condensed text
and full text. Haringey follows this guidance in issuing fair processing notices.
Summary notices provide the minimum necessary content for individuals whose data is

(@3]

Report Template: Formal Bodies



Page 122

being matched and, where practicable, indicate where more detailed information can
be found. Summary notices are usually put on application forms e.g. benefits, housing
tenancies etc and on payslips. The condensed text provides an explanation of the
Audit Commission’s data matching exercises and is published on the Council’s
website and can be used as a source of further information for summary text notices.
The full text is available on the Audit Commission’s website and a link to this is
provided from the Council’s website. Haringey Council also uses staff and pensions
newsletters, Team Brief, Haringey People, and Home Zone to publicise its participation
in the NFI and this approach has been agreed with the Audit Commission.

18. Use of data 2010/11 NFI exercise

18.1 The Council submitted all the statutory data to the Audit Commission by the required
deadline of 11 October. Previous NF| data matches have been investigated by service
departments, with limited support made available from the small in-house internal audit
team to assist and review progress. With the implementation of the Corporate Anti-
fraud Team during 2010/11, resources will be provided through Audit & Risk
Management to investigate data matches and potential fraud in key areas. The
recommended Audit Commission risk based approach will be used, but it is
anticipated that using officers with investigation skills and experience to target high risk
data matches will ensure that the Council is even more successful in detecting and
preventing fraud. Results from the NFI exercise will also be used to inform and develop
the pro-active anti-fraud plan in future years.

18.2 Most of the key data matches will continue to be in effect for the 2010/11 NFl exercise,
including payroll to payroll; payroll to pensions; benefits to payroll and licences; and
trade creditors to payroll. The NFl process matches within each organisation and
across all other data sets from submitting authorities. The paragraphs below highlight
what other data sets will be used for when the data matches are released in 2011.

18.3 Housing Benefits. To allow a more effective assessment of NFI matches, the Audit
Commission has agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions to integrate key
intelligence from data relating to this type of benefit claimant into NFl, for example
income declared and student status.

18.4 Payments to private residential care homes. NFI matches residential care home
payments to the Department for Work and Pensions deceased records to identify
cases where payments were still being made after the date of a resident’s death.

18.5 Transport passes and permits. NFI will match data to the Department for Work and
Pensions deceased records to identify cases where passes were still in existence after
the date of a pass/permit holder’s death for Blue Badges and Concessionary Travel
Passes. NFI will also match data with the DVLA to identify drivers who are disqualified
or no longer entitled to drive, and with Council Tax records to identify cases where an
address has multiple parking permits, but is in receipt of single person’s discount.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 6



Page 123

18.6 Insurance Claims. The Audit Commission is working in partnership with the Insurance
Fraud Bureau to match local authority claims data to information from the private
sector relating to personal injury claims and known fraudsters.

18.7 Licences. The data will be matched to DWP records and housing/council tax benefit
records to identify whether correct benefits are being claimed.

Report Template: Formal Bodies



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Audit Progress report
	7 Value for Money report
	8 Housing Allocations, Lettings and Homelessness Services Re-inspection - final report
	9 Annual Statement of Accounts - outcome of the annual audit for 2009/10 and Review of the Annual Governance Statement
	10 Treasury Management Practices Document
	11 Housing Benefits - 2nd quarter progress report on counter fraud activity
	12 Internal Audit - 2nd quarter progress report
	13 Risk Management - update
	14 National Fraud Initiative 2010/11 - corporate arrangements and requirements

